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Rating: See “Rating” herein.   

 Standard & Poor’s Rating Group: AA 
New Issue 
 

In the opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing law and assuming, among 
other matters, compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”).  Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the 
federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when 
calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income.  Under existing law, interest on the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts 
personal income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  The Bonds will be designated as 
“qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any 
other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.  See “Tax 
Exemption” herein. 
 

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 
$9,756,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2011 BONDS  

 
 DATED DUE 
 As of Delivery Date March 15 
  (as shown below) 
 

The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
Bondowner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York.  DTC will act as securities depository for 
the Bonds.  Purchases of the Bonds will be made in book-entry form in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, with 
the exception of one $1,000 denomination maturing in 2012.  (See "Book-Entry-Transfer System" herein.) 
 

Principal of the Bonds will be paid on March 15 of the years in which the Bonds mature.  Interest on the Bonds will be payable 
semiannually on March 15 and September 15 commencing September 15, 2011, until the principal amount is paid.  Principal and 
semiannual interest on the Bonds will be paid by U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts, or its successor, as Paying 
Agent.  So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondowner, such payments will be made directly to such Bondowner.  
Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of DTC and disbursement of such payments to the 
Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants and Indirect Participants, as more fully described herein. 
 

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates as detailed herein. 
 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the Bonds are valid general obligations of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts and the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds are payable from taxes which may be levied upon all taxable property in the Town, without limitation as to rate or 
amount, except as provided under Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws, with respect to the principal and interest payments on 
the portion of the Bonds that the Town has voted to exempt from the limit imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws, 
and subject to the limit imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws with respect to the principal and interest payments on 
the portion of the Bonds that the Town has not voted to exempt from that limit. 
 __________________________________________ 
 

MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, RATES, YIELDS AND CUSIPS 
 

Due Principal Interest Cusip Due Principal Cusip

March 15 Amount Rate Yield 809095 March 15 Amount Yield 809095

2012 911,000$      3.00   % 0.60  % TR3 2019 510,000$     4.00 % 2.70  % TY8

2013 830,000        3.00   0.90  TS1 2020 445,000       5.00 2.93  TZ5

2014 770,000        3.00   1.20  TT9 2021 420,000       5.00 3.15  UA8

2015 750,000        4.00   1.65  TU6 2022 385,000       3.125 3.25  UB6

2016 705,000        4.00   1.90  TV4 2023 385,000       3.25 3.35  UC4

2017 690,000        4.00   2.15  TW2 2024 355,000       3.375 3.50  UD2

2018 580,000        4.00   2.45  TX0 2025 350,000       3.50 3.60  UE0

Interest

Rate

$580,000 Coupon Rate 3.75% Term Bond Maturing March 15, 2027 Yield @ 3.85% Cusip # 809095 UG5

$1,090,000 Coupon Rate 4.00% Term Bond Maturing March 15, 2031 Yield @ 4.07% Cusip # 809095 UL4  
 
 

The Bonds are offered subject to the final approving opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond 
Counsel, as aforesaid, and to certain other conditions referred to herein and in the Notice of Sale.  First Southwest Company, Boston, 
Massachusetts has acted as Financial Advisor to the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts, with respect to the Bonds.  The Bonds in 
definitive form will be delivered to The Depository Trust Company, or its custodial agent, on or about March 17, 2011, against payment 
in federal funds. 
 



 

2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

 Page  Page 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT...............................................................  3 

NOTICE OF SALE ..........................................................................  4 
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT: 
THE BONDS: 

Description of the Bonds.................................................................  7 
Redemption Provisions ...................................................................  7 
Record Date ....................................................................................  8 

Book-Entry Transfer System ..........................................................  8 
Authorization of the Bonds and Use of Proceeds ..........................  10 
Principal Payments by Purpose .....................................................  11 

Tax Exemption ................................................................................  11 
Security and Remedies...................................................................  12 
Rating ..............................................................................................   14 

Opinion of Bond Counsel ................................................................   14 
Financial Advisory Services of First Southwest Company ............   14 
Continuing Disclosure .....................................................................  14 

 
TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS: 
 

General ..........................................................................................  15 
Local Government .........................................................................  15 
Principal Town Officials ................................................................  15 

Municipal Services ........................................................................  15 
Education ......................................................................................  16 
  Public School Enrollments ..........................................................  16 

Population Trends .........................................................................  17 
Age, Income and Wealth Level ....................................................  17 
Largest Employers ........................................................................  17 

Building Permits ............................................................................  17 
 
PROPERTY TAXATION: 

 
Tax Levy Computation ..................................................................  18 
Valuations and Tax Levies ...........................................................  19 

Classification of Property ..............................................................  19 
Largest Taxpayers ........................................................................  20 
Abatements and Overlay ..............................................................  20 

Tax Collections..............................................................................  21 
Tax Titles and Possessions ..........................................................  21 
Tax Outstanding ............................................................................  21 

Sale of Taxes Receivables ...........................................................  22 
Municipal Tax Amnesty.................................................................  22 
Taxation to Meet Deficits ..............................................................  22 

Tax Limitations ..............................................................................  22 
Pledged Taxes ..............................................................................  23 
Unused Levy Capacity ..................................................................  23 

Initiative Petitions ..........................................................................  24 
Community Preservation Act ........................................................  24 
 

 

  
TOWN FINANCES: 

Budget and Appropriation Process ...............................................  25 
Operating Budget Trends ..............................................................  25 
Education Reform ..........................................................................  26 

Revenues .......................................................................................  26 
   Property Taxes ...........................................................................  26 
  State Distributions .......................................................................  26 
   State School Building Assistance Program ...............................  27 
   Motor Vehicle Excise Tax ...........................................................  27 
   Water and Sewer Rates and Services .......................................  28 

   Transfer Station ..........................................................................  28 
Annual Audits .................................................................................  29 
Financial Statements .....................................................................  29 

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet -  
   June 30, 2010 .............................................................................  30 
   June 30, 2009 .............................................................................  31 

   June 30, 2008 .............................................................................  32 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures  
General Fund as of -   

   June 30, 2010 .............................................................................  33 
   June 30, 2009 Through 2006 .....................................................  34 
Undesignated General Fund Balances and Free Cash ...............  35 

Stabilization Fund ..........................................................................  35 
MBTA Mitigation Fund ...................................................................  35 
Tax Increment Financing for Development Districts ....................  36 

Investment of Town Funds ............................................................  36 
 
INDEBTEDNESS: 

 
Authorization of General Obligation Bonds and Notes ................  37 
Debt Limits .....................................................................................  37 

Types of Obligations ......................................................................  37 
Revenue Anticipation Notes Borrowing ........................................  38 
Direct Debt Summary ....................................................................  39 

Key Debt Ratios .............................................................................  39 
Principal Payment by Purpose ......................................................  40 
Annual Debt Service as of June 30, 2010 ....................................  41 

Authorized Unissued Debt 
 and Prospective Financing ...........................................................  42 
Overlapping Debt ...........................................................................  42 

Contracts ........................................................................................  43 
Retirement System ........................................................................  43 
Plymouth County Retirement System ...........................................  44 

Other Post-Employment Benefits ..................................................  45 
Collective Bargaining .....................................................................  46 
LITIGATION ...................................................................................  46 

 
APPENDIX A - Fiscal 2010 Audit  
APPENDIX B - Proposed Form of Legal Opinion of Bond  

  Counsel 
APPENDIX C – Proposed Form of Continuing  
                          Disclosure Certificate 

 
 
 __________________________________ 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT 
 

 

The information set forth below is qualified in its entirety by the information and financial statements appearing elsewhere in the Official 
Statement. 
 
Date of Sale: Wednesday, March 9, 2011 at 11:00 am Eastern Time. 
 

Location of Sale: First Southwest Company, 54 Canal Street, 3
rd
 Floor, Boston, Massachusetts. 

 
Issuer: Town of Scituate, Massachusetts. 
 

Issue: $9,756,000 General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds - Book-Entry - See “Book-Entry-
Transfer System” herein. 

 
Official Statement Dated: March 9, 2011. 
 

Dated Date of Bonds: As of Delivery Date. 
 
Principal Due: Serially on March 15, 2012 through March 15, 2025; Term Bond maturing March 15, 2027 and March 

15, 2031, as detailed herein. 
 
Purpose and Authority: Bond proceeds will finance various municipal projects as authorized by the Town under provisions of 

Chapter 44, Sections 7 and 8 of the Massachusetts General Laws as detailed herein. 
 

Redemption: The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates as detailed herein. 
 

Security: The Bonds will be valid general obligations of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts, and the principal of 
and interest on the Bonds are payable from taxes which may be levied upon all taxable property in the 
Town without limitation as to rate or amount, except as provided under Chapter 44, Section 20 of the 
General Laws, with respect to the principal and interest payments on that portion of the Bonds that the 
Town has voted to exempt from the limit imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws, and 
subject to the limit imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws with respect to the 
principal and interest payments on that portion of the Bonds that the Town has not voted to exempt from 
that limit. 

 

Credit Rating: Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group has assigned a rating of  AA to the Bonds. 

 

Bond Insurance: The Town has not contracted for the issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance or any other 
credit enhancement facility. 

 

Basis of Award: Lowest true interest cost (TIC) as of the dated date. BIDS MUST INCLUDE A PREMIUM OF AT 
LEAST $90,000.     

 

Tax Exemption: Refer to "Tax Exemption" herein and Appendix B, "Proposed Form of Legal Opinion of Bond Counsel.” 
 

Continuing Disclosure: Refer to "Continuing Disclosure" herein and Appendix C, "Proposed Form of Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate.” 

 

Bank Qualification: The Bonds will be designated by the Town as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 
265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

 
Paying Agent: U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts. 
 
Bond Counsel: Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts. 
 
Financial Advisor: First Southwest Company, Boston, Massachusetts. 
 

Delivery and Payment:  It is expected that delivery of the Bonds in book-entry-only form will be made to The Depository Trust 
Company, or its custodial agent, on or about March 17, 2011, against payment in Federal Reserve 
Funds. 

 

Additional Information: Questions concerning the Official Statement should be addressed to: Ms. Jane C. Lepardo, Treasurer, 
Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (telephone: 781-545-8720) or Peter Frazier, Senior Vice President, 
First Southwest Company, Boston, Massachusetts (telephone: 617-619-4409). 
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NOTICE OF SALE 
TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

$9,756,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2011 BONDS 
 

The Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (the “Town”) will receive sealed and electronic (as described herein) proposals until 
11:00 A.M., Eastern Time, Wednesday, March 9, 2011, for the purchase of the following described General Obligation 
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds of the Town (the "Bonds"): 
 
 $9,756,000 General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds payable March 15 of the years and in the 

amounts as follows: 
 

Due Principal Due Principal

March 15 Amount March 15 Amount

2012 911,000$         2022 385,000$      *

2013 830,000           2023 385,000        *

2014 770,000           2024 355,000        *

2015 750,000           2025 350,000        *

2016 705,000           2026 290,000        *

2017 690,000           2027 290,000        *

2018 580,000           2028 280,000        *

2019 510,000           2029 270,000        *

2020 445,000           2030 270,000        *

2021 420,000           2031 270,000        *  
_________ 
*Callable maturities. 

 
The Bonds will be dated as of delivery date.  Principal of the Bonds will be payable on March 15 of the years in which the 
Bonds mature.  Interest will be payable on March 15 and September 15 commencing September 15, 2011. 
 
The Bonds will be issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of Bond certificates made to the 
public.  One Bond certificate for each maturity will be issued to The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York 
("DTC"), and immobilized in its custody.  Ownership of the Bonds in principal amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples 
thereof, with the exception of one $1,000 denomination maturing in 2012, will be evidenced by a book-entry system with 
transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC and its Participants pursuant to rules and procedures established 
by DTC and its Participants.  The winning bidder, as a condition to delivery of the Bonds, shall be required to deposit the 
Bonds with DTC, registered in the name of Cede & Co.  Interest and principal on the Bonds will be payable to DTC or its 
Nominee as Registered Owner of the Bonds.  Transfer of principal and interest payments to Participants of DTC will be 
the responsibility of DTC.  Transfer of principal and interest payments to Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of 
such Participants and other Nominees of Beneficial Owners.  The Town will not be responsible or liable for maintaining, 
supervising or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its Participants or persons acting through such Participants. 
 
The original Bonds to be immobilized at DTC will be prepared under the supervision of First Southwest Company and 
their legality will be approved by Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, whose opinion will be 
furnished to the purchaser without charge. 
 
Bonds maturing on or prior to March 15, 2021 shall not be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates.  Bonds 
maturing on and after March 15, 2022 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Town, on or after 
March 15, 2021, either in whole or in part at any time, and if in part, by lot within a maturity, at the par amount of the 
Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 
 

For Bonds maturing on March 15, 2022 and thereafter, bidders may specify that all of the principal amount of such Bonds 
in any two or more consecutive years may, in lieu of maturing in each such year, be combined to comprise the maturities of 
Term Bonds scheduled to mature in the latest of the combined years, and shall be subject to mandatory redemption prior to 
maturity at par as described above, in each of the years and in the principal amounts specified in the foregoing maturity 
schedule.  Bidders may specify no more than two maturities of Term Bonds. 
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Principal and semiannual interest on the Bonds will be paid by U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts as 
Paying Agent.  So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondowner, such payments will be made directly to DTC.  
Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of DTC and disbursements of such payments 
to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants, as more fully described 
herein. 
 
Bidders shall state the rate or rates of interest per annum which the Bonds are to bear in a multiple of 1/20 or 1/8 of one 
percent, but shall not state (a) more than one interest rate for any Bonds having a like maturity or (b) any interest rate 
which exceeds the interest rate stated for any other Bonds by more than 3 percent.  No bid of less than par and accrued 
interest to date of delivery plus a premium of at least $90,000 will be considered.     
 
As between proposals which comply with this Notice, the award will be to the bidder who offers to purchase all the Bonds 
at the lowest net effective interest rate to the Town.  Such interest rate shall be determined on a true interest cost (TIC) 
basis, which shall mean that rate which, as of the delivery date, discounts semiannually all future payments on account of 
principal and interest to the price bid.  In the event there is more than one proposal specifying the lowest such rate, the 
Bonds will be awarded to the bidder whose proposal is selected by the Town Treasurer by lot among all such proposals. 
 
Bids must be submitted either: 
 

(a) In a sealed envelope marked “Proposal for Bonds” and addressed to Ms. Jane C. Lepardo, Treasurer, Town of 
Scituate, Massachusetts c/o First Southwest Company, 54 Canal Street, 3rd Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 
02114. Proposals by telegram delivered as specified above will be accepted.  Signed blank bid forms may be 
faxed to (617) 619-4411 prior to submitting bids, and actual bids may be telephoned to First Southwest 
Company, telephone (617) 619-4400, at least one-half hour prior to the 11:00 A.M. sale and after receipt of the 
faxed bid form by First Southwest Company. 

 
(b) Electronically via Parity in accordance with this Notice of Sale.  To the extent any instructions or directions set 

forth in Parity conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale shall control.  For further 
information about Parity, potential bidders may contact the Financial Advisor to the Town or I-deal at 40 West 
23rd Street, 5th Floor, New York, NY 10010 (212) 404-8102.  An electronic bid made in accordance with this 
Notice of Sale shall be deemed an offer to purchase the Bonds in accordance with the terms provided in this 
Notice of Sale and shall be binding upon the bidder as if made by a signed and sealed written bid delivered to 
the Town. 

 
The award of the Bonds to the winning bidder will not be effective until the bid has been approved by the Treasurer and 
Board of Selectmen of the Town. 
 
The right is reserved to reject all bids and to reject any bid not complying with this Notice of Sale and, so far as permitted 
by law, to waive any irregularity with respect to any proposal. 
 
The Town of Scituate has not contracted for the issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance for the Bonds.  If the 
Bonds qualify for issuance of any such policy or commitment therefor, any purchase of such insurance or commitment 
shall be at the sole option and expense of the bidder.  Proposals shall not be conditioned upon the issuance of any such 
policy or commitment.  Any failure of the Bonds to be so insured or of any such policy or commitment to be issued shall 
not in any way relieve the purchaser of its contractual obligations arising from the acceptance of its proposal for the 
purchase of the Bonds.  Should the bidder purchase municipal bond insurance, all expenses associated with such policy 
or commitment will be borne by the bidder, except for the fee paid to Moody’s Investors Service for a rating on the Bonds.  
Any such fee paid to Moody’s Investors Service would be borne by the Town. 
 
It shall be a condition to the obligation of the successful bidder to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds that it shall be 
furnished, without cost, with (a) the approving opinion of the firm of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, 
Massachusetts, substantially in the form appearing as Appendix B of the Preliminary Official Statement dated February 
22, 2011, (b) a certificate in the form satisfactory to Bond Counsel dated as of the date of delivery of the Bonds and 
receipt of payment therefor to the effect that there is no litigation pending or, to the knowledge of the signers thereof, 
threatened which affects the validity of the Bonds or the power of the Town to levy and collect taxes to pay them, (c) a 
certificate of the Town Treasurer to the effect that, to the best of her knowledge and belief, as of the date of sale the 
Preliminary Official Statement did not, and as of the date of the delivery of the Bonds, the Final Official Statement does 
not, contain any untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and (d) a 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form described in the Preliminary Official Statement. 
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In order to assist bidders in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, 
the Town will undertake to provide annual reports and notices of certain significant events.  A description of this 
undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement. 
 
The Bonds will be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for the purpose of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.   
 
Additional information concerning the Town of Scituate and the Bonds is contained in the Preliminary Official Statement 
dated February 22, 2011 to which prospective bidders are directed.  The Preliminary Official Statement is provided for 
informational purposes only and is not a part of this Notice of Sale.  Said Preliminary Official Statement is deemed final by 
the Town except for the omission of the reoffering price(s), interest rate(s), delivery date, the identity of the underwriter(s), 
and any other pertinent terms of the Bonds depending on such matters, but is subject to change without notice to 
completion or amendment in a Final Official Statement.  Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained 
from First Southwest Company, 54 Canal Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02114 (Telephone: 617-619-4400).  Within 
seven (7) business days following the award of the Bonds in accordance herewith, 60 copies of the Final Official 
Statement will be available from the First Southwest Company to the successful bidder for use in reoffering the Bonds.  
Upon request, additional copies will be provided at the expense of the requester. 
 
On or prior to the date of delivery of the Bonds, the successful bidder shall furnish to the Town a certificate acceptable to 
Bond Counsel generally to the effect that (i) as of March 9, 2011 (the “Sale Date”), the purchaser had offered or 
reasonably expected to offer all of the Bonds to the general public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons 
acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) in a bona fide public offering at the prices set forth in such certificate, 
plus accrued interest, if any, (ii) such prices represent fair market prices of the Bonds as of the Sale Date, and (iii) as of 
the date of such certificate, all of the Bonds have been offered to the general public in a bona fide offering at the prices set 
forth in such certificate, and at least 10% of each maturity of the Bonds actually has been sold to the general public at 
such prices.  To the extent the certifications described in the preceding sentence are not factually accurate with respect to 
the reoffering of the Bonds, Bond Counsel should be consulted by the bidder as to alternative certifications that will be 
suitable to establish the “issue price” of the Bonds for federal tax law purposes.  If a municipal bond insurance policy or 
similar credit enhancement is obtained with respect to the Bonds by the successful bidder, such bidder will also be 
required to certify as to the net present value savings on the Bonds resulting from payment of insurance premiums or 
other credit enhancement fees. 
 
It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Bonds.  All expenses in relation to the printing of 
CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall be paid for by the Town, provided, however, that the Town assumes no responsibility 
for any CUSIP Service Bureau or other charge that may be imposed for the assignment of such numbers. 
 

The Bonds in definitive form will be delivered to the Depository Trust Company or its custodial agent on or about March 
17, 2011 for settlement in Federal Funds. 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
 

 TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 
  /s/ Jane C. Lepardo 
  Town Treasurer 
March 9, 2011  
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 OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
 TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 
 
 $9,756,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2011 BONDS 
 
This Official Statement is provided for the purpose of presenting certain information relating to the Town of Scituate, 
Massachusetts (the “Town”) in connection with the sale of $9,756,000 aggregate principal amount of its General 
Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds (the "Bonds"). The information contained herein has been furnished by 
the Town, except information attributed to another governmental agency or official as the source. 
 

THE BONDS 
 
Description of the Bonds 
 
The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery and will bear interest payable semiannually on March 15 and September 
15 of each year until maturity, commencing September 15, 2011, at the rate or rates of interest determined upon their 
sale in accordance with the Notice of Sale of the Town dated February 22, 2011.  The Bonds shall mature on March 15 
of the years and in the principal amounts as set forth on the cover page hereof. 
 
The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of Bond 
certificates made to the public.  One Bond certificate for each maturity will be issued to The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York, ("DTC"), and immobilized in its custody.  Ownership of the Bonds in principal amounts of $5,000 
or integral multiples thereof, with the exception of one $1,000 denomination maturing in 2012, will be evidenced by the 
book-entry system, with transfers of beneficial ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to 
rules and procedures adopted by DTC.  Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be payable to DTC or its nominee as 
registered owner of the Bonds.  Transfer of principal and interest payments to participants of DTC will be the 
responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial owners by participants of DTC will be the 
responsibility of such participants and other nominees of the beneficial owners.  The Town will not be responsible or 
liable for maintaining, supervising, or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants, or persons acting 
through such participants. 
 

Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be paid by U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts, or its 
successor, as Paying Agent.  So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondowner, such payments will be 
made directly to such Bondowner.  Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of DTC 
and disbursements of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants and the 
indirect Participants, as more fully described herein. 
 
The Bonds are subject to redemption as described below. 

Redemption Provisions 

 

 Optional Redemption 
 

The Bonds maturing in the years 2012 through 2021 will not be subject to redemption prior to maturity.  The Bonds 
maturing on and after March 15, 2022 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Town, on or 
after March 15, 2021, either in whole or in part on any interest payment date, and if in part, by lot within a maturity, at the 
par amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date set for redemption. 
 

Mandatory Redemption  

 

The Bonds maturing March 15, 2027 and March 1, 2031, respectively (the “Term Bonds”) are subject to mandatory 
redemption or maturity on each of the dates and in each of the principal amounts set forth below (the particular portion of 
each Term Bond to be redeemed or to mature on the final maturity date to be delivered by lot), at a redemption price of 
par, plus accrued interest, if any, to the redemption date. 
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$580,000 Term Bonds Maturing March 15, 2027 
 

 Principal
Year Amount

2026 $290,000
2027 * 290,000        

 
$1,090,000 Term Bonds Maturing March 15, 2031 

 

 Principal
Year Amount

2028 280,000$     
2029 270,000       
2030 270,000       

2031 * 270,000        
 
*Final maturity. 

 Notice of Redemption 
 

So long as DTC is the registered owner of the Bonds, notice of any redemption of Bonds prior to their maturities, 
specifying the Bonds (or the portion thereof) to be redeemed shall be mailed by registered mail to DTC not more than 60 
days nor less than 30 days prior to the redemption date.  Any failure on the part of DTC to notify the DTC Participants of 
the redemption or failure on the part of the DTC Participants, Indirect Participants, or of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner 
(having received notice from DTC Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial Owner shall not affect the validity of the 
redemption. 

Record Date 

 
The record date for each payment of interest on the Bonds is the last business day of the month preceding the interest 
payment date.  With respect to overdue interest or interest on any overdue amount, the Paying Agent may establish a 
special record date to the Bondowner.  The special record date may not be more than twenty (20) days before the date 
set for payment.  The Paying Agent will mail notice of a special record date to the Bondowners at least ten (10) days 
before the special record date. 
 
Book-Entry-Transfer System 
 
The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be 
issued in fully-registered form registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as 
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One-fully registered certificate will be issued for each maturity 
of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.  
 
DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a 
"banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a 
"clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing 
for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market 
instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates 
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, 
through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates 
the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, 
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing 
agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others 
such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that 
clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect 
Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and 
www.dtc.org.  
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Purchases of securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit 
for such securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each security deposited by DTC 
("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not 
receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written 
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or 
Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in 
the securities deposited by DTC are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants 
acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests 
in the securities deposited with DTC, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for such securities is 
discontinued. 
 
To facilitate subsequent transfers, all securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of 
DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC. The deposit of securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do 
not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the securities 
deposited with DTC; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such securities 
are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible 
for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 
 
Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect 
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements 
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  
 
Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of a maturity is being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine 
by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed. 
 
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to securities deposited with 
DTC unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the issuer of such securities or its paying agent as soon as possible after the record date. 
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts such 
securities are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 
 
Principal and interest payments on the securities deposited with DTC will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee 
as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts 
upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the issuer of such securities or its paying agent, on 
the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held 
for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such 
Participant and not of DTC (nor its nominee), the issuer of such securities or its paying agent, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such 
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the issuer of such 
securities or its paying agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and 
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 
 
DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to securities held by it at any time by giving 
reasonable notice to the issuer of such securities or its paying agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, physical certificates are required to be printed and delivered to Beneficial Owners.  
 
The Town may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor 
securities depository). In that event, physical certificates will be printed and delivered to Beneficial Owners. 
 
The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the 
Town believes to be reliable, but the Town takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
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Authorization of the Bonds and Use of Proceeds 
 
The following sets forth the principal amounts, purposes, statutory authorization for the current offering of Bonds: 
 

Statutory

Total Amount of Reference (Chapter 44 of

This Amount BAN's the Massachusetts Date of Article

Issue Purpose Authorized Outstanding General Laws), as amended Authorization Number

234,000$         Seawalls 312,000$         273,000$         (1) 7(7) 3/3/2003 4

117,750           DPW Vehicles 157,000           137,375           (2) 7(9) 3/4/2006 4, item 6

300,000           Seawalls 400,000           350,000           (3) 7(7) 3/4/2006 4, item 4

73,000             School Vehicle 105,000           83,875             (4) 7(9) 3/3/2007 4, item 3

469,750           Seawalls 544,000           537,750           (5) 7(7) 3/3/2007 4 item 5

85,416             Police Computer System 125,000           125,000           (6) 7(28) & 7(29) 3/3/2007 4, item 8

93,888             Library Renovations 100,000           99,444             (7) 7(3A) 3/3/2007 4, item 10

210,000           Dept. Equipment - Street Sweeper 210,000           210,000           7(9) 4/13/2009 4M

70,000             Dept. Equipment - Bucket Truck 130,000           70,000             7(9) 4/13/2009 4N

120,000           Repairs to Foreshore Structures 120,000           120,000           7(7) 4/13/2009 4O

45,000             Feasibilty Study (Library) 45,000             45,000             7(21) 4/12/2010 4A

90,000             Liquid Salt Pre-Treatment System 90,000             90,000             7(9) 4/12/2010 4B

50,000             Sander Body & Plow Package 50,000             -                   7(9) 4/12/2010 4C

75,000             School Bus 75,000             75,000             7(9) 4/12/2010 4D

40,000             Fire Command Vehicle 40,000             40,000             7(9) 4/12/2010 4I

6,666               Stormwater Mgmt. 310,000           10,000             (8) 7(22) 3/4/2002 4I

1,165,000        Wampatuck School Repairs (EXEMPT) 2,330,000        (9) -                   7(3A) 5/17/10 & 6/19/10 2

811,071           Sewer Extension 13,544,000      820,000           (10) 7(1) 3/4/2002 4K

300,000           Sewer Extension 6,400,000        300,000           8(15) 4/13/2009 4C

114,000           Inflitration & Inflow System 400,000           114,000           7(1) 4/12/2010 4E

84,970             Additional Sewer Extension (Rosa's Lane) 175,000           -                   7(1) 11/2/2009 4

640,000           Water Main 640,000           640,000           8 3/29/2008 4C

350,000           Water Main 350,000           350,000           8 3/29/2008 4D

92,000             Water Department Equipment 105,000           92,000             8(7C) 3/29/2008 4F

570,000           Clean Department Line County Way Watermain 570,000           285,000           8 4/13/2009 4G

750,000           Replace Stockbridge Road Watermain 750,000           450,000           8 4/13/2009 4K

170,000           Water Mains - Tilden 170,000           170,000           8 4/13/2009 4I

150,000           Dump Truck 150,000           -                   7(9) 4/12/2010 4F

1,300,000        Water Mains  1,300,000        236,700           8 4/12/2010 4H

25,000             Fire Hydrant Replacement 25,000             -                   8(7C) 4/12/2010 4G

100,000           Dam Repairs 150,000           -                   8(7C) 3/3/2007 4, item 12

150,000           Transfer Station (Loader) 175,000           150,000           7(9) 4/13/2009 4E

903,489           Marine Park Recreational Facility 1,630,000        929,000           (11) 7(25) 3/3/2007 4, item 17
9,756,000$      6,803,144$     

 
_______________ 
(1) This issue, with $39,000 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of bond anticipation notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(2) This issue, with $19,625 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of bond anticipation notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(3) This issue, with $50,000 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of Bond Anticipation Notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(4) This issue, with $10,875 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of Bond Anticipation Notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(5 This issue, with $68,000 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of Bond Anticipation Notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(6) This issue, with $39,584 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of Bond Anticipation Notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(7) This issue, with $5,556 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of Bond Anticipation Notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(8) This issue, with $3,334 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of Bond Anticipation Notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(9) The Town voted to exempt this authorization from the limitations of Proposition 2 ½ on June 19, 2010. 
(10) This issue, with $8,929 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of Bond Anticipation Notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
(11) This issue, with $25,511 of revenue funds, will be used to retire a like amount of Bond Anticipation Notes maturing March 18, 2011. 
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Principal Payments by Purpose 
 

Fiscal 

Year General Sewer Water

Transfer 

Station 

Equipment Waterways Total

2012 470,470$        85,041$        262,000$         20,000$          73,489$         911,000$       

2013 410,000          75,000          255,000           20,000            70,000           830,000         

2014 360,000          70,000          250,000           20,000            70,000           770,000         

2015 350,000          70,000          245,000           15,000            70,000           750,000         

2016 305,000          70,000          245,000           15,000            70,000           705,000         

2017 295,000          70,000          240,000           15,000            70,000           690,000         

2018 185,000          70,000          240,000           15,000            70,000           580,000         

2019 120,000          70,000          235,000           15,000            70,000           510,000         

2020 80,000            65,000          220,000           15,000            65,000           445,000         

2021 70,000            65,000          220,000           -                  65,000           420,000         

2022 65,000            65,000          190,000           -                  65,000           385,000         

2023 65,000            65,000          190,000           -                  65,000           385,000         

2024 65,000            65,000          185,000           -                  40,000           355,000         

2025 60,000            65,000          185,000           -                  40,000           350,000         

2026 60,000            60,000          170,000           -                  -                290,000         

2027 60,000            60,000          170,000           -                  -                290,000         

2028 60,000            55,000          165,000           -                  -                280,000         

2029 55,000            55,000          160,000           -                  -                270,000         

2030 55,000            55,000          160,000           -                  -                270,000         

2031 55,000            55,000          160,000           -                  -                270,000         

Total 3,245,470$     1,310,041$   4,147,000$      150,000$        903,489$       9,756,000$    

 
 
Tax Exemption 
 
In the opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the Town (“Bond Counsel”), based upon an 
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, compliance with 
certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 
103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”).  Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Bonds 
is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although 
Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative 
minimum taxable income.  The Bonds are “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the 
Code.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the 
ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. 
 
The Code imposes various requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of 
interest on obligations such as the Bonds.  Failure to comply with these requirements may result in interest on the Bonds 
being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds.  
The Town has covenanted to comply with such requirements to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be included in 
federal gross income.  The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these requirements. 
 
Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts 
personal income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  Bond Counsel has not 
opined as to other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.  Prospective Bondholders should 
be aware, however, that the Bonds are included in the measure of Massachusetts estate and inheritance taxes, and the 
Bonds and the interest thereon are included in the measure of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise 
taxes.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other Massachusetts tax consequences or as to the taxability 
of the Bonds or the income therefrom or any other tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds under the laws of 
any state other than Massachusetts.  A complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in 
Appendix B hereto. 
 
To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at maturity of such Bonds 
(excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the term of such Bonds), the difference 
constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each owner thereof, is treated 
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as interest on the Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from 
Massachusetts personal income taxes.  For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds is the first 
price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or 
similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers).  The original 
issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the 
basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates).  
The accruing original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon 
disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds.  Bondholders should consult their own tax 
advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment 
of purchasers who do not purchase such Bonds in the original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial 
amount of such Bonds is sold to the public. 
 
Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount greater than the stated principal amount to be 
paid at maturity of such Bonds, or, in some cases, at the earlier redemption date of such Bonds ("Premium Bonds"), will 
be treated as having amortizable bond premium for federal income tax purposes and Massachusetts personal income tax 
purposes.  No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond premium in the case of obligations, such as the Premium 
Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. However, a Bondholder’s 
basis in a Premium Bond will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such 
Bondholder. Holders of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of 
amortizable bond premium in their particular circumstances. 
 
Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or 
events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax 
status of interest on, the Bonds.  Further, no assurance can be given that pending or future legislation, including 
amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation, including amendments to the Code, or any 
future judicial, regulatory or administrative interpretation or development with respect to existing law, will not adversely 
affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.  Prospective Bondholders are urged to consult their own tax 
advisors with respect to proposals to restructure the federal income tax. 
 
Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or 
receipt of interest on, the Bonds may otherwise affect the federal or state tax liability of a Bondholder. Among other 
possible consequences of ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds, the Code 
requires recipients of certain social security and certain railroad retirement benefits to take into account receipts or 
accruals of interest on the Bonds in determining the portion of such benefits that are included in gross income.  The 
nature and extent of all such other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status of the Bondholder or the 
Bondholder’s other items of income or deduction.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax 
consequences, and Bondholders should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such consequences. 
 
Security and Remedies 
 
Full Faith and Credit.  General obligation bonds and notes of a Massachusetts city or town constitute a pledge of its full faith 
and credit.  Payment is not limited to a particular fund or revenue source.  Except for “qualified bonds” as described below 
(see “TYPES OF OBLIGATIONS – Serial Notes” under “INDEBTEDNESS” below) and setoffs of state distributions as 
described below (see “State Distributions” below), no provision is made by the Massachusetts statutes for priorities among 
bonds and notes and other general obligations, although the use of certain moneys may be restricted. 
 
Tax Levy.  The Massachusetts statutes direct the municipal assessors to include annually in the tax levy for the next fiscal 
year “all debt and interest charges matured and maturing during the next fiscal year and not otherwise provided for [and] all 
amounts necessary to satisfy final judgments”.  Specific provision is also made for including in the next tax levy payments of 
rebate amounts not otherwise provided for and payment of notes in anticipation of federal or state aid, if the aid is no longer 
forthcoming. 
 
The total amount of a tax levy is limited by statute.  However, the voters in each municipality may vote to exclude from the 
limitation any amounts required to pay debt service on indebtedness incurred before November 4, 1980.  Local voters may 
also vote to exempt specific subsequent bond issues from the limitation.  (See “Tax Limitations” Under “PROPERTY 
TAXATION” below.)  In addition, obligations incurred before November 4, 1980 may be constitutionally entitled to payment 
from taxes in excess of the statutory limit. 
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Except for taxes on the increased value of certain property in designated development districts which may be pledged for the 
payment of debt service on bonds issued to finance economic development projects within such districts, no provision is made 
for a lien on any portion of the tax levy to secure particular bonds or notes or bonds and notes generally (or judgments on 
bonds or notes) in priority to other claims.  Provision is made, however, for borrowing to pay judgments, subject to the General 
Debt Limit.  (See “Debt Limits” under “INDEBTEDNESS” below.)  Subject to the approval of the State Director of Accounts for 
judgments above $10,000, judgments may also be paid from available funds without appropriation and included in the next tax 
levy unless other provision is made. 
 
Court Proceedings.  Massachusetts cities and towns are subject to suit on their general obligation bonds and notes and courts 
of competent jurisdiction have power in appropriate proceedings to order payment of a judgment on the bonds or notes from 
lawfully available funds or, if necessary, to order the city or town to take lawful action to obtain the required money, including 
the raising of it in the next annual tax levy, within the limits prescribed by law.  (See “Tax Limitations” under “PROPERTY 
TAXATION” below.)  In exercising their discretion as to whether to enter such an order, the courts could take into account all 
relevant factors including the current operating needs of the city or town and the availability and adequacy of other remedies.  
The Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court has stated in the past that a judgment against a municipality can be enforced by 
the taking and sale of the property of any inhabitant.  However, there has been no judicial determination as to whether this 
remedy is constitutional under current due process and equal protection standards. 
 
Restricted Funds.  Massachusetts statutes also provide that certain water, gas and electric, community antenna television 
system, telecommunications, sewer, parking meter and passenger ferry fee, community preservation and affordable housing 
receipts may be used only for water, gas and electric, community antenna television system, telecommunications, sewer, 
parking, mitigation of ferry service impacts, community preservation and affordable housing purposes, respectively; 
accordingly, moneys derived from these sources may be unavailable to pay general obligation bonds and notes issued for 
other purposes.  A city or town that accepts certain other statutory provisions may establish an enterprise fund for a utility, 
health care, solid waste, recreational or transportation facility and for police or fire services; under those provisions any surplus 
in the fund is restricted to use for capital expenditures or reduction of user charges.  In addition, subject to certain limits, a city 
or town may annually authorize the establishment of one or more revolving funds in connection with use of certain revenues 
for programs that produce those revenues; interest earned on a revolving fund is treated as general fund revenue.  A city or 
town may also establish an energy revolving loan fund to provide loans to owners of privately-held property in the city or town 
for certain energy conservation and renewable energy projects, and may borrow to establish such a fund.  The loan 
repayments and interest earned on the investment of amounts in the fund shall be credited to the fund.  Also, the annual 
allowance for depreciation of a gas and electric plant or a community antenna television and telecommunications system is 
restricted to use for plant or system renewals and improvements, for nuclear decommissioning costs, and costs of contractual 
commitments, or, with the approval of the State Department of Telecommunications and Energy, to pay debt incurred for plant 
or system reconstruction or renewals.  Revenue bonds and notes issued in anticipation of them may be secured by a prior lien 
on specific revenues.  Receipts from industrial users in connection with industrial revenue financings are also not available for 
general municipal purposes. 
 
State Distributions.  State grants and distributions may in some circumstances be unavailable to pay general obligation bonds 
and notes of a city or town in that the State Treasurer is empowered to deduct from such grants and distributions the amount 
of any debt service paid on “qualified bonds” (See “TYPES OF OBLIGATIONS - Serial Bonds and Notes” under 
“INDEBTEDNESS” below) and any other sums due and payable by the city or town to the Commonwealth or certain other 
public entities, including any unpaid assessments for costs of any public transportation authority (such as the Massachusetts 
Bay Transportation Authority or a regional transit authority) of which it is a member, for costs of the Massachusetts Water 
Resources Authority if the city or town is within the territory served by the Authority, for any debt service due on obligations 
issued to the Massachusetts School Building Authority, or for charges necessary to meet obligations under the 
Commonwealth’s Water Pollution Abatement or Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs, including such charges imposed 
by another local governmental unit that provides wastewater collection or treatment services or drinking water services to the 
city or town. 
 
If a city or town is (or is likely to be) unable to pay principal or interest on its bonds or notes when due, it is required to notify 
the State Commissioner of Revenue.  The Commissioner shall in turn, after verifying the inability, certify the inability to the 
State Treasurer.  The State Treasurer shall pay the due or overdue amount to the paying agent for the bonds or notes, in trust, 
within three days after the certification or one business day prior to the due date (whichever is later).  This payment is limited, 
however, to the estimated amount otherwise distributable by the Commonwealth to the city or town during the remainder of 
the fiscal year (after the deductions mentioned in the foregoing paragraph).  If for any reason any portion of the certified sum 
has not been paid at the end of the fiscal year, the State Treasurer shall pay it as soon as practicable in the next fiscal year to 
the extent of the estimated distributions for that fiscal year.  The sums so paid shall be charged (with interest and 
administrative costs) against the distributions to the city or town. 
 



 

14 

The foregoing does not constitute a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth.  The Commonwealth has not agreed 
to maintain existing levels of state distributions, and the direction to use estimated distributions to pay debt service may be 
subject to repeal by future legislation.  Moreover, adoption of the annual appropriation act has sometimes been delayed 
beyond the beginning of the fiscal year and estimated distributions which are subject to appropriation may be unavailable to 
pay local debt service until they are appropriated. 
 
Bankruptcy.  Enforcement of a claim for payment of principal or interest on general obligation bonds or notes would be 
subject to the applicable provisions of Federal bankruptcy laws and to the provisions of other statutes, if any, hereafter 
enacted by the Congress or the State legislature extending the time for payment or imposing other constraints upon 
enforcement insofar as the same may be constitutionally applied.  Massachusetts municipalities are not currently 
authorized by the Massachusetts General Laws to file a petition for bankruptcy under Federal Bankruptcy laws.  In cases 
involving significant financial difficulties faced by a single city, town or regional school district, the Commonwealth has 
enacted special legislation to permit the appointment of a fiscal overseer, finance control board or, in the most extreme 
cases, a state receiver.  In a limited number of these situations, such special legislation has also authorized the filing of 
federal bankruptcy proceedings, with the prior approval of the Commonwealth.  In each case where such authority was 
granted, it expired at the termination of the Commonwealth’s oversight of the financially distressed city, town or regional 
school district.  To date, no such filings have been approved or made.   
 
Rating 
 
Standard & Poor’s Rating Group has assigned a rating of AA to the Bonds.  The rating reflects only the rating agency's view 
and will be subject to revision or withdrawal, which could affect the market price of the Bonds.  
 
Opinion of Bond Counsel 
 
The unqualified approving opinion as to the validity of the Bonds will be rendered by Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP 
of Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel.  The opinion will be dated the date of original delivery of the Bonds and will 
speak only as of such date.  The proposed form of the legal opinion is set forth in Appendix B hereto. 
 
Except as to matters expressly set forth in their opinion, the scope of engagement of Bond Counsel does not extend to 
passing upon or assuming responsibility for the accuracy or adequacy of any statement made in this Official Statement, 
and they make no representation that they have independently verified the same other than matters expressly set forth as 
their opinion. 
 
Financial Advisory Services of First Southwest Company 
 
First Southwest Company, Boston, Massachusetts serves as financial advisor to the Town of Scituate.  The Town has 
consented to participation by First Southwest Company or any of its affiliates in the public bidding on the Bonds if it so 
desires. 
 
Continuing Disclosure 
 

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the “Rule”), the Issuer will covenant for the benefit of owners of the Bonds to provide certain financial 
information and operating data relating to the Issuer by not later than 270 days after the end of each fiscal year (the 
“Annual Report”), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events.  Other than the Town, there are 
no obligated persons with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule.  The covenants will be contained in a 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the proposed form of which is provided in Appendix C.  The Certificate will be executed 
by the signers of the Bonds, and incorporated by reference in the Bonds.   
 

The Issuer has never failed to comply in all material respects with any previous undertakings to provide annual 
reports or notices of significant events in accordance with the Rule. 
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THE TOWN OF SCITUATE 
 

General 
 

The Town of Scituate (the "Town"), which was incorporated in 1636, is located in Plymouth County.  It is approximately 25 
miles southeast of Boston and 18 miles east of Brockton.  The Town is bordered by the Atlantic Ocean on the east and 
north, Marshfield on the south, Norwell on the southwest, Hingham on the west, and Cohasset on the northwest.  It is 
approximately 17 square miles in area.  The Town has a year round population of 18,301, and 30,000 in summer months.  
Scituate is a residential community with a substantial summer population.  It has 57 miles of tidal shoreline that includes 
six beaches and saltwater recreation areas for boating, fishing and other marine sports.  Its harbor is home to 
approximately 1,300 boats in season and is one of the most sheltered/protected harbors on the East Coast. 
 

Local Government 
 

Local legislative decisions are made by a town meeting open to all residents.  Subject to legislative decisions made by 
town meeting, the affairs of the Town are generally administered by a five member Board of Selectmen and a Town 
Administrator. 
 

Local taxes are assessed by a three-member board of assessors elected for staggered three-year terms.  Local school 
affairs are administered by a school committee of five persons also elected for staggered three year terms. 
 

Principal Executive Officers 
 

Following are the principal executive officers of the Town: 
 

  Term and Manner Expiration 
  Office  Name      of Selection   of Term 
Selectmen John F. Danehey Elected - 3-year term 2013 
  Richard Murray Elected – 3-year term 2012 
  Joseph P. Norton Elected - 3-year term 2013 
  Shawn Harris Elected – 3-year term 2011 
  Tony Vegnani Elected - 3-year term 2011 
Town Administrator Patricia Vinchesi Appointed Indefinite 
Treasurer/Collector Jane C. Lepardo Appointed 2012 
Accountant Mary Gallagher Appointed 2013 
Town Clerk Bernice R. Brown Elected - 3 year term 2012 
Town Counsel Murphy, Hesse, Toomey & Lehane  Indefinite  Indefinite 
 
Municipal Services 
 

Public Services - The Town's Public Works Department is divided into five divisions:  (1) Highways and Grounds; (2) 
Engineering; (3) Transfer Station; (4) Water; and (5) Sewer.   Transfer Station and Water and Sewer divisions operate as 
enterprise funds. 
 

Water - The Department of Public Works Water Division is responsible for the construction, operation and maintenance of 
Scituate's municipal water system.  The Water Division supervisor is responsible for the daily operations of the Water 
Division, which provides for the water service needs of nearly 100% of the population.  Scituate's water supply is obtained 
from six gravel packed wells along with a reservoir.  The Water Department is self supporting including debt service. 
 

Sewer Facilities- The Town’s sewer system is comprised of the North River Water Pollution Treatment Facility and a 
sanitary sewer collection system with eight pump stations.  Sewer service is available to 33 percent of all residential 
properties in Scituate and to the business districts of Scituate Harbor & Greenbush.  The Town discharges its sewage into 
its own treatment facility.  Commercial and residential users are charged, quarterly, a minimum and an excess meter 
reading.  In response to a consent decree, construction was completed on an upgrade and expansion to the Town’s 
wastewater treatment facility at a cost of approximately $15,117,000.  This improvement has the potential to allow 2,000 
to 3,000 additional homeowners to hook up into the new facility, which will effectively sewer 70% of the entire Town.  To 
complete new tie ins, funds in the amount of $2,000,000 and $13,544,000 were appropriated at a March, 2000 and March, 
2002 Annual Town Meeting respectively for the design and construction of the Sanitary Sewer System to the 
Greenbush/Reservoir and First, Second and Third Cliff areas of the Town.  As of May 2009, these projects were 
completed at a total cost of $14,444,853.  At the March, 2009 Annual Town Meeting $6,400,000 was appropriated to 
extend the sewer system into the Musquashicut Pond Area of North Scituate.  The borrowing under taken by the Town to 
fund these projects are to be re-paid through betterment assessments to the abutters (residential, businesses and 
commercial properties) benefiting from the extension of the sanitary service system to their area.  In the past two years, 
the Town has implemented an aggressive infrastructure upgrade, and expansion program for water, and sewer funded by 
users.  The Sewer operation is self supporting including debt service. 
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Safety Services - The Scituate Police Department carries out investigative, enforcement, support and educational 
functions in order to promote the safety and general welfare of the citizens of the Town.  The Department consists of a 
chief, three Lieutenants, four Sergeants, one Detective, 1 K9 Officer, one Community Service Officer, one DARE Officer, 
one Traffic Enforcement Officer, seventeen Patrol Officer, and five Dispatchers. Equipment consists of nine patrol cars, 
two unmarked cars, and one Animal Control vehicle. 
 

The Town of Scituate has three fire stations.  At the present time, the department has a chief, deputy chief, four captains, 
four lieutenants and 44 full-time fire fighters.  They handle their own dispatching and have four full-time dispatchers and 
one part-time dispatcher. The Safety Services Department is also responsible for the Town's advanced life support 
ambulance service and emergency medical and rescue operation. 
 

Library Services - The municipal library was completed and occupied in 1978 and the construction cost was fully funded 
by the federal government.  The library offers a variety of services and programs to Scituate residents in all age groups. 
Traditional library services are enhanced by modern technologies and innovative information systems.  The library is 
centrally located and serves as a convenient meeting place for community groups.  The Board of Library Trustees is 
responsible for establishing policies governing the operation of the library. 
 

Recreation - The Town operates two public marinas comprised of 236 slips with permanent and transient docking 
facilities for commercial and pleasure boats.  Fifteen additional slips will be added in the spring of 2011.  The Recreation 
Department oversees, and maintains 17 athletic fields, and offers several programs for reasonable fees.  The marina is 
accounted for as an enterprise fund and is completely self-supporting, including debt service.  The Town also operates an 
18-hole municipal golf course.  The course, which opened in June 1997, is also self-supporting, including debt service, 
and is an enterprise fund as well. The Recreation Department offers several programs for reasonable fees. 
 

Public Schools – Currently, the public school system of the Town consists of four elementary schools (K-6) with an 
enrollment of 1,885 students; one intermediate school (7-8) with an enrollment of 476 students; and one senior high 
school with an enrollment of 839 students.  The Town also has a Pre-K program which is housed at the high school with 
an enrollment of 68 students. 
 

The school system has 249 teachers, 13 administrators, 7 nurses and 130 support personnel.  The approximate 
student/teacher ratio is 14 to 1 at the elementary, 12 to 1 at the intermediate levels, and 14 to 1 at the high school level. 
 

Education 
 

The Town provides a comprehensive school system which offers education from grades Pre-K-12, as well as special 
needs programs.  In addition, the Town has an Adult Evening School Center equipped with the latest facilities for 
computer-based studies located in the Senior High School.  Vocational education is provided by the South Shore 
Regional Vocational-Technical School District, of which the Town is a member.  The following table sets forth the trend in 
the Town’s public school enrollments: 
 

   Average Annual Enrollments (1)    
  2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11   
 Pre-K 74 74 72 68 78 
 Grades K/6 1,800 1,984 1,877 1,885 1,859 
 Grades 7/8 480 493 462 476 515 
 Grades 9/12 864 882 823 839 830 
 Ungraded       7        7        13           9            4                          
 Total 3,218 3,440 3,247 3,277 3,286 
__________________________________ 
(1)  As of October 1 each school year. 
 

  Projected Annual Enrollments 
  2011/12 2012/13 
 

 Pre-K 80 80 
 Grades K/6 1,875 1,840 
 Grades 7/8 530 535 
 Grades 9/12 860 860 
 Ungraded        4        5 
 Total 3,349 3,320 

  
Source: Superintendent of Schools. 
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Population Trends 
 
 2010 2000 1990 1980 1970 
 18,266 19,317 18,002 17,316 16,744 
  
Source:  Town Clerk. 

 
Age, Income and Wealth Levels 
 

Scituate Massachusetts United States

Median Age:

2000 40.7 36.5 35.3

1990 36.9 33.6 32.9

Median Family Income:

2000 86,058$  61,664$         50,046$       

1990 59,168    44,367           35,225         

Per Capita Income:

2000 33,940$  25,952$         21,587$       

1990 11,203    17,224           14,420          
  
Source:  U.S. Bureau of the Census. 
 

Largest Employers 
 

The Town is primarily a residential community and, excluding the Town itself, there are only two significant employers:  
Life Care Center, a nursing home employing 185 persons, and Scituate Marketplace, a supermarket employing 100 
persons.  No other employers have more than 100 employees, although several restaurants, numerous banks, another 
nursing home and a concrete pipe manufacturer employ between 50 and 99 people. In addition, a private 
business/residential development worth over $15,000,000 was recently completed in the Harbor area adding 37 
condominiums, all of which are occupied, plus retail space.   
 
Building Permits 
 
The following table sets forth the number of building permits issued and the estimated dollar value of new construction 
and alterations for the last five calendar years: 
 

  New Construction  
  Fiscal  Residential/Non-Residential Additions/Alterations            Total  
   Year     No.   $   No.    $   No.   $  
 
 2010 29 $9,460,130 478 $4,042,831 507 $13,502,961 
 2009 60 10,689,900 493 10,478,800 553 21,168,700 
 2008 16 5,598,500 614 15,685,996 630 21,284,496 
 2007 104 22,667,992 618 19,385,386 722 42,053,378 
 2006 87 14,589,076 633 17,309,763 720 31,898,839 
  
Source:  Building Commissioner. 

 
The Town has a number of permitted development projects currently underway.  The major developments include: 
 

• Riverway/60 Driftway – 26 townhouse condominiums with commercial building 

• Tilden Road – three single family homes currently under construction 

• Village at South River – 14 townhouses with 16 slip marina in the spring of 2011 

• Stockbridge Woods – 68 units (48 rental units and 20 single family homes); site work has started 

• Inly School Expansion – additions to several buildings; construction of new 24,000 square foot building 
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PROPERTY TAXATION 
 
The principal revenue source of the Town is the tax on real and personal property.  The amount to be levied in each year 
is the amount appropriated or required by law to be raised for municipal expenditures less estimated receipts from other 
sources and less appropriations voted from funds on hand.  The total amount levied is subject to certain limits prescribed 
by law; for a description of those limits, see "Tax Limitations" below.  As to the inclusion of debt service and final 
judgments (see “Securities and Remedies” under “THE BONDS” above). 
 
The estimated receipts for a fiscal year from sources other than the property tax may not exceed the actual receipts 
during the preceding fiscal year from the same sources unless approved by the State Commissioner of Revenue.  
Excepting special funds the use of which is otherwise provided for by law, the deduction for appropriations voted from 
funds on hand for a fiscal year cannot exceed the "free cash" as of the beginning of the prior fiscal year as certified by the 
State Director of Accounts plus up to nine months' collections and receipts on account of earlier years' taxes after that 
date.  Subject to certain adjustments, free cash is surplus revenue less uncollected overdue property taxes from earlier 
years. 
 
Although an allowance is made in the tax levy for abatements (see "Abatements and Overlay" below), no reserve is 
generally provided for uncollectible real property taxes.  Since some of the levy is inevitably not collected, this creates a 
cash deficiency which may or may not be offset by other items (see "Taxation to Meet Deficits" below). 
 
Tax Levy Computation 
 
The following table illustrates the manner in which the tax levy was determined for the following fiscal years: 
 

Fiscal 2011 Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007

Gross Amount to be Raised:

Appropriations 66,820,371$        65,190,058$        64,554,908$         61,556,233$         56,543,827$         

Other Local Expenditures 33,203                 84,589                 299,981                295,287                328,989                

State & County Charges 568,260               523,756               500,684                487,978                480,385                

Overlay Reserve 250,000               250,000               250,000                250,000                250,000                

Total Gross Amount to be Raised 67,671,834          66,048,403          65,605,573           62,589,498           57,603,201           

Offsets:

Estimated Receipts - State 6,689,275            7,087,410            8,040,099             7,331,771             6,733,748             

Estimated Receipts - Local 15,179,413          16,064,798          15,959,681           14,747,229           14,366,970           

Appropriated:

Free Cash 376,826               -                       92,918                  215,000                529,639                

Other Available Funds 2,094,674            842,287               512,591                672,228                431,314                

Free Cash & Other Revenue

Used to Reduce the Tax Rate -                       -                       200,000                500,000                500,000                

Total Offsets 24,340,188          23,994,495          24,805,289           23,466,228           22,561,671           

Net Amount to be Raised (Tax Levy) 43,334,646$        42,053,907$        40,800,284$         39,123,270$         35,041,529$         

Property Valuation 3,851,701,910$   3,940,605,320$   4,174,489,410$    4,243,304,810$    4,216,790,550$    

Tax Rate per $1,000 (1) 11.25$                 10.56$                 9.68$                    9.22$                    8.31$                    

 
  
Source:  Board of Assessors. 
 
(1)  The Town taxes all property at a single rate (residential, commercial, industrial, personal). 
Note: Property tax rates may not be set by the local assessors until they have been approved by the Commissioner of Revenue. 
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Valuations and Tax Levies 
 
Property is classified for the purpose of taxation according to its use.  The legislature has in substance created three classes 
of taxable property: (1) residential real property, (2) open space land, and (3) all other (commercial, industrial and  personal 
property).  Within limits, cities and towns are given the option of determining the share of the annual levy to be borne by each 
of the three categories.  The share required to be borne by residential real property is at least 50 per cent of its share of the 
total taxable valuation; the effective rate for open space must be at least 75 per cent of the effective rate for residential real 
property; and the share of commercial, industrial and personal property must not exceed 175 percent of their share of the total 
valuation.  A city or town may also exempt up to 20 percent of the valuation of residential real property (where used as the 
taxpayer’s principal residence) and up to 10 percent of the valuation of commercial real property (where occupied by certain 
small businesses).  Property may not be classified in a city or town until the State Commissioner of Revenue certifies that all 
property in the city or town has been assessed at its fair cash value.  Such certification must take place every three years, or 
pursuant to a revised schedule as may be issued by the Commissioner. 
 
Related statutes provide that certain forest land, agricultural or horticultural land (assessed at the value it has for these 
purposes) and recreational land (assessed on the basis of its use at a maximum of 25 percent of its fair cash value) are all to 
be taxed at the rate applicable to commercial property.  Land classified as forest land is valued for this purpose at five percent 
of fair cash value but not less than ten dollars per acre. 
 
In order to determine appropriate relative values for the purposes of certain distributions to and assessments upon cities and 
towns, the Commissioner of Revenue biennially makes his own redetermination of the fair cash value of the taxable property 
in each municipality.  This is known as the “equalized value”. 
 
Valuation of real and personal property in the Town of Scituate is established by the Board of Assessors.  The Town 
generally takes real property into tax title for nonpayment of taxes within two years. 
 
The following table sets forth the trend in the Town’s assessed and equalized valuations: 
 

Fiscal Equalized 

Year Real Property Personal Property Total Valuation (2)

2011 3,808,943,800$   42,758,110$           3,851,701,910$    4,326,753,800$     89.0 %

2010 3,940,605,320     41,772,270             3,982,377,590      4,575,033,600       87.0

2009 4,174,489,410     40,416,000             4,214,905,410      4,575,033,600       92.1

2008 4,209,528,500     33,776,310             4,243,304,810      4,327,989,400       98.0

2007 4,186,292,230     30,498,320             4,216,790,550      4,327,989,400       97.4

Valuation as a Percent

of Equalized

AssessedAssessed Valuations (1)

 

  
(1) Source:  Board of Assessors. 
(2) Source:  Massachusetts Department of Revenue - Equalized valuations are established as of January 1 of even-numbered years 

for the next two years.   

 
Classification of Property 
 

Assessed % of Assessed % of Assessed % of
Type Valuation Total Valuation Total Valuation Total

Residential 3,675,696,207$    95.4       % 3,804,980,088$    95.5       % 4,029,488,420$       95.6      %
Commercial 127,662,193         3.3         130,039,832         3.3         138,848,190            3.3        
Industrial 5,585,400             0.1         5,585,400             0.1         6,152,800                0.1        
Personal 42,758,110           1.1         41,772,270           1.0         40,416,000              1.0        

Total 3,851,701,910$    100.0     % 3,982,377,590$    100.0     % 4,214,905,410$       100.0    %

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009Fiscal 2011

 

  
Source:  Massachusetts Department of Revenue. 
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Largest Taxpayers 
 
The following is a list of the Town’s ten largest taxpayers based upon assessed valuations for fiscal 2011, all of whom are 
current in their tax payments: 
 

Total Assessed Fiscal 2011 % of
Valuation for Tax Total 

Name Type of Business Fiscal 2011 Levy Net Levy

Columbia Gas of Massachusetts Utility 8,947,930$        100,664$         0.23         %
National Grid Utility 8,656,640          97,387             0.22         
Verizon New England Inc. Utility 8,220,800          92,484             0.21         

Abbott P M/Chamberlain Mng Co. Manufacturer 7,921,400          89,116             0.21         
Kent Village Associations Sub. Housing 5,778,800          65,012             0.15         

Rolling Lakes II LLC Real Estate 5,486,500          61,723             0.14         
HCRI Massachusetts Prop, Inc. Tr Nursing Home 4,283,000        48,184            0.11       

Hatherly Country Club Country Club 3,822,880          43,007             0.10         
Suburban Realty Trust Real Estate 3,797,900          42,727             0.10         
First Parish Road Inc. Real Estate 3,522,700          39,630             0.09         

    Total 60,438,550$      679,934$         1.57         %
 

 
Abatements and Overlay 
 
The Town is authorized to increase each tax levy by an amount approved by the Commissioner of Revenue as an 
"overlay" to provide for tax abatements.  If abatements are granted in excess of the applicable overlay, the resultant 
"overlay deficit" is required to be added to the next tax levy.  An abatement granted after a tax payment has been made is 
accounted for as a refund on the books of the Town. 
 
Abatements are granted where exempt real or personal property has been assessed or where taxable real or personal 
property has been overvalued or disproportionately valued.  The assessors may also abate uncollectible personal 
property taxes.  They may abate real and personal property taxes on broad grounds (including inability to pay) with the 
approval of the State Commissioner of Revenue, but uncollected real property taxes are ordinarily not written off until they 
become municipal "tax titles" by purchase at the public sale or by taking, at which time the tax is written off in full by 
reserving the amount of the tax and charging surplus. 
 
The following table sets forth the amount of overlay reserve for the last five fiscal years and abatements or exemptions 
granted during the fiscal year against each levy: 
 
 Exemptions/ 
  Overlay Allowance   Abatements Overlay 
   Fiscal Gross Tax  Dollar Percent  Granted thru  Excess 
    Year      Levy     Amount of Levy   Fiscal Year   (Deficit) 
 
     2010 $42,053,907 $250,000 0.6% $151,676 $98,324 
     2009 40,800,384 250,000 0.6 239,873 112,127 
     2008 39,123,270 250,000 0.6 120,244 99,756 
     2007 35,041,529 250,000 0.6 92,941 157,059 
     2006 33,028,907 239,440 0.7 130,494 108,946 
  
Source:  Board of Assessors. 
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Tax Collections 
 

The Town of Scituate has accepted a statute providing for quarterly tax payments.  Under the statute, preliminary tax 
payments are due on August 1 and November 1, with payment of the actual tax bill (after credit is given for the preliminary 
payments) in installments on February 1 and May 1 if actual tax bills are mailed by December 31.  Interest accrues on 
delinquent taxes at the rate of 14 percent per annum.  The following table sets forth the trend in the Town's tax collections: 
 
     Overlay     % of Net 
 Fiscal    Gross Reserve for        Net  Collected at 
  Year  Tax Levy Abatements Tax Levy (1) June 30 (2,3) 
 

 2010 $42,053,907 $250,000 $41,803,907                      97.5% 
 2009 40,800,284  250,000 40,550,284                 97.9   

 

 2008 39,123,270 250,000 38,873,270                     97.4
 

 2007 35,041,529 250,000 34,791,529 97.3
 

 2006 33,028,907 239,440 32,789,467 98.6 
  
Source: Board of Assessors as to rates and levies; Town Accountant as to collections. 
(1) Net after deduction of overlay for abatements. 
(2) I.e., at the end of the fiscal year for which levied. 
(3) Actual collections less refunds, but excluding proceeds of tax titles and possessions attributable to that year's levy.  Non-cash 

credits which may be abated later are not included in the amount allowed for refunds here. 

 
Tax Titles and Possessions 
 
Real property (land and buildings) is subject to a lien for the taxes assessed upon it, subject to any paramount federal lien 
and subject to bankruptcy and insolvency laws.  (In addition, real property is subject to a lien for certain unpaid municipal 
charges or fees.)  If the property has been transferred, an unenforced lien expires on the fourth December 31 after the 
end of the fiscal year to which the tax relates.  If the property has not been transferred by the fourth December 31, an 
unenforced lien expires upon a later transfer of the property.  Provision is made, however, for continuation of the lien 
where it could not be enforced because of a legal impediment. 
 
The persons against whom real or personal property taxes are assessed are personally liable for the tax (subject to 
bankruptcy and insolvency laws).  In the case of real property, this personal liability is effectively extinguished by sale or 
taking of the property as described below. 
 
Massachusetts law permits a municipality either to sell by public sale (at which the municipality may become the 
purchaser) or to take real property for non-payment of taxes.  In either case the property owner can redeem the property 
by paying the unpaid taxes, with interest and other charges, but if the right of redemption is not exercised within six 
months (which may be extended an additional year in the case of certain installment payments) it can be foreclosed by 
petition to the Land Court.  Upon such foreclosure, a tax title purchased or taken by the municipality becomes a "tax 
possession" and may be held and disposed of in the same manner as other land held for municipal purposes.   
 
Taxes Outstanding 
 
The following table presents the trend in aggregate taxes outstanding, tax titles and tax possessions: 
 
  Aggregate Overdue 
 As of     Property Taxes        Tax 
  6/30       at FY-End (1)     Tax Titles Possessions 
 

 2010 $736,429 $1,036,811 $162,378 
 2009 871,218 855,808 159,058 
 2008 911,125 763,405 237,476 
 2007 744,412 602,776 192,068 
 2006 644,704 423,919 190,043 
  
Source: Town Accountant. 
(1) For five prior fiscal years.  Excludes abated taxes and tax deferrals.  Includes taxes in litigation, if any. 
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Sale of Tax Receivables 
 
Cities and towns are authorized to sell delinquent property tax receivables by public sale, either individually or in bulk.  
The Town does not expect to utilize this option at the present time. 
 
Municipal Tax Amnesty 
 

Pursuant to recent legislation, a municipality may establish a municipal tax amnesty program expiring not later than June 30, 
2011.  Under such program, the municipality may waive, during the amnesty period, certain penalties, fees, charges and 
accrued interest, provided the taxpayer pays the amount of the tax to which such penalties, fees, charges, and accrued 
interest relates. 
 
Taxation to Meet Deficits 
 
As noted elsewhere (see “Abatements and Overlay” above) overlay deficits, i.e. tax abatements in excess of the overlay 
included in the tax levy to cover abatements, are required to be added to the next tax levy. It is generally understood that 
revenue deficits, i.e. those resulting from non-property tax revenues being less than anticipated, are also required to be added 
to the tax levy (at least to the extent not covered by surplus revenue). 
 
Amounts lawfully expended since the prior tax levy and not included therein are also required to be included in the annual tax 
levy. The circumstances under which this can arise are limited since municipal departments are generally prohibited from 
incurring liabilities in excess of appropriations except for major disasters, mandated items, contracts in aid of housing and 
renewal projects and other long-term contracts. In addition, utilities must be paid at established rates and certain established 
salaries, e.g. civil service, must legally be paid for work actually performed, whether or not covered by appropriations. 
 
In the opinion of Bond Counsel, cities and towns are authorized to appropriate sums, and thus to levy taxes, to cover deficits 
arising from other causes, such as “free cash” deficits arising from a failure to collect taxes.  This is not generally understood, 
however, and it has not been the practice to levy taxes to cover free cash deficits.  Except to the extent that such deficits have 
been reduced or eliminated by subsequent collections of uncollected taxes (including sales of tax titles and tax possessions), 
lapsed appropriations, non-property tax revenues in excess of estimates, other miscellaneous items or funding loans 
authorized by special act, they remain in existence. 
 
Tax Limitations 
 
Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws, also known as Proposition 2½, imposes two separate limits on the annual tax 
levy of a city or town. 
 
The primary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed 2½ percent of the full and fair cash value.  If a city or town exceeds 
the primary limitation, it must reduce its tax levy by at least 15 percent annually until it is in compliance, provided that the 
reduction can be reduced in any year to not less than 7½ percent by majority vote of the voters, or to less than 7½ percent by 
two-thirds vote of the voters. 
 
For cities and towns at or below the primary limit, a secondary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed the maximum levy 
limit for the preceding fiscal year as determined by the State Commissioner of Revenue by more than 2½ percent, subject to 
exceptions for property added to the tax rolls or property which has had an increase, other than as part of a general 
revaluation, in its assessed valuation over the prior year’s valuation. 
 
This “growth” limit on the tax levy may be exceeded in any year by a majority vote of the voters, but an increase in the 
secondary or growth limit under this procedure does not permit a tax levy in excess of the primary limitation, since the two 
limitations apply independently. In addition, if the voters vote to approve taxes in excess of the “growth” limit for the purpose of 
funding a stabilization fund, such increased amount may only be taken into account for purposes of calculating the maximum 
levy limit in each subsequent year if the board of selectmen of a town or the city council of a city votes by a two-thirds vote to 
appropriate such increased amount in such subsequent year to the stabilization fund. 
The applicable tax limits may also be reduced in any year by a majority vote of the voters. 
 
The State Commissioner of Revenue may adjust any tax limit “to counterbalance the effects of extraordinary, non-recurring 
events which occurred during the base year”. 
 
The statute further provides that the voters may exclude from the taxes subject to the tax limits and from the calculation of the 
maximum tax levy (a) the amount required to pay debt service on bonds and notes issued before November 4, 1980, if the 
exclusion is approved by a majority vote of the voters, and (b) the amount required to pay debt service on any specific 
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subsequent issue for which similar approval is obtained.  Even with voter approval, the holders of the obligations for which 
unlimited taxes may be assessed do not have a statutory priority or security interest in the portion of the tax levy attributable to 
such obligations.  It should be noted that Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44, Section 20 requires that the taxes 
excluded from the levy limit to pay debt service on any such bonds and notes be calculated based on the true interest cost of 
the issue.  Accordingly, the Department of Revenue limits the amount of taxes which may be levied in each year to pay debt 
service on any such bonds and notes to the amount of such debt service, less a pro rata portion of any original issue premium 
received by the city or town that was not applied to pay costs of issuance. 
 

Voters may also exclude from the Proposition 2½ limits the amount required to pay specified capital outlay expenditures or for 
the city or town’s apportioned share for certain capital outlay expenditures by a regional governmental unit.  In addition, the 
city council of a city, with the approval of the mayor if required, or the board of selectmen or the town council of a town may 
vote to exclude from the Proposition 2½ limits taxes raised in lieu of sewer or water charges to pay debt service on bonds or 
notes issued by the municipality (or by an independent authority, commission or district) for water or sewer purposes, provided 
that the municipality’s sewer or water charges are reduced accordingly. 
 

In addition, Proposition 2½ limits the annual increase in the total assessments on cities and towns by any county, district, 
authority, the Commonwealth or any other governmental entity (except regional school districts, the MWRA and certain 
districts for which special legislation provides otherwise) to the sum of (a) 2½ percent of the prior year’s assessments and (b) 
“any increases in costs, charges or fees for services customarily provided locally or for services subscribed to at local option”.  
Regional water districts, regional sewerage districts and regional veterans districts may exceed these limitations under 
statutory procedures requiring a two-thirds vote of the district’s governing body and either approval of the local appropriating 
authorities (by two-thirds vote in districts with more than two members or by majority vote in two-member districts) or approval 
of the registered voters in a local election (in the case of two-member districts).  Under Proposition 2½ any State law to take 
effect on or after January 1, 1981 imposing a direct service or cost obligation on a city or town will become effective only if 
accepted or voluntarily funded by the city or town or if State funding is provided.  Similarly, State rules or regulations imposing 
additional costs on a city or town or laws granting or increasing local tax exemptions are to take effect only if adequate State 
appropriations are provided.  These statutory provisions do not apply to costs resulting from judicial decisions. 
 

Pledged Taxes 
 

Taxes on certain property in designated development districts may be pledged for the payment of costs of economic 
development projects within such districts and may therefore be unavailable for other municipal purposes.  (See “Tax 
Increment Financing for Development Districts” under “TOWN FINANCES” below). 
 

Unused Levy Capacity (1) 
 

The following table sets forth the Town's tax levy limits and unused levy capacity for the following fiscal years: 
 

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Primary Levy Ceiling (2) 96,292,548$       99,559,440$       105,372,635$     106,082,620$     105,419,764$     

Prior Fiscal Year Levy Limit 40,315,308$       38,999,766$       37,583,047$       33,546,920$       32,290,090$       

2.5% Levy Growth 1,007,883           974,994              939,576              838,673              807,252              

Current Fiscal Year New Growth (3) 290,389              340,548              477,143              455,725              449,578              

Current Fiscal Year Override -                      -                      -                      2,741,729           -                      

Growth Levy Limit 41,613,580         40,315,308         38,999,766         37,583,047         33,546,920         

Current Fiscal Year Debt Exclusion 1,748,238           1,778,026           1,818,013           1,569,639           1,496,874           

Tax Levy Limit 43,361,818         42,093,334         40,817,779         39,152,686         35,043,794         

Tax Levy 43,331,646         42,053,907         40,800,284         39,123,270         35,041,529         

Unused Levy Capacity (4) 30,172                39,427                17,495                29,416                2,265                  

Unused Primary Levy Capacity (5) 54,678,968$       59,244,132$       66,372,869$       68,499,573$       71,872,844$       

For Fiscal Year

 

  
(1) Source:  Massachusetts Department of Revenue. 
(2) 2.5% of assessed valuation. 
(3) Allowed increase for new valuations - certified by the Department of Revenue. 
(4) Tax Levy Limit less Tax Levy. 
(5) Primary Levy Ceiling less Growth Levy Limit. 
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Initiative Petitions 
 

Various proposals have been made in recent years for legislative amendments to the Massachusetts Constitution to 
impose limits on state and local taxes.  To be adopted, such amendments must be approved by two successive 
legislatures and then by the voters at a state election. 
 

Community Preservation Act 
 

The Massachusetts Community Preservation Act (the “CPA”) permits cities and towns that accept its provisions to levy a 
surcharge on its real property tax levy and to receive state matching funds for the acquisition, creation, preservation, 
rehabilitation and restoration of open space, historic resources and affordable housing.  The provisions of the CPA must 
be accepted by the voters of the city or town at an election after such provisions have first been accepted by either a vote 
of the legislative body of the city or town or an initiative petition signed by 5% of its registered voters. 
 

A city or town may approve a surcharge of up to 3% of the real property tax levy, and it may accept one or more 
exemptions to the surcharge under the CPA, including an exemption for low-income individuals and families and for low 
and moderate-income senior citizens, an exemption for $100,000 of the value of each taxable parcel of residential real 
property, and an exemption for commercial and industrial properties in cities and towns with classified tax rates.  The 
surcharge is not counted in the total taxes assessed for the purpose of determining the permitted levy amount under 
Proposition 2 ½ (see “Tax Limitations” under “PROPERTY TAX”).  A city or town may revoke its acceptance of the 
provisions of the CPA at any time after 5 years from the date of such acceptance and may change the amount of the 
surcharge or the exemptions to the surcharge at any time, provided that any such revocation or change must be approved 
pursuant to the same process as acceptance of the CPA. 
 

Any city or town that accepts the provisions of the CPA will receive annual state matching grants to supplement amounts 
raised by its surcharge on the real property tax levy.  The state matching funds are raised from certain recording and filing 
fees of the registers of deeds.  Those amounts are deposited into a state trust fund and are distributed to cities and towns 
that have accepted the provision of the CPA, which distributions are not subject to annual appropriation by the state 
legislature.  The amount distributed to each city and town is based on a statutory formula which requires that 80% of the 
amount in the state trust fund be used to match an equal percentage of the amount raised locally by each city and town, 
and that the remaining 20% of the amount in the fund be distributed only to those cities and towns that levy the maximum 
3% surcharge base on a formula which takes into account equalized property valuation and population, resulting in larger 
distributions to those communities with low valuations and small populations.  The total state distribution made to any city 
or town may not, however, exceed 100% of the amount raised locally by the surcharge on the real property tax levy. 
 

The amounts raised by the surcharge on real property taxes and received in state matching funds are required to be 
deposited in a dedicated community preservation fund.  Each city or town that accepts the provisions of the CPA is 
required to establish a community preservation committee to study the community preservation needs of the community 
and to make recommendations to the legislative body of the city or town regarding the community preservation projects 
that should be funded from the community preservation fund.  Upon the recommendations of the committee, the legislative 
body of the city or town may appropriate amounts from the fund for permitted community preservation purposes or may 
reserve amounts for spending in future fiscal years, provided that at least 10% of the total annual revenues to the fund 
must be spent or set aside for open space purposes, 10% for historic resource purposes and 10% for affordable housing 
purposes. 
 

The CPA authorizes cities and towns that accept its provisions to issue bonds and notes in anticipation of the receipt of 
surcharge revenues to finance community preservation projects approved under the provisions of the CPA.  Bonds and 
notes issued under the CPA are general obligations of the city or town and are payable from amounts on deposit in the 
community preservation fund.  In the event that a city or town revokes its acceptance of the provisions of the CPA, the 
surcharge shall remain in effect until all contractual obligations incurred by the city of town prior to such revocation, 
including the payment of bonds or notes issued under the CPA, have been fully discharged. 
 

The Town adopted the Community Preservation Act in March of 2002, and has used the funds strategically to enhance 
the quality, and character of the community.  It has also created an Affordable Housing Trust to provide a variety in 
housing stock.  The table below shows the amounts surcharged by the Town.  In fiscal year 2010, the Town has also 
received $376,762 in state matching funds.  

 

 

 Fiscal Year Surcharge 
 

 2010 $1,000,167 
 2009 968,068 
 2008 937,589 
 2007 843,939 
 2006 785,869 
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TOWN FINANCES 
 
The Budget and Appropriation Process 
 
The annual budget, and appropriation process is governed by the Town Charter, and General Bylaws.  The Charter 
requires the Town Administrator to submit, and recommend a balanced operation, and capital budget plan.  These 
budgets are submitted in accordance with established financial policies based on detailed revenue, and expenditure 
forecasting established by the Town Administrator, and the Financial Forecasting Committee. 
 
In 2009, the Town engaged a new Town Administrator with 25 years of municipal management experience who had just 
recently been Deputy Executive Director of the Springfield Finance Control Board.  The Town Administrator established a 
financial team to overhaul the budget process to increase financial stability, and reserves.  This team includes the 
Treasurer/Collector with over 25 years of collection experience in the private and public sector; the Town Accountant with 
28 years of accounting experience; and the Director of Assessing with 30 years of assessing experience. 
 
The annual appropriations of the Town are ordinarily made at the annual meeting which usually takes place in April.  
Appropriations may also be voted at special meetings.  Every town must have an appropriation, advisory, or finance 
committee.  The committee provides recommendations on proposed expenditures recommended by the Town 
Administrator, and the Board of Selectmen at the Annual Town meeting. 
 
Water and sewer department expenditures are generally included in the budgets adopted by city councils and town 
meetings, but electric and gas department funds may be appropriated by the municipal light boards.  Under certain 
legislation, any city or town which accepts the legislation may provide that the appropriation for the operating costs of any 
department may be offset, in whole or in part, by estimated receipts from fees charged for services provided by the 
department.  The Town has no municipal gas or electric departments. 
 
The school budget is limited to the total amount appropriated by the town meeting, but the school committee retains full 
power to allocate the funds appropriated. 
 
State and county assessments, abatements in excess of overlay, principal and interest not otherwise provided for, and 
final judgments are included in the tax levy whether or not included in the budget.  Revenues are not required to be set 
forth in the budget, but estimated non-tax revenues are taken into account by the assessors in fixing the tax levy.  (See 
"PROPERTY TAXATION" above.) 
 
Operating Budget Trends 
 
The following table sets forth the trend in the Town’s operating budgets: 
 

Appropriated Appropriated Appropriated Appropriated Appropriated
Fiscal 2011 Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007

General Government 2,367,954$      2,220,164$      2,219,965$     2,115,706$     2,043,179$     

Public Safety 7,378,216        7,511,789        7,504,996       7,434,903       6,794,938       
Public Works 2,914,394        2,883,299        2,969,143       2,833,385       2,691,823       
Human Services 451,985           455,415           433,330          433,848          394,814          

Education 27,863,448      28,222,543      28,565,477     27,556,187     25,013,851     
Recreation 1,077,103        1,192,009        1,173,513       1,159,227       885,972          

Debt Service 2,276,194        2,228,460        2,307,447       1,534,883       1,457,210       
Pensions and Benefits 9,376,848        8,271,952        7,774,878       7,331,722       6,578,592       
Total 53,706,142$    52,985,631$    52,948,749$   50,399,861$   45,860,379$   

 
  
Source:  Town Accountant. 
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Education Reform 
 

State legislation known as the Education Reform Act of 1993, as amended, imposes certain minimum expenditure 
requirements on municipalities with respect to funding for education and related programs, and may affect the level of 
state aid to be received for education.  The requirements are determined on the basis of formulas affected by various 
measures of wealth and income, enrollments, prior levels of local spending and state aid, and other factors.  Since its 
passage, the Town has complied with the Act and appropriations for education have equaled or exceeded the minimum 
required level.  In fiscal 2010, the appropriation exceeded the minimum amount by $3,838,756. 
 
Revenues 
 
Property Taxes:  Property taxes are the major source of revenue for the Town.  The total amount levied is subject to 
certain limits prescribed by law; for a description of those limits see "PROPERTY TAXATION - Tax Limitations," above. 
 

State Distributions 
 
In addition to grants for specified capital purposes (some of which are payable over the life of the bonds issued for the 
projects), the Commonwealth provides financial assistance to cities and towns for current purposes.  Payments to cities and 
towns are derived primarily from a percentage of the State’s personal income, sales and use, and corporate excise tax 
receipts, together with the net receipts from the State Lottery. A municipality’s state aid entitlement is based on a number of 
different formulas, of which the “schools” and “lottery” formulas are the most important.  Both of the major formulas tend to 
provide more state aid to poorer communities.  The formulas for determining a municipality’s state aid entitlement are subject 
to amendment by the state legislature and, while a formula might indicate that a particular amount of state aid is owed, the 
amount of state aid actually paid is limited to the amount appropriated by the state legislature.  The state annually estimates 
state aid, but the actual state aid payments may vary from the estimate. 
 
In the fall of 1986, both the State Legislature (by statute, repealed as of July 1, 1999) and the voters (by initiative petition) 
placed limits on the growth of state tax revenues.  Although somewhat different in detail, each measure essentially limited the 
annual growth in state tax revenues to an average rate of growth in wages and salaries in the Commonwealth over the three 
previous calendar years.  If not amended, the remaining law could restrict the amount of state revenues available for state aid 
to local communities. 
 
Legislation was enacted in 1991 to help municipalities compensate for additional local aid reductions by the Commonwealth 
for fiscal year 1992.  Under that law, municipalities were allowed to defer budgeting for teachers’ summer compensation 
payable by the end of the fiscal years 1992 and 1993.  Municipalities that chose to defer such amounts are required to 
amortize the resulting budget deficiency by raising at least one fifteenth of the deferred amount in each of the fiscal years 1997 
through 2011, or in accordance with a more rapid amortization schedule.   
 
Following are state aid payments received by the Town for the following fiscal years: 
 
 Fiscal    Aid to    Total 
  Year  Education Other State Aid 
 
 2010 $5,104,541 $1,957,167 $7,032,301 
 2009 5,208,715 (1) 2,574,020 7,234,964 
 2008 4,529,951 2,786,260 7,316,211 
 2007 3,965,346 2,739,853 6,705,199 
 2006 3,580,818 2,450,837 6,031,655 
  
Source: Town Accountant. 
(1) In fiscal 2009 the state reduced state aid.  The Town offset the cuts through a combination of attrition and capital spending 

reductions and $547,771 American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) grant funds to supplement Chapter 70 payments 
from The Commonwealth.  The Town offset anticipated additional state aid reductions in fiscal year 2010 through attrition, school 
layoffs, and reduced capital spending.   

 
In 2009, the Town put in place stringent financial policies to weather revenue reductions.  These include zero to minimal 
use of Free Cash, new and tighter budgeting, and performance based measurements for allocation of dollars for various 
department resources.  The Town’s state aid was reduced by $341,765 in fiscal 2011.  The fiscal 2011 budget was 
reduced by 10%, which was revised to 6%; the actual reduction was 4%.  The Town’s carrying a 4% local aid cut for the  
fiscal 2012 financial forecast; the Governor proposed a 7.3% reduction.  However, Chapter 70 aid was increased by $65 
million so this will result in a net increase to the Town.  
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State School Building Assistance Program:  Under its school building assistance program, the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts provides grants to cities, towns and regional school districts for school construction projects.  Until July 26, 
2004, the State Board of Education was responsible for approving grants for school projects and otherwise administering 
the program. Grant amounts ranged from 50% to 90% of approved project costs.  Municipalities generally issued bonds to 
finance the entire project cost, and the Commonwealth disbursed the grants in equal annual installments over the term of 
the related bonds. 
 
Pursuant to legislation which became effective on July 26, 2004, the state legislature created the Massachusetts School 
Building Authority (the “Authority”) to finance and administer the school building assistance program. The Authority has 
assumed all powers and obligations of the Board of Education with respect to the program.  In addition to certain other 
amounts, the legislation dedicates a portion of Commonwealth sales tax receipts to the Authority to finance the program. 
 

Projects previously approved for grants by the State Board of Education are entitled to receive grant payments from the 
Authority based on the approved project cost and reimbursement rate applicable under the prior law.  The Authority has 
paid and is expected to continue to pay the remaining amounts of the grants for such projects either in annual installments 
to reimburse debt service on bonds issued by the municipalities to finance such projects, or as lump sum payments to 
contribute to the defeasance of such bonds. 
 

Projects on the priority waiting list as of July 1, 2004 are also entitled to receive grant payments from the Authority based 
on the eligible project costs and reimbursement rates applicable under the prior law.  With limited exceptions, the 
Authority is required to fund the grants for such projects in the order in which they appear on the waiting list.  Grants for 
any such projects that have been completed or substantially completed have been paid and are expected to continue to 
be paid by the Authority in lump sum payments, thereby eliminating the need for the Authority to reimburse interest 
expenses that would otherwise be incurred by the municipalities to permanently finance the Authority’s share of such 
project costs.  Interest on debt issued by municipalities prior to July 1, 2004 to finance such project costs, and interest on 
temporary debt until receipt of the grant, is included in the approved costs of such projects.  Grants for any such projects 
that have not yet commenced or that are underway have been and are expected to continue to be paid by the Authority as 
project costs are incurred by the municipality pursuant to a project funding agreement between the Authority and the 
municipality, eliminating the need for the municipality to borrow even on a temporary basis to finance the Authority’s share 
of the project costs in most cases. 
 

The range of reimbursement rates for new project grant applications submitted to the Authority on or after July 1, 2007 
has been reduced to between 40% and 80% of approved project costs.  The Authority promulgated new regulations with 
respect to the application and approval process for projects submitted after July 1, 2007.  The Authority expects to pay 
grants for such projects as project costs are incurred pursuant to project funding agreements between the Authority and 
the municipalities.  None of the interest expense incurred on debt issued by municipalities to finance their portion of the 
costs of new projects will be included in the approved project costs eligible for reimbursement.  The Town has been 
approved for a $2.6 million school renovation project under this program. 
 

The Motor Vehicle Excise Tax:  An excise is imposed on the registration of motor vehicles (subject to exemptions) at the 
rate of $25 per $1,000 of valuation.  The excise is collected by and for the benefit of the municipality in which the motor 
vehicle is customarily kept.  Valuations are determined by a statutory formula based on manufacturers' list price and year 
of manufacture.  Bills not paid when due bear interest at 12 percent per annum.  Provision is also made, after notice to the 
owner, for suspension of the owner's operating license or registration by the registrar of motor vehicles.  The following 
table presents a five-year history of motor vehicle excise tax collections of the Town: 
 

 Fiscal Year Receipts (1) 
 2010 $2,083,548 
 2009 2,153,869 
 2008 1,885,097 
 2007 2,412,904 
 2006 2,626,191 
__________________ 
(1)  Net after refunds.  Includes receipts from prior years' levies. 
 

Water Rates and Services:  The Water Division of the Department of Public Works is responsible for the operation and 
maintenance of the water treatment plant, six water wells, two booster stations, two water storage tanks, three corrosion 
control stations, three surface water supplies, 300 acres of watershed, 105 miles of water distribution system, 275 fire 
hydrants, and 7,500 water meters. 
 

The Water Division employs a staff of twelve appropriately licensed professional individuals who are responsible for the 
maintenance and operation of nearly 50 million dollars of assets with an annual operating budget of $2,885,277. A 
population of more than 18,000 - which increases by more than 10% during the summer - consumes an average of 1.9 
million gallons of water each day. 
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On July 1, 1999, the Town placed water services on an enterprise fund basis, which are provided to nearly 100 percent of 
the Town, on an enterprise basis.  The Town has a planned upgrade program in place for water system infrastructure 
improvements while keeping the fund self supporting, and has a policy of increasing rates 5% each year.  Charges for 
water usage are billed quarterly.  For residential water consumption, the rates are $0.64 per 100 cubic feet up to the first 
1200 cubic feet.  The next 1,800 cubic feet are billed at a rate of $2.78 per 100 cubic feet.  All usage in excess of 3,000 
cubic feet is billed at a rate of $4.52 per cubic 100 feet.  

Sewer Rates and Services: The Sewer Division of the Department of Public Works is responsible for the operations and 
maintenance of the Scituate Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and 24 miles of sewers, which make up the Scituate 
Sewer Collection System.  This serves 30% of the community.  The WWTP was operational in November 1967 and was 
originally designated to treat an average daily flow of 1.6 million gallons per day (mgd). The WWTP was designated as a 
secondary treatment plant utilizing the extended aeration mode of the activated sludge (microorganisms) process. 

The purpose of the WWTP is to remove and treat settleable and floating solids, to reduce suspended solids and dissolve 
organic material, and to disinfect the final effluent (treated water leaving the WWTP) to reduce the possibility of water-
borne diseases. 

A septage receiving station, aerobic sludge digesters and a sludge dewatering building were added during an upgrade in 
1984. The additions allowed further treatment of the sludge (settled solids), which was dewatered by a belt filter press and 
disposed at the Town's sanitary landfill. 

A second upgrade was completed in 2000 increasing the design of the WWTP from 1.0 mgd to 1.6 mgd along with 
upgrading the secondary treatment to an advanced treatment capable of nitrogen removal (nitrification/denitrification). The 
use of ultraviolet light (UV) has replaced chlorination (residual chlorine can be toxic to aquatic life) as the means of 
disinfecting the final effluent. 

Since the closure of the landfill the sludge generated (over 1,100 wet tons/yr.) by the belt filter presses in the dewatering 
building has been hauled off site by a contractor for beneficial reuse. 

The sewer rate is $4.60 per 100 cubic feet for all consumption with a minimum allowance for 1,250 cubic feet at a rate of 
$57.35.  The Town has a comprehensive plan for sewer expansion funded by users, and sewer rates have been 
increased to fund upgrade expansions. 
 
Transfer Station: The Transfer Station Division of the Department of Public Works is responsible for the operation and 
maintenance of the Transfer Station and Recycling Center. The Transfer Station is operated as a Pay-As-You-Throw 
facility and will accept only household refuse contained in Pay-As-You-Throw trash bags. These trash bags can be 
purchased at the Transfer Station or at local retailers at a cost of $20.00 for a package of ten 30 gallon bags or $10.00 for 
a package of ten 15 gallon bags.  The Town has a current recycling rate of 50%. 
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Annual Audits 
 
The Town of Scituate is audited annually by Roselli, Clark and Associates, Certified Public Accountant, of Woburn, 
Massachusetts.  A copy of the fiscal 2010 audit is attached hereto as Appendix A. 
 
The attached report speaks only as of its date, and only to the matters expressly set forth therein.  The auditors have not 
been engaged to review this Official Statement or to perform audit procedures regarding the post-audit period, nor have 
the auditors been requested to give their consent to the inclusion of their report in Appendix A.  Except as stated in their 
report, the auditors have not been engaged to verify the financial information set out in Appendix A and are not passing 
upon and do not assume responsibility for the sufficiency, accuracy or completeness of the financial information presented 
in that appendix. 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Set forth on the following pages are Governmental Funds Balance Sheets for fiscal years ending June 30, 2010, June 30, 
2009, and June 30, 2008, and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and changes in Fund Balance for fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2010 and a Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2006 through 2009.  Said statements were extracted from the Town’s audited financials. 
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2010 (1)

 Nonmajor Total

General Community Affordable Governmental Governmental

Fund Stabilization Mitigation Preservation Housing Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and short-term investments 5,042,938$       2,202,032$      956,953$        5,433,281$     851,449$        2,757,587$       17,244,240$      

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles -                         

   Real estate and personal property taxes 665,030            -                       -                      55,625            -                      -                       720,655             

   Other 2,009,035         -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       2,009,035          

   Due from Commonwealth - Grants 980,000            -                       -                      -                      -                      783,077            1,763,077          

Due from other funds -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       -                         

Cash - restricted -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      402,398            402,398             

     Total assets 8,697,003$       2,202,032$      956,953$        5,488,906$     851,449$        3,943,062$        22,139,405$      

LIABILITIES 

Warrants and accounts payable 1,043,848$       -$                     -$                    76,185$          -$                    414,561$          1,534,594$        

Accrued payroll and withholdings 1,158,899         -                   -                  -                  -                  -                   1,158,899          

Deferred revenues 2,674,065         -                   -                  52,002            -                  -                   2,726,067          

Unearned revenues 103,622            -                   -                  8,394              -                  -                       112,016             

Other 39,530              -                   -                  -                  -                  -                       39,530               

Bond anticipation notes payable -                   -                   -                  -                  -                  1,946,444         1,946,444          

     Total liabilities 5,019,964         -                   -                      136,581          -                      2,361,005         7,517,550          

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Reserved for:

   Encumbrances 1,076,184         -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       1,076,184          

   Expenditures 885,300            -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       885,300             

   Stabilization -                       2,202,032        -                      -                      -                      -                       2,202,032          

   MBTA -                       -                       956,953          -                      -                      -                       956,953             

   Community preservation -                       -                       -                      5,352,325       -                      -                       5,352,325          

    Affordable housing -                       -                       -                      -                      851,449          -                       851,449             

Unreserved:

   Undesignated: reported in:

General fund 1,715,555         -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       1,715,555          

Special revenue funds -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      2,841,657         2,841,657          

Capital project funds deficit -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      (1,661,998)       (1,661,998)         

Permanent funds -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      402,398            402,398             

     Total fund balances 3,677,039         2,202,032        956,953          5,352,325       851,449          1,582,057         14,621,855        

   Total liabilities and fund balances $8,697,003 $2,202,032 $956,953 $5,488,906 $851,449 3,943,062         $22,139,405

(1) Extracted from the Audited Financial Statements of the Town.
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2009 (1)

 Nonmajor Total

General Community Affordable Governmental Governmental

Fund Stabilization Mitigation Preservation Housing Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and short-term investments 3,748,277$       2,176,804$       2,820,451$      6,035,130$      700,017$         3,751,206$       19,231,885$       

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles -                          

   Real estate and personal property taxes 871,218            -                       -                      -                      -                      -                        871,218              

   Property tax deferrals 279,193            -                       -                      -                      -                      -                        279,193              

   Other 1,578,421         -                       -                      -                      -                      60,920              1,639,341           

   Due from Commonwealth - Grants -                        -                       -                      -                      -                      589,519            589,519              

Due from other funds 12,731              -                       -                      -                      -                      (12,731)             -                          

Cash - restricted -                        -                       -                      -                      -                      515,985            515,985              

     Total assets 6,489,840$       2,176,804$       2,820,451$      6,035,130$      700,017$         4,904,899$        23,127,141$       

LIABILITIES 

Warrants and accounts payable 869,267$          -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     612,147$          1,481,414$         

Accrued payroll and withholdings 503,240            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    503,240              

Planning deposits 540,368            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    540,368              

Deferred revenues 2,728,832         -                   -                   -                   -                   60,921              2,789,753           

Unearned revenues 204,606            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                        204,606              

Other 36,684              -                   -                   -                   -                   40,357              77,041                

Bond anticipation notes payable -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   2,065,000         2,065,000           

     Total liabilities 4,882,997         -                   -                      -                      -                      2,778,425         7,661,422           

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Reserved for:

   Encumbrances 897,986            -                       -                      -                      -                      -                        897,986              

   Expenditures 81,947              -                       -                      -                      -                      -                        81,947                

   Stabilization -                        2,176,904         -                      -                      -                      -                        2,176,904           

   MBTA -                        -                       2,820,451        -                      -                      -                        2,820,451           

   Community preservation -                        -                       -                      6,035,130        -                      -                        6,035,130           

    Affordable housing -                        -                       -                      -                      700,017           -                        700,017              

Unreserved:

   Undesignated: reported in:

General fund 626,910            -                       -                      -                      -                      -                        626,910              

Special revenue funds -                        -                       -                      -                      -                      2,325,982         2,325,982           

Capital project funds -                        -                       -                      -                      -                      (1,415,510)        (1,415,510)          

Permanent funds -                        -                       -                      -                      -                      1,216,002         1,216,002           

     Total fund balances 1,606,843         2,176,904         2,820,451        6,035,130        700,017           2,126,474         15,465,819         

   Total liabilities and fund balances $6,489,840 $2,176,904 $2,820,451 $6,035,130 $700,017 4,904,899         $23,127,241

(1) Extracted from the Audited Financial Statements of the Town.
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2008 (1)

 Nonmajor Total

General Community Governmental Governmental

Fund Stabilization Mitigation Preservation Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and short-term investments 2,384,076$       2,208,653$      3,473,450$     5,256,091$     3,540,122$       16,862,392$      

Investments- restricted: 1,978,283 -                   -                  -                  -                    1,978,283          

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles -                         

   Real estate and personal property taxes 914,750            -                       -                      -                      -                        914,750             

   Property tax deferrals 291,793            -                       -                      -                      -                        291,793             

   Other 1,620,121         -                       -                      -                      62,138              1,682,259          

   Due from Commonwealth - Grants -                        -                       -                      -                      984,614            984,614             

Due from other funds -                        -                       -                      -                      -                        -                         

Cash - restricted -                        -                       -                      -                      612,363            612,363             

     Total assets 7,189,023$       2,208,653$      3,473,450$     5,256,091$     5,199,237$        23,326,454$      

LIABILITIES 

Warrants and accounts payable 941,580$          -$                     -$                    -$                    351,962$          1,293,542$        

Accrued payroll and withholdings 560,463            -                   -                  -                  -                    560,463             

   Planning deposits 574,094            -                   -                  -                  -                    574,094             

Deferred revenue 2,795,770         -                   -                  -                  73,078              2,868,848          

Unearned revenues 155,822            -                       -                      -                      -                        155,822             

Other 33,965              -                       -                      -                      43,807              77,772               

Bond anticipation notes payable -                        -                       -                      -                      1,735,000         1,735,000          

     Total liabilities 5,061,694         -                       -                      -                      2,203,847         7,265,541          

FUND BALANCES

Reserved for:

   Encumbrances 1,382,633         -                       -                      -                      -                        1,382,633          

   Expenditures 210,298            -                       -                      -                      -                        210,298             

   Stabilization -                        2,208,653        -                      -                      -                        2,208,653          

   MBTA -                        -                       3,473,450       -                      -                        3,473,450          

   Community preservation -                        -                       -                      5,256,091       -                        5,256,091          

Unreserved:

   Undesignated: reported in:

General fund 534,398            -                       -                      -                      -                        534,398             

Special revenue funds -                        -                       -                      -                      2,977,148         2,977,148          

Capital project funds -                        -                       -                      -                      (594,121)           (594,121)            

Permanent funds -                        -                       -                      -                      612,363            612,363             

     Total fund balances 2,127,329         2,208,653        3,473,450       5,256,091       2,995,390         16,060,913        

   Total liabilities and fund balances $7,189,023 $2,208,653 $3,473,450 $5,256,091 $5,199,237 $23,326,454

(1) Extracted from the Audited Financial Statements of the Town.
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Nonmajor Total

Community Affordable Governmental Governmental

General Stabilization Mitigation Preservation Housing Funds Funds

REVENUES:

Real estate and personal property taxes, net 42,007,719$   -$            -$                  994,875$    -$           -$              43,002,594$  

Motor vehicle and other excises 2,125,130       -              -                    -              -             -                2,125,130      

Penalties and interest on taxes 367,174          -              -                    -              -             -                367,174         

Intergovernmental 14,565,629     -              -                    376,762      -             4,532,744     19,475,135    

Departmental and other 1,887,562       -              -                    -              -             2,762,803     4,650,365      

Contributions and donations -                      -              -                    -              -             434,265        434,265         

Investment income 122,506          15,813         11,502              31,688        5,163         2,202            188,874         

Miscellaneous -                      -              -                    -              -             131,502        131,502         

Total Revenues 61,075,720$   15,813$       11,502$            1,403,325$ 5,163$       7,863,516$   70,375,039$  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 2,400,709       9,415           -                    -              700,000     5,500            3,115,624      

Total Other Financing Sources 2,400,709       9,415           -                    -              700,000     5,500            3,115,624      

63,476,429     25,228         11,502              1,403,325   705,163     7,869,016     73,490,663    

EXPENDITURES:

General Government 4,067,542       -              -                    -              -             657,851        4,725,393      

Public Safety 7,154,119       -              -                    -              -             115,173        7,269,292      

Education 27,516,210     -              -                    -              -             4,449,038     31,965,248    

Public Works 2,980,636       -              -                    -              -             2,506,985     5,487,621      

Culture & Recreation 1,126,507       -              -                    -              553,731     546,441        2,226,679      

Health and Human Services 382,153          -              -                    -              110,072        492,225         

State & County  Tax Assessments 547,726          -              -                    -              -             -                547,726         

Pensions and Other Fringes 14,687,400     -              -                    -              -             -                14,687,400    

Community Preservation -                  -              -                    1,386,130   -             -                1,386,130      

Debt Service 2,181,743       -              -                    -             -                2,181,743      

Total Expenditures 60,644,036     -              -                    1,386,130   553,731     8,385,560     70,969,457    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers out 762,197          -              1,875,000         700,000      -             27,873          3,365,070      

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 61,406,233     -              1,875,000         2,086,130   553,731     8,413,433     74,334,527    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over Expenditures and

Other Financing Uses 2,070,196       25,228         (1,863,498)        (682,805)     151,432     (544,417)       (843,864)       

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 1,606,843       2,176,804    2,820,451         6,035,130   700,017     2,126,474     15,465,719    

Fund Balances - End of Year 3,677,039$     2,202,032$  956,953$          5,352,325$ 851,449$   1,582,057$   14,621,855$  
___________

(1) Extracted from Town's Audited Financial Statements.

Total Revenues and Other Fiancing Sources

TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 (1)
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TOWN OF SCITUATE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GENERAL FUND (1) 

 

2009 2008 2007 2006

REVENUES:

Real and Personal Property Taxes 40,825,496$    38,310,697$    34,753,273$    32,887,718$    

Motor Vehicle & Boat Excise 2,153,281        2,325,182        2,336,044        2,626,191        

Intergovernmental 13,243,802      12,965,124      11,513,287      15,037,020      

Penalties & Interest 413,014           295,176           231,409           291,766           

Licenses & Permits 490,717           697,481           580,033           707,771           

Fines & Forfeitures 80,288             67,496             73,586             79,617             

Investment Income 195,319           353,519           602,728           354,970           

Departmental & Other 1,674,943        1,244,066        1,290,744        1,302,022        

Total Revenues 59,076,860      56,258,741      51,381,104      53,287,075      

EXPENDITURES:

General Government 2,172,367        2,167,354        1,905,915        2,140,605        

Public Safety 7,448,340        7,654,797        7,236,775        6,878,140        

Education 28,287,299      27,713,247      24,806,299      24,083,584      

Public Works 3,245,690        3,026,959        2,556,666        2,688,564        

Human Services 440,492           442,904           -                       -                       

Culture & Recreation 1,156,707        1,112,072        1,343,887        1,310,143        

Pension & Fringe Benefits 13,813,269      12,812,347      11,249,825      9,920,989        

State & County Assessments 519,199           440,570           452,904           412,750           

Debt Service 2,338,486        1,541,970        1,511,477        733,710           

Total Expenditures 59,421,849      56,912,220      51,063,748      48,168,485      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

Expenditures (344,989)          (653,479)          317,356           5,118,590        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

  Premium on Sale of bonds -                       -                       -                       -                       

Operating Transfers In -                       -                       510,993           573,586           

Operating Transfers Out 175,407           693,279           (1,129,332)       (5,738,719)       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 175,407           693,279           (618,339)          (5,165,133)       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over Expenditures and

Other Financing Uses (520,486)          (1,346,758)       (300,983)          (46,543)            

Prior Year Adjustment - Golf Course -                       -                       -                       -                       

Fund Equity, Beginning of Year 2,127,239        3,474,087        3,775,070        3,821,613        

FUND EQUITY, END OF YEAR 1,606,753$      2,127,329$      3,474,087$      3,775,070$      

___________

(1) Extracted from Town's audited financial statements.

June 30,
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Undesignated General Fund Balances and Free Cash 

 
Under Massachusetts law an amount know as "free cash" is certified as of the beginning of each fiscal year by the state 
Bureau of Accounts and this, together with certain subsequent tax receipts, is used as the basis for subsequent 
appropriations from available funds, which are not required to be included in the annual tax levy.  Subject to certain 
adjustments, free cash is surplus revenue less uncollected and overdue property taxes from prior years. 
 
The following table presents the history of the Town's undesignated general fund balances and free cash: 
 
  Undesignated General Certified Free Cash 
        Fund Balance    for Fiscal Year 
  Year      As of June 30 (1)        Beginning July 1 
 
 2010  $1,715,555 $976,826 
 2009 626,910 293,677 
 2008 534,398 (189,322) 
 2007 1,187,179 302,274 
 2006 1,707,620 725,852 
  
(1) Source:  Audited Financial Statements. 

 
Stabilization Fund 

 
The Town maintains a stabilization fund, which is accounted for in the Trust Funds.  The Stabilization Fund plus interest 
income may be appropriated by the Town Meeting for any municipal purpose.  The following table sets forth the trend in 
the Town’s Stabilization Fund for the following fiscal years: 
 

Stabilization Fund 

Year as of June 30,

2010 2,202,033$             

2009 2,176,804               

2008 2,208,653               

2007 1,955,276               

2006 2,070,793                
 

MBTA Mitigation Fund 

 

On March 26, 2002, the Town entered into a mitigation settlement agreement with the Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
Authority (MBTA) concerning the construction of commuter rail service on the existing right-of-way, known as the 
“Greenbush Corridor” through the towns of Braintree, Weymouth, Hingham, Cohasset and Scituate, all in Massachusetts. 
The project begins at the connection with the existing MBTA Old Colony Main Line in East Braintree, and extends 18 
miles easterly along the former New York, New Haven & Hartford Railroad Greenbush Branch to the terminus in the 
Greenbush section of Scituate.  As part of the settlement, the MBTA has provided the Town of Scituate with $7,200,000 
which is held by the Town Treasurer and is to be spent at the direction of the Board of Selectmen, subject to MBTA 
approval, for designated purposes, including land acquisition ($3,000,000), streetscape improvements ($2,500,000), 
historic resources ($1,000,000), recreation ($490,000), ombudsman ($150,000) and shore walk protection ($60,000).  The 
balance in the fund as of June 30, 2009 was $2,820,451.  As of June 30, 2010, the balance in the fund was $956,953. 
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Tax Increment Financing for Development Districts 

 

Under recent legislation, cities and towns are authorized to establish development districts to encourage in creased 
residential, industrial and commercial activity.  All or a portion of the taxes on growth in assessed value in such districts 
may be pledged and used solely to finance economic development projects pursuant to the city or towns’ development 
program for the district.  This includes pledging such “tax increments” for the payment of bonds issued to finance such 
projects.  As a result of any such pledge, tax increments raised from new growth properties in development districts are 
not available for other municipal purposes.  Tax increments are taken into account in determining the total taxes assessed 
for the purpose of calculating the maximum permitted tax levy under Proposition 2 ½ (see “Tax Limitations under 
“PROPERTY TAXATION” above).  The Town is in the process of determining whether or not to develop such districts in 
the immediate future, and has re-established its Economic Development Industrial Commission (EDIC). 
 

Investment of Town Funds 

 
Investments of funds of cities and towns, except for trust funds, are generally restricted by Massachusetts General Laws, 
Chapter 44, Section 55.  That statute permits investments of available revenue funds and bond and note proceeds in term 
deposits and certificates of deposits of banks and trust companies, in obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by 
the federal government or an agency thereof with a maturity of not more than one year, in repurchase agreements with a 
maturity of not more than 90 days secured by federal or federal agency securities, or in participation units in the 
Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust ("MMDT"), or in shares in SEC-registered money market funds with the highest 
possible rating from at least one nationally recognized rating organization. 
 
MMDT is an investment pool created by the Commonwealth.  The State Treasurer is the sole trustee, and the funds are 
managed under contract by an investment firm under the supervision of the State Treasurer’s office.  According to the State 
Treasurer the Trust’s investment policy is designed to maintain an average weighted maturity of 90 days or less and is limited 
to high-quality, readily marketable fixed income instruments, including U.S. Government obligations and highly-rated corporate 
securities with maturities of one year or less. 
 
Trust funds, unless otherwise provided by the donor, may be invested in accordance with Section 54 of Chapter 44, which 
permits a broader range of investments than Section 55, including any bonds or notes that are legal investments for 
savings banks in the Commonwealth.  The restrictions imposed by Sections 54 and 55 do not apply to city and town 
retirement systems. 
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INDEBTEDNESS 

 
Authorization of General Obligation Bonds and Notes 

 
Serial bonds and notes are authorized by a two-thirds vote of the town meeting.  Refunding bonds and notes are 
authorized by the selectmen.  Borrowings for some purposes require State administrative approval. 
 
When serial bonds or notes have been authorized, bond anticipation notes may be issued by the officers authorized to 
issue the serial bonds or notes.  Temporary debt in anticipation of the revenue of the fiscal year in which the debt is 
incurred or in anticipation of authorized federal and state aid generally may be incurred by the treasurer with the approval 
of the selectmen. 
 
Debt Limits 

 
General Debt Limit.  The General Debt Limit of the Town consists of a Normal Debt Limit and a Double Debt Limit.  The 
Normal Debt Limit is 5 percent of the valuation of taxable property as last equalized by the State Department of Revenue.  
The Town can authorize debt up to this amount without State approval.  It can authorize debt up to twice this amount (the 
Double Debt Limit) with the approval of the Municipal Finance Oversight Board, consisting of the Attorney General, the 
State Treasurer, the State Auditor, and the Director of Accounts.. 
 
There are many categories of general obligation debt which are exempt from and do not count against the General Debt Limit.  
Among others, these exempt categories include revenue anticipation notes and grant anticipation notes; emergency loans; 
loans exempted by special laws; certain school bonds, sewer bonds, solid waste disposal facility bonds and economic 
development bonds supported by tax increment financing; and subject to special debt limits, bonds for water (limited to 10 
percent of equalized valuation), housing, urban renewal and economic development (subject to various debt limits), and 
electric, gas, community antenna television systems, and telecommunications systems (subject to separate limits). Revenue 
bonds are not subject to these debt limits.  The General Debt Limit and the special debt limit for water bonds apply at the time 
the debt is authorized. The other special debt limits generally apply at the time the debt is incurred. 
 

Revenue Anticipation Notes.  The amount borrowed in each fiscal year by the issue of revenue anticipation notes is 
limited to the tax levy of the prior fiscal year, together with the net receipts in the prior fiscal year from the motor vehicle 
excise and certain payments made by the Commonwealth in lieu of taxes.  The fiscal year ends on June 30.  Notes may 
mature in the following fiscal year, and notes may be refunded into the following fiscal year, to the extent of the 
uncollected, unabated current tax levy and certain other items, including revenue deficits, overlay deficits, final judgments 
and lawful unappropriated expenditures, which are to be added to the next tax levy, but excluding deficits arising from a 
failure to collect taxes of earlier years.  (See "Taxation to Meet Deficits" under "PROPERTY TAXATION" above.)  In any 
event, the period from an original borrowing to its final maturity cannot exceed one year. 
 
Types of Obligations 

 
General Obligations.  Massachusetts cities and towns are authorized to issue general obligation indebtedness of these 
types: 
 
Serial Bonds and Notes.  These are generally required to be payable in annual principal amounts beginning no later than the 
end of the next fiscal year commencing after the date of issue and ending within the terms permitted by law.  A level debt 
service schedule, or a schedule that provides for a more rapid amortization of principal than level debt service, is permitted.  
The principal amounts of certain economic development bonds supported by tax increment financing may be payable in equal, 
diminishing or increasing amounts beginning within 5 years after the date of issue.  The maximum terms of serial bonds and 
notes vary from one year to 40 years, depending on the purpose of the issue.  The maximum terms permitted are set forth in 
the statutes.  In addition, for many projects, the maximum term may be determined in accordance with useful life guidelines 
promulgated by the State Department of Revenue (“DOR”).  Serial bonds and notes may be issued for the purposes set forth 
in the statutes.  In addition, serial bonds and notes may be issued for any other public work improvement or asset not 
specifically listed in the Statutes that has a useful life of at least 5 years.  Bonds or notes may be made callable and redeemed 
prior to their maturity, and a redemption premium may be paid.  Refunding bonds or notes may be issued subject to the 
maximum applicable term measured from the date of the original bonds or notes and must produce present value savings 
over the debt service of the refunded bonds.  Generally, the first required annual payment of principal of the refunding bonds 
cannot be later than the first principal payment of any of the bonds or notes being refunded thereby, however, principal 
payments made before the first principal payment of any of the bonds or notes being refunded thereby may be in any amount. 
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Serial bonds may be issued as “qualified bonds” with the approval of the state Municipal Finance Oversight Board composed 
of the State Treasurer, the State Auditor, the Attorney General and the Director of Accounts, subject to such conditions and 
limitations (including restrictions on future indebtedness) as may be required by the Board.  Qualified bonds may mature not 
less than 10 nor more than 30 years from their dates and are not subject to the amortization requirements described above.  
The State Treasurer is required to pay the debt service on qualified bonds and thereafter to withhold the amount of the debt 
service paid by the State from state aid or other state payments; administrative costs and any loss of interest income to the 
State are to be assessed upon the city or town. 
 
Tax Credit Bonds or Notes.  Subject to certain provisions and conditions, the officers authorized to issue bonds or notes may 
designate any duly authorized issue of bonds or notes as “tax credit bonds” to the extent such bonds and notes are otherwise 
permitted to be issued with federal tax credits or other similar subsidies for all or a portion of the borrowing costs.  Tax credit 
bonds may be made payable without regard to the annual installments required by any other law, and a sinking fund may be 
established for the payment of such bonds.  Any investment that is part of such a sinking fund may mature not later than the 
date fixed for payment or redemption of the applicable bonds. 
 
Bond Anticipation Notes.  These generally must mature within two years of their original dates of issuance, but may be 
refunded from time to time for a period not to exceed five years from their original dates of issuance, provided that for 
each year that the notes are refunded beyond the second year they must be paid in part from revenue funds in an amount 
at least equal to the minimum annual payment that would have been required if the bonds has been issued at the end of 
the second year.  For certain school projects, however, notes may be refunded from time to time for a period not to 
exceed seven years without having to pay any portion of the principal of the notes from revenue funds.  The maximum 
term of bonds issued to refund bond anticipation notes is measured (except for certain school projects) from the date of 
the original issue of the notes. 
 

Revenue Anticipation Notes.  These are issued to meet current expenses in anticipation of taxes and other revenues.  
They must mature within one year but, if payable in less than one year, may be refunded from time to time up to one year 
from the original date of issue.  
 

Grant Anticipation Notes.  These are issued for temporary financing in anticipation of federal grants and state and 
county reimbursements.  Generally, they must mature within two years, but may be refunded from time to time as long as 
the municipality remains entitled to the grant or reimbursement. 
 

Revenue Bonds.  Cities and towns may issue revenue bonds for solid waste disposal facilities, for projects financed 
under the Commonwealth's Water Pollution Abatement or Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs and for certain 
economic development projects supported by tax increment financing.  In addition, cities and towns having electric 
departments may issue electric revenue bonds, and notes in anticipation of such bonds, subject to the approval of the 
State Department of Telecommunications and Energy. 
 

Revenue Anticipation Note Borrowing 
 

The Town has not borrowed for operating purposes during the last five fiscal years. 
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Direct Debt Summary 

As of June 30, 2010, Including This Issue (1) 

Long-Term Indebtedness (2)
General Obligation Bonds:

Water (3) 1,031,000$      
School 11,885,000      

General (4) 4,519,000        
Land Acquisition 3,075,000        
Sewers & Drains 19,868,638      

Total (5) 40,378,638$        

This Issue 9,756,000            

Short-term Debt

Bond Anticipation Notes Outstanding (6) 7,135,823$      
Less:

To Be Retired with Bond Proceeds (6,532,700)       

To Be Retired with Revenue Funds (270,444)          

To Be Retired with MWPAT Proceeds (332,679)          

Total Short Term Debt After This Issue -                      

Total Direct Debt 50,134,638$        
 

  
(1) Excludes overlapping debt, lease and installment purchase obligations and unfunded pension liability. 
(2) Based on the Town's January 1, 2008 equalized valuation of $4,575,033,600, the Town's normal General Debt Limit is 

$228,751,680 and the Double General Debt Limit will be $457,503,360.  (See "Debt Limits," above). 
(3) Outside the Town’s debt limit. 
(4) $3,284,568 is outside the debt limit. 
(5) $10,728,896 is exempt from the provisions of Proposition 2 ½. 
(6) Payable March 18, 2011. 

 

Key Debt Ratios 

 

As of June 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Long Term Debt Outstanding (1) $40,378,638 $44,052,776 $47,840,201 $43,975,631 $45,662,233

Debt per Capita $2,085.67 $2,275.45 $2,471.08 $2,426.91 $2,519.99

Percent of Assessed Valuation (2) 1.01% 1.05% 1.13% 1.04% 1.13%

Percent of Equalized Valuation (3) 0.88% 0.96% 1.11% 1.02% 1.35%

Debt per Capita as a Percent of per

   Capita Income 6.15% 6.70% 7.28% 7.15% 7.42%  
  
(1) Excludes short-term debt, lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt and unfunded pension liability. 
(2) Source:  Massachusetts Department of Revenue - Assessed valuation as of the prior January 1. 
(3) Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue - Equalized valuation in effect for that fiscal year (equalized valuations are 

established for January 1 of each even-numbered year). 
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Outstanding Bonded Debt (1)(2)
Principal Payment by Purpose

As of June 30, 2010

Fiscal Land Sewers &

Year Water (3) School General (4) Acquisition Drains Total (5)

2011 128,000$        1,070,000$     784,000$      220,000$       1,487,208$     3,689,208$     

2012 128,000          810,000          594,000        220,000         1,518,332       3,270,332       

2013 128,000          810,000          594,000        220,000         1,230,844       2,982,844       

2014 126,000          810,000          596,000        220,000         1,581,908       3,333,908       

2015 101,000          750,000          491,000        220,000         1,624,858       3,186,858       

2016 46,000            750,000          506,000        220,000         1,667,372       3,189,372       

2017 41,000            750,000          486,000        220,000         1,713,110       3,210,110       

2018 41,000            750,000          96,000          220,000         1,759,549       2,866,549       

2019 41,000            750,000          61,000          220,000         1,799,737       2,871,737       

2020 41,000            750,000          61,000          220,000         1,023,549       2,095,549       

2021 41,000            745,000          61,000          220,000         1,011,061       2,078,061       

2022 41,000            745,000          61,000          220,000         892,450          1,959,450       

2023 41,000            745,000          56,000          220,000         911,649          1,973,649       

2024 46,000            745,000          36,000          215,000         917,011          1,959,011       

2025 41,000            745,000          36,000          -                     433,565          1,255,565       

2026 -                     160,000          -                    -                     296,436          456,436          

1,031,000$     11,885,000$   4,519,000$  3,075,000$   19,868,638$  40,378,638$   
  
(1) Excludes overlapping debt, lease and installment purchase obligations and unfunded pension liability. 
(2) Based on the Town's January 1, 2008 equalized valuation of $4,575,033,600, the Town's normal General Debt Limit is 

$228,751,680 and the Double General Debt Limit will be $457,503,360.  (See "Debt Limits," above). 
(3) Outside the Town’s debt limit. 
(4) $2,919,000 is outside the debt limit. 
(5) $9,797,606 is exempt from the provisions of Proposition 2 ½. 
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Annual Debt Service as of June 30, 2010, Including this issue of Bonds (1) 

 

Cumulative

Fiscal Outstanding (2) MWPAT Net % Principal

Year Principal Interest Subsidy Debt Service Retired

2011 3,689,208$     1,551,015$     (535,220)$      4,705,003$     7.4 %
2012 4,181,332       1,743,551       (496,139)        5,428,743       15.7

2013 3,812,844       1,956,482       (500,350)        5,268,976       23.3

2014 4,103,908       1,474,919       (468,964)        5,109,864       31.5
2015 3,936,858       1,320,038       (451,744)        4,805,152       39.3

2016 3,894,372       1,148,729       (427,013)        4,616,088       47.1

2017 3,900,110       986,273          (403,504)        4,482,879       54.9

2018 3,446,549       816,432          (371,170)        3,891,812       61.8
2019 3,381,737       689,241          (343,375)        3,727,602       68.5

2020 2,540,549       569,853          (108,323)        3,002,078       73.6

2021 2,498,061       466,755          (88,231)          2,876,585       78.6
2022 2,344,450       368,566          (40,429)          2,672,586       83.2

2023 2,358,649       280,481          (35,680)          2,603,449       87.9

2024 2,314,011       191,436          (25,112)          2,480,335       92.6
2025 1,605,565       121,954          -                     1,727,520       95.8

2026 746,436          74,874            -                     821,310          97.2

2027 290,000          54,475            -                     344,475          97.8

2028 280,000          43,600            -                     323,600          98.4

2029 270,000          32,400            -                     302,400          98.9

2030 270,000          21,600            -                     291,600          99.5

2031 270,000          10,800            -                     280,800          100.0

Total 50,134,638$   13,923,475$   (4,295,256)$   59,762,856$   

 
  
(1) Excludes short-term debt, lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt and unfunded pension liability. 
(2) Principal totaling $10,962,605 and interest totaling $3,367,110 is exempt from the provisions of Proposition 2 1/2. 
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Authorized Unissued Debt and Prospective Financing 

 
Following the delivery of the Bonds, the Town will have approximately $15,760,674, of authorized unissued debt, as 
follows: 
 

Purpose Amount

Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrade 100$                
Infiltration/Inflow Repair 17,366            
Fire Stations 2,825,000      
Sewer 996,341          
Dredging 195,000          
School Remodeling 773                 
Senior Center 1,900,000      
Marine Bonds 799,945          
Sewer Bonds 12,000            
School Vehicles 18,000            
Dam Repairs 100,000          
Marine Park Recreational Facility 280,000          
Water Equipment 13,000            
Highway Improvement 423,149          
Sewer Extension 6,100,000      
Departmental Equipment 25,000            
Departmental Equipment 60,000            
Additional Sewer Extension 111,000          
I&I System 286,000          
School Repairs 1,398,000      
Total 15,760,674$    

 

Overlapping Debt 

 
The following are the principal entities whose indebtedness is chargeable to the Town of Scituate or payable from taxation 
of property within the Town: 
 
  Outstanding 
  Bonded Debt Scituate's Fiscal 2011 Dollar 
  as of 6/30/10 Estimated Share % Assessment (1) 
 

 Plymouth County (2) $3,850,000 6.76% $72,476 
 Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
    Authority (3) $5,393,081,820 N/A $113,422 
 South Shore Regional Vocational- 
    Technical School District (4) $745,000 10.2% $604,419 
  
(1) Dollar assessment is based upon total net operating expenses, inclusive of debt service where applicable. 
(2) Source:  Treasurer, Plymouth County.  County expenses are assessed upon the cities and towns within the County in proportion 

to their valuations of taxable property as last equalized by the State Commissioner of Revenue.  Assessment shown is based on 
the most recent equalized valuation. 

(3) Source:  Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority (the "MBTA").  Debt as of June, 30, 2010. The MBTA was created in 1964 
to finance and operate mass transportation facilities within the Greater Boston metropolitan area.  Under its enabling act, the 
MBTA is authorized to issue bonds for capital purposes, other than refunding bonds, and for certain specified purposes to an 
outstanding amount which does not exceed the aggregate principal amount of $3,556,300,000. In addition, pursuant to certain of 
the Commonwealth's transportation bond bills, the MBTA is authorized to issue additional bonds for particular capital projects.  
The MBTA is also authorized to issue bonds for the purpose of refunding bonds.  Under the MBTA's enabling act, debt service as 
well as other operating expenses of the MBTA are to be financed by a dedicated revenue stream consisting of the amounts 
assessed on the cities and towns of the MBTA and a dedicated portion of the statewide sales tax.  The amount assessed to each 
city and town is based on its weighted percentage of the total population of the Authority as provided in the enabling act.  The 
aggregate amount of such assessments is generally not permitted to increase by more than 2.5 percent per year. 

(4) Source:  Treasurer, South Shore Regional Vocational-Technical School District.  Assessment is for fiscal year 2010.  The 
operating expenses and debt service of regional school districts are apportioned among the member municipalities in accordance 
with the agreements establishing the districts, subject to the provisions of the Education Reform Act of 1993. 
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Contracts 

 
Municipal contracts are generally limited to currently available appropriations. A city or town generally has authority to enter 
into contracts for the exercise of any of its corporate powers for any period of time deemed to serve its best interests, but 
generally only when funds are available for the first fiscal year; obligations for succeeding fiscal years generally are expressly 
subject to availability and appropriation of funds. Municipalities have specific authority in relatively few cases to enter long-term 
contractual obligations that are not subject to annual appropriation, including contracts for refuse disposal and sewage 
treatment and disposal. Municipalities may also enter into long-term contracts in aid of housing and renewal projects. There 
may be implied authority to make other long-term contracts required to carry out authorized municipal functions, such as 
contracts to purchase water from private water companies. 
 
Municipal contracts relating to solid waste disposal facilities may contain provisions requiring the delivery of minimum amounts 
of waste and payments based thereon and requiring payments in certain circumstances without regard to the operational 
status of the facilities. 
 
Pursuant to the Home Rule Amendment to the Massachusetts Constitution, cities and towns may also be empowered to make 
other contracts and leases. 
 
The Town has entered in contract with International Golf Maintenance of Champions Gate, Florida 33896, to maintain its 
golf course, for the following sums:  August 1, 2004-December 31, 2004, $171,138; January 1, 2005 to December 31, 
2005, $427,425; January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006, $435,973, and utilized the options for years 2007 and 2008 for 
the following sums: January 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007, $435,973; and January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008, 
$444,693, March 1, 2009 to December 31, 2009, $370,578, January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010 $453,587, January 
2011 to December 31, 2011, $462,659.  Performance reviews will take place each November 1 to determine satisfaction 
and subsequent release of annual retainage.  The Town also contracts annually with SEMASS Partnership solid waste 
disposal at $91.50 per ton in fiscal 2010 and $93.50 per ton in fiscal 2011, which includes all hauling costs.  The annual 
cost incurred were $314,000 in fiscal 2007, $306,259 in fiscal 2008, $297,498 in fiscal 2009 and $294,166 in fiscal 2010. 
 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 
The Massachusetts General Laws provide for the establishment of contributory retirement systems for state employees, for 
teachers and for county, city and town employees other than teachers. Teachers are assigned to a separate statewide 
teachers’ system and not to the city and town systems.  For all employees other than teachers, this law is subject to 
acceptance in each city and town. Substantially all employees of an accepting city or town are covered. If a town has a 
population of less than 10,000 when it accepts the statute, its non-teacher employees participate through the county system 
and its share of the county cost is proportionate to the aggregate annual rate of regular compensation of its covered 
employees. In addition to the contributory systems, cities and towns provide non-contributory pensions to a limited number of 
employees, primarily persons who entered service prior to July 1, 1937 and their dependents. The Public Employee 
Retirement Administration Commission (“PERAC”) provides oversight and guidance for and regulates all state and local 
retirement systems. 
 
The obligations of a city or town, whether direct or through a county system, are contractual legal obligations and are required 
to be included in the annual tax levy. If a city or town, or the county system of which it is a member, has not established a 
retirement system funding schedule as described below, the city or town is required to provide for the payment of the portion 
of its current pension obligations which is not otherwise covered by employee contributions and investment income. “Excess 
earnings,” or earnings on individual employees’ retirement accounts in excess of a predetermined rate, are required to be set 
aside in a pension reserve fund for future, not current, pension liabilities. Cities and towns may voluntarily appropriate to their 
system’s pension reserve fund in any given year up to five percent of the preceding year’s tax levy.  The aggregate amount in 
the fund may not exceed ten percent of the equalized valuation of the city or town. 
 
If a city or town, or each member city and town of a county retirement system, has accepted the applicable law, it is required to 
annually appropriate an amount sufficient to pay not only its current pension obligations, but also a portion of its future pension 
liability.  The portion of each such annual payment allocable to future pension obligations is required to be deposited in the 
pension reserve fund.  The amount of the annual city or town appropriation for each such system is prescribed by a retirement 
system funding schedule which is periodically reviewed and approved by PERAC.  Each system’s retirement funding schedule 
is designed to reduce the unfunded actuarial pension liability of the system to zero by not later than June 30, 2030, with 
annual increases in the scheduled payment amounts of not more than 4.5 percent.  The funding schedule must provide that 
payment in any year of the schedule is not less than 95 percent of the amount appropriated in the previous fiscal year.  City, 
town and county systems which have an approved retirement funding schedule receive annual pension funding grants from 
the Commonwealth for the first 16 years of such funding schedule.  Pursuant to recent legislation, a system (other than the 
state employees’ retirement system and the teachers’ retirement system) which conducts an actuarial valuation as of 
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January 1, 2009, or later, may establish a revised schedule which reduces the unfunded actuarial liability to zero by not 
later than June 30, 2040, subject to certain conditions.  If the schedule is so extended under such provisions and a later 
updated valuation allows for the development of a revised schedule with reduced payments, the revised schedule shall be 
adjusted to provide that the appropriation for each year shall not be less than that for such year under the prior schedule, 
thus providing for a shorter schedule rather than reduced payments. 
 
City, town and county systems may choose to participate in the Pension Reserves Investment Trust Fund (the “PRIT Fund”), 
which receives additional state funds to offset future pension costs of participating state and local systems. If a local system 
participates in the PRIT Fund, it must transfer ownership and control of all assets of its system to the Pension Reserves 
Investment Management Board, which manages the investment and reinvestment of the PRIT Fund.  Cities and towns with 
systems participating in the PRIT Fund continue to be obligated to fund their pension obligations in the manner described 
above.  The additional state appropriations to offset future pension liabilities of state and local systems participating in the 
PRIT Fund are required to total at least 1.3 percent of state payroll.  Such additional state appropriations are deposited in the 
PRIT Fund and shared by all participating systems in proportion to their interests in the assets of the PRIT Fund as of July 1 
for each fiscal year. 
 
Cost-of-living increases for each local retirement system may be granted and funded only by the local system, and only if it 
has established a funding schedule.  Those statutory provisions are subject to acceptance by the local retirement board and 
approval by the local legislative body, which acceptance may not be revoked. 
 
Recent legislation provides that upon local acceptance and subject to certain conditions and limitations, a municipality may 
establish and implement an early retirement incentive program.  Any plan for such program must be submitted to PERAC by 
September 27, 2010. 
 
Plymouth County Retirement System 

 
The Town participates in the contributory retirement system of Plymouth County that is partially funded by employee 
contributions.  The Town meets its share of cost primarily on a pay-as-you-go basis by contributing annually the amount 
determined by the State Division of Insurance.  This contribution is a legal obligation of the Town and is required to be 
included in its annual tax levy.  The Town also maintains a noncontributory retirement plan for certain eligible veterans 
who were employed in public service before July 1, 1939. 

 

As of January 1, 2010, the total unfunded pension benefit obligation of the Plymouth County System was $459,137,923, 
as follows: 
 
 Total pension benefit obligation $1,132,847,379 
 Assets at market value 561,424,547 
 
 Unfunded pension benefit obligation $459,137,923 
 
 The Town's estimated share at its participation 
  rate of 6.59%  $24,459,093 
 
Effective July 1, 1991, the System elected to fully fund the accrued actuarial liability under Chapter 32, Section 22 of the 
Massachusetts General Laws.  Under provisions of this law, participating employers are assessed their share of the 
retirement cost based on the entry age normal actuarial cost method. 
 
The System assesses participating employers for their share of pension benefits (less certain interest credits) expected to 
be paid during the year ("pay-as-you-go" method).  This amount is determined in advance by the Public Employee 
Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC) and is based in part on the previous year's benefit payout. 
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The annual contributions of the Town to the Retirement System budgeted for fiscal year 2011 and for the last five fiscal 
years are as follows: 
 
 Fiscal 
 Year Contributory 
 2011 (budget) $3,118,030 
 2010 2,758,350 
 2009 2,668,612 
 2008 2,464,168 
 2007 2,153,248 
 2006 1,939,160 
   
The foregoing data do not include the retirement system costs or liabilities of any larger entity of which the Town is 
constituent part and for which it is assessed a share of expenses. 
 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 

 
In addition to pension benefits, cities and towns may provide retired employees with health care and life insurance benefits.  
The portion of the cost of such benefits paid by cities or towns is generally provided on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The pay-as-
you-go cost to the Town for such benefits in recent years has been as follows: 
 

Fiscal Benefit

Year Costs

2010 1,670,005$       

2009 1,261,833         

2008 1,243,781         

2007 1,152,124         

2006 1,017,000         

2005 931,000             
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) recently promulgated its Statement Nos. 43 and 45, which will for 
the first time require public sector entities to report the future costs of these non-pension, post-employment benefits in their 
financial statements.  These new accounting standards do not require pre-funding the payment of these costs as the liability 
for such costs accrues, but the basis applied by the standards for measurement of costs and liabilities for these benefits is 
conservative if they continue to be funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and will result in larger yearly cost and liability accruals 
than if the cost of such benefits were pre-funded in a trust fund in the same manner as traditional pension benefits.  Cities and 
towns that choose to self-insure all or a portion of the cost of the health care benefits they provide to employees and retirees 
may establish a trust fund for the purpose of paying claims.  In addition, cities and towns may establish a trust fund for the 
purpose of pre-funding other post-employment benefits liability in the same manner as traditional pension benefits. 
 
The Town was required to implement the new GASB reporting requirements for other post-employment benefits beginning in 
fiscal year 2009.  The Town hired USI Consulting Group which performed the actuarial valuation of its post-employment 
benefit liability.  The Town’s estimated unfunded actuarial accrued liability is approximately $49,580,009 and the Town’s 
annual required contribution (‘ARC’) is approximately $5,050,918.  Although there have been no formal discussions on the 
plan to fund the unfunded pension liability, the Town plans to address the issue in the near future.  The Town is aware of 
its unfunded liability and is taking steps to address it at the Annual Town Meeting in April 2011 by creating an OPEB fund. 
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COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 

 
City and town employees (other than managerial and confidential employees) are entitled to join unions and to bargain 
collectively on questions of wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment. 
 
The Town has approximately 642 full and part-time employees, including those in the School Department.  Approximately 
93 percent belong to unions or other collective bargaining groups as shown below: 
 

Number of Contract

Employee by Category Represented by Employees Expires (4)

General Government

   Police International Brotherhood of Police Officers (IBPO) 27 6/30/2009

   Firefighters International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) 51 6/30/2009

   Clerical Workers SEIU 888 (1) 29 6/30/2009

   Service Employees International SEIU 888 (1) 11 6/30/2009

   Public Works Laborers District Council 34 6/30/2012

   Administrators and Managers  SEIU 888 (2) 19 6/30/2013

Total General Government Professionals 171

School

   Teachers Scituate Teachers Assoc./Mass. Teachers Assoc. 274 8/31/2011

   Custodians AFSCME Local 1700 (3) 19 6/30/2011

   Administration and Clerical SEIU/Local 888 15 8/31/2011

   Bus Workers AFSCME Local 1700 (3) 18 6/30/2012

   Aides and Tutors SEIU/Local 888 82 8/31/2011

   Cafeteria Workers SEIU/Local 888 19 8/31/2011

Total School 427

Total 598  
  
(1) American Federation of Labor-Congress of Industrial Organizations. 
(2) Service Employees International Union. 
(3) American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees. 
(4) Expired contracts are currently in negotiations. 

 
LITIGATION 

 

In the opinion of town counsel, no litigation is pending which is likely to result either individually or in the aggregate, in a 
final judgment against the Town which materially will affect its financial position. 
 

____________________ 
 

  TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 
  /s/ Jane C. Lepardo 
  Town Treasurer 
 
March 9, 2011 
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®SELL , CLARK 

	

s ocIA'TE 

The Honorable Members of the Board of Selectmen 
Town of Scituate, Massachusetts 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
M A N A G E M E N T 

	

C O N S U L T A N T S 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPOxT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Scituate, 
Massachusetts (the "Town"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010 which collectively comprise the 
Town's basic financial statements - as -listed in the table o£ contents . These financial statements are-the 
responsibility of the Town's managements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic 
financial statements based on our audit . 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnent Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General o£ the United States . Those standards require that we plan and 
perform. the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement . An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions . 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated February 11, 
2011, on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance . That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the 
results of our audit . 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 -- 10, funding and contribution progress for pension and other post 
employment benefits on page 41, and budgetary comparison information on pages 42 - 43 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements . 
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Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained. during our audit of the basic financial statements . We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance . 

Roselli, Clark and Associates 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 11, 2011 
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As the management of the Town, we offer readers of the Town's financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 . We 
encourage readers to consider the infonnation presented here in conjunction with their review of the 
basic financial statements, notes to the basic financial statements and required supplementary 
information found on pages 11 to 43 in this report . 

r 

r 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

financial Hj lrli�fits 

The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
approximately $103.9 million (total net. assets). Of this amount, approximately $4.7 million (total 
unrestricted net assets) may be utsed to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors, 

The government's total net assets increased slightly, (less than 1%) over the prior year as an increase 
in the governmental net assets of over $0.8 million was offset by a decrease in the Business type net 
assets of over $0 .6 million. 

At June 30, 2010, the 'town's governmental funds balance sheet reported a combined ending fund 
balance surplus of nearly $14,6 million. This represents a decrease of approximately $0 .8 million, or 
5.5%, from the prior year . There were a number of factors that contributed to this net decrease : 

The accounting treatment for certain items vary between the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet, thus the differences in equity and fund balance amounts between 
the two statements noted above. Reconciliations have been provided on page 14 and 16 of the 
accompanying basic financial statements to assist the reader in understanding these differences . 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was approximately 
$2.4 million, or 3 .9%, of total 2010 general fund expenditures . 

The Town's total long-term debt decreased by nearly $3.7 trillion to approximately $40.4 million in 
2010 . This was completely due to regular scheduled maturities as the Town did not enter into any 
new permanent financings during the year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial 
statements . The Town's basic financial statements comprise three components : 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements . This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves . 

Government-Wide Financial Statements . The Government-bide Financial Statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business . 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets . Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may 
serve as a. use trl indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating. 
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The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed 
during the raost recent fiscal year . All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g ., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave.) 

Both of the Government-Wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities) . The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, 
highways and streets, sanitation, education, debt service, fringe benefits and culture and recreation. The 
business-type activities of the Town include water, sewer, golf, waterways and transfer station enterprise 
funds . The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11 and 12 of this report . 

Fund Financial Statements . A ftind is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives . The Town, like other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements . All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories : governmental 
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds. 

	

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements . However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fiend financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at 
the end of the fiscal year. 

	

Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term 
financing requirements . 

Because the focus of governmental Rinds is narrower than that of the goveru nent-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental fiends with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements . By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions. Reconciliations are provided on pages 14 and lb to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental f ands and governmental activities . 

The Town maintains eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fiend balances for the General fund, Stabilization fund, Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
Authority, Affordable Housing and Community Preservation Fund. Data from the other three 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation as Nonmajor Governmental 
funds. 

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund . A budgetary comparison schedule 
has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget . This schedule has 
been prepared as required supplementary information and can be found on page 42 of thus report . 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 1 3 -- 1 & of this report . 
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Proprietary Funds. The Town maintains five types of proprietary funds. Enterprise hands are used to 
report the same hinctions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements . The "town uses enterprise flrnds to account for its water, sewer, golf, waterways and transfer 
station enterprises. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the Government-Wide financial statements, 
only in more detail . The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate infortnation for the 
water, sewer, golf, waterways and transfer station enterprises. The basic proprietary fund financial 
statements can be found on pages 17 to 19 of this report . 

Fiduciary Funds. 

	

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the government . Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statetrient 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support; the Town's own programs . 

	

The 
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds, 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found of pages 20 and 21 of this report . 

Notes to the Financial Statements . The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements . The notes to 
the furancial statements can be found of pages 22 to 40 of this report . 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

Statement of Net Assets (see Exhibit I on pa2e 9) . As noted earlier, net assets may serve over tune as a 
useful indicator of a goverarrtent's financial position . In the case of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities 
by approximately $103.9 million at June 30, 2010 . 

The single largest financial component of net assets reported in the Town's Statement of Not Assets is its 
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt (netted 
down by those amounts expected to be reimbursed by the Commonwealth) used to acquire those assets 
that is still outstanding. The net of these items is approximately $90.4 million, or 86 .9%, of total net 
assets at June 30, 2010 . The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens ; consequently, 
these assets are not available for future spending . Although the Town's investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 

Approximately $8 .8 million, or 8 .5%, of the Town's net assets represent resources that are subject to 
external restriction on how they may be used . The remaining balance of approximately $4.8 million, or 
4.6%, of net assets are categorized as unrestricted net assets, and may be used to meet the Town's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors . 

At June 20, 2010, the Town is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both 
for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities . 

Statement of Activities (see Exhibit 11 on page 10). The government's total net assets increased 
slightly, (less than 1%) over the prior year as an increase in the governmental ciet assets of over $0.8 
million was offset by a decrease in the Business type not assets of over $0.6 million . 
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Major revenue sources of the governmet tai activities include property taxes and operating grants, which 
represented approximately 61 .0% and 22.8% of total 2010 governmental revenues, respectively (62.3% 
and 22.8% in the prior year . Business-type activities consist of revenues from the operatioas of water 
(approximately 30 .6%), sewer (approximately 19,7%), golf (approximately 15.1°/x), transfer station 
(approximately 13.4%) and the waterways funds (approximately 12.4%) . 

Education expenses, which represent the single largest governmental activity, represented over 66.6% of 
2010 total expenses (64.8% in the prior year). Public safety expenses represented approximately 15.1% 
of 2010 total expenses (15 .0% in the prior year) . No other expense categories in governmental activities 
represented over ten percent of total 2010 or 2009 expenses . 

Business-type activities consist of expenses from the operations of water (approximately 37 .1%), sewer 
(approximately 30.1%), golf (approximately 12.0%), transfer station (approximately 10.7%), waterways 
funds (approximately 10.1%) . 

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to erasure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements . 

Governmental Founds . The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources . Such informationx is useful in assessing the 
Town's financing requirements . In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of 
a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year . 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds balance sheet reported a 
combined ending fund balance surplus of approximately $14.6 million. There were a number of factors 
that contributed to this net decrease : 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

The fund balance in the General Fund increased by approximately $2 .1 million . This was 
primarily due to a one-tune grant received from the Massachusetts School Building 
Authority of nearly $1 .0 million. The grant represented an award for construction projects 
the Town completed five years prior. The Town was not expecting these funds. In addition, 
the Town experienced significant savings through its appropriation line items by restricting 
spending at year-end and turning fLuads back to surplus. 
The fund balance in the Mitigation Fund decreased over $1 .8 million; this was primarily 
attributable to a transfer to the general fiend that was used to ptu°chase property . 
The f,uad balances in the Community Preservation Fund decreased by almost $0 .7 trillion; 
this was primarily due to transfers to Affordable Housing to fund construction. 
The fund balance in Nonmgjor govenimental f ands decreased nearly $0.5 million as 
expenditures exceeded revenues and other financing sources (i .e ., proceeds from temporary 
and permanent financings) in 2010 . 

I'roprietaq Funds. The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of hifoamation found in the 
Government-Wide Financial Statements, but in more detail . At June 30, 2010, net assets of the water 
fund amounted to approximately $10.9 million; net assets of the sewer fund amounted to approximately 
$25 .5 million ; net assets of the golf fund amounted to approximately $0.4 million; net assets of the 
waterways fund amounted to approximately $3.9 million; and the net deficit of the transfer station 
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amounted to approximately $0.4 trillion . The Proprietary fund total net assets decreased by 
approximately $0.7 million from the prior year . 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were insignificant . The schedule 
of budgetary information is provided on page 42 . 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration. 

Capital Assets . The Town's investment in capital assets for its goverunental and business type 
activities as of June 30, 2010, amounts to approximately $123 .1 trillion, net of accumulated depreciation . 
In 2010, the Town recorded net capital additions of $7.9 million and depreciation expense of $4.9 
million. 

Additional information on - the Town capital assets can be found in note III. C on pages 30 and 31 of this 
report. 

Long-term Debt. At the June 30, 2010, the Town had total bond indebtedness outstanding of 
approximately $40.4 million. The entire amount comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the 
govenunent. 4f this amount, approximately $13 .1 million represents general obligation bonds of 
governmental activities and approximately $27.3 million represents general obligation bonds of business-
type activities . The Town's total bond indebtedness outstanding decreased by approximately $3.7 
trillion in 2010 as the Town made regular scheduled pay downs of debt . There were no new bond 
issuances in 2010 . 

As o£ June 20, 2010, the Town is entitled to receive reimbursements for principal pay down of these 
notes in the amount of approximately $2 .1 million and future interest also in the amount of 
approximately $2.3 trillion from the MWPAT. 

In addition to permanent bond indebtedness, the Town has approximately $5 .7 million in bond 
anticipation notes payable outstanding at June 30, 2010 . These temporary borrowings are scheduled to 
mature in. March 20 11, 

The Town maintains an "Aa3" rating as set by Moody's for general obligation debt . 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a Town may issue to 5 .0% percent of its total 
assessed valuation . The current debt limitation for the Town is approximately $192.6 million, which is 
significantly in excess of the Town's outstanding general . obligation debt . 

Additional information on the Town's debt can be found in note 111.E and F on pages 32 to 35 of this 
report . 

r 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Dud 

Consistent with bout State and National work force trends, the Town's unemployment rates have 
begun to stabilize over the past 12 months . When the economy rebounds, the Town expects to 
participate in the rebound and ultimately experience an improvement in unemployment . However, 
the extent, tinting or certainty of any economic rebound can not be reasonably estimated at this time . 
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The Town's real estate tax base is made up predominantly of residential taxes, which comprise 
nearly 95 .4 % of the Town's real estate tax base . The Town does not rely heavily on its commercial 
or industrial real estate tax base . In addition, Chapter 580 of the Acts of 1980, more commonly 
referred to as Proposition 2 '/z, limits the Town's ability to increase taxes in any one year by more 
than two and one-half percent (2 1z%) of the previous year tax levy . 

Consistent with both State and National indices, the Town's housing market is in a downward trend. . 
Housing prices are approximately 20% to 25% lower than their 2005 peaks. As the economy 
rebounds, the Town expects its housing market to participate ratably in the rebound. However, the 
extent, timing or certainty of any housing rebound can not be reasonably estimated at this time . 

All of the above items were considered when the Town developed its budget for fiscal year 2011 . 

On Ap6I 12, 2010, Town Meeting approved the Town's Fiscal year 2011 budget . All of the above items 
were considered when the Town developed this budget . General Fund appropriations approved were 
approximately $54.4 million, and Enterprise fund appropriations approved were approximately $10.3 
mullion . Far the General fluid, property taxes of approximately $43 .1 million (net of overlay) make up 
approximately 79.2% of the appropriation funding sources (this includes debt exclusion overrides of $1 .1 
million to fund debt on school construction, computers and books, as well as Sewer debt of $0.6 million), 
State aid of approximately $6.7 million make up approximately 12.3 °/o of the appropriation funding 
sources. The remainder is funded from local receipts transfers from special revenue funds and prior year 
appropriations, and reimbursements from Enterprise funds for indirect costs. Funding for Enterprise 
funds is made up primarily from user charges and a subsidy from the General fund . 

The Town's tax rate for 2011 was set on November 17, 204 0. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all those with 
an interest in the government's finances . Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Town 
Accountant, 600 Chief Justice Cushing Way Scituate, Massachusetts 02066. 
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Em13rr I 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

a 

	

As restaled; see footnote VI 

NET ASSETS 

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total 

Assets 
2010 

restated 

2009 2010 

restated 

2009 2010 

restated 

2009 

Current and other assets $ 22,139,405 S 22,536,772 $ 19,630,821 $ 20,524,054 S 40,820,226 $ 43,110,826 

Capital assets, net 67,913,621 64,425,043 55,222,844 55,569,351 123,136,465 119,994,394 

Total Assets 90,053,026 87,011,815 73,903,665 76,093,405 163,956,691 163,105,220 

Liabilities 

Long term liabilities 21,603,273 19,742,890 29,274,992 31,273,864 50,878,265 51,016,754 

Other liabilities 4,791,483 4,458,484 4,363,955 3,944,228 9,155,438 8,362,712 

Total Liabilities 26,394,756 24,201,374 33,638,947 35,178,092 60,033,703 59,379,466 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt 54,816,911 49,839,475 35,539,137 35,437,109 90,356,043 85,276,584 

12c;trieled 8,814,140 11,682,072 - 8,814,140 11,682,072 

Unrestricted 27,219 1,238,89-4 4,725,591 5,478,204 4,752,800 6,767,098 

Total blet Assets $ 63,658,270 4 1 62,810,441 $ 40,264,718 a $ 40,915,313 $ 103,922,988 a S103,725,754 
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Waterways 
Total expenses 

EXHIBIT 11 
GOVERINtviENT-WIIM FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

CHANGES !N NG'FASSGTS 

,,,,
911,562 

	

859,709 

	

911,562 
9,048,002 8,614,108 78,045,237 

1,173,451 
859,709 

79,436,768 

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total 

20[0 
restated 
2009 2010 _ 

restated 
2009 

restated 
2010 2009 

Revenues : 
Program revenues : 
Charges for services $ 4,818,296 $ 4,490,403 $ - 5 - $ 4,818,296 $ 4,490,403 
Operating grants and contributions 15,955,756 15,276,240 132,208 - 16,087,964 15,276,240 
Capital grants and contributions 2,346,192 367,699 571,042 611,006 2,917,234 978,705 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 42,750,176 41,719,348 - - 42,750,1745 41,719,348 
Intergovernmental 1,738,954 2,278,639 - - 1,738,954 7,278,639 
Other 2,485,126 2,886,366 21,578 - 7,506,704 2,836,366 

Water - - 2,489,921 2,893,896 7,489,921 2,893,896 
Sewer - - 1,602,906 2,385,755 1,602,906 2,385,755 
Golf - - 1,229,438 1,272,09 1,229,438 1,>_72,n09 
Transfer Station - - 1,093 206 1,050,712 1,093,206 1,050,712 
Waterways - - 1,007,672 955,841 1,007,672 955,841 

Total revenues 70,094,500 67,018,695 8,147,971 9,169,219 78,242,471 76,187,914 

lixpenses: 
General government 3,246,946 3,787,065 - - 3,246,946 3,787,065 
Public safety 11,084,521 10,583,636 - - 11,084,521 10,538,636 
Education 44,988,566 45,865,8821 - - 44,988,566 45,865,88=F 
Public works 5,249,424 6,278,142 - - S.249,424 6,278,142 
Health and human services 646,098 1,109,657 - - 646,098 1,109,65"7 
Culture and recreation 3,215,979 2,544,847 - 3,215,979 ',544,347 
Debt servicc 565,702 648,429 - - 565,702 6=1$,4?9 
Water - - 3,356,155 2,623,876 3,356,155 2,G23,$76 
Sewer - - 2,727,459 2,898,587 2,727,459 2,898,587 
Golf - 1,085,893 1,058,485 1,095,893 1,055,485 
Transfer Station - 966933 1173451 966933 

Change: in net assets before transfers 1,097,265 (3,803,9fi5) (900,031) 555,111 197,334 (3,243,$5 

Transfers (349,436) (274,219) 249,436 274,319 - 

Increase in net assets $47,829 (4,078,1$4) (4550,595) 529,330 197,334 (3,248,35 

Net assets -Uaginningofyear a 62,$1D,d4t a 66,$88,625 a 40,915,313 a 40,U85, 1?$3 a 103,7? 5,754 a 106,974,609 

Net assets- end of year $ 63 .65$,270 a $ 62,$10,441 $ 40,264,718 a $ 40,915,313 $103,92'3,988 a $103,725,75=F 

n As restated ; see footnote VI 
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

STATEMENT OF N9C ASSETS 
JUNG: 30, 2010 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 

ASSETS 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

CURRENT: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,244,240 5,951,578 4 23,195,818 
Restricted cash and equivalents 402,398 - 402,398 
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles : 
Real estate and personal property taxes 720,655 - 720,655 
Departmental and other 2,009,035 1,322,143 :3,331,178 
Betterm.ents - 9,287,431 9,287,431 
Intergovernmental 1,763,077 2,064,469 3,827,546 

Inventory - 55,200 55,200 
Land 17,883,907 3,675,000 21,558,907 
Construction in process 1,274,838 1,225,086 2,499,924 
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 48,754,876 50,322,758 99,077,634 

TOTAL ASSETS 90,053,026 73,903,665 163,956,691 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT: 
Warrants and accounts payable 1,534,594 463,357 1,997,951 
Accrucdpayroll 1,158,899 - 1,158,899 
Retainage - 42,811 42,811 
Unearned revenue - 101,939 101,939 
Other liabilities 151,546 2,169 153,715 
Bond anticipation notes payable 1,946,444 3,753,679 5,700,123 
Noncurrent liabilities : 
Due in one year 2,285,493 2,415,127 4,700,620 
Due in more than one year 19,317,781 26,859,865 46,177,646 

TO'T'AL LIABILITIES 26,394,756 33,638,947 60,033,703 

NE'C ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 54,816,91 t 35,539,137 90,356,048 
Restricted 8,814,140 - 8,814,140 
Unrestricted net assets 27,219 4,725,581 4,752,800 

NET ASSETS $ 63,658,270 S 40,264,718 $ 103,922,988 
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TOWN Of SCITUATF,11ASSACHUSUTS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNF 30. 2010 

pro 

	

m Revenues 

	

Nor (Bx enseg) Revenues and Chan 

	

in Net Assets 
Operating Capital 

Cuenses 

FUNCTIONS/PROG&4RIS 
(1' v en al A wi i= 

Charges far Grants and 
Services Contri butions 

Grants and 
Contributions 

Governmental 
Aetivilicr. 

llnsiuss-T)PG 
Activities -rata! 

Gencralgovernment S 3,246,946 S 663,889 S 449.032 S - $ (2,134,025) $ S (2,134,025) 
Public safety 11,084,521 1,385,721 326,776 - (9,572,024) - (9,572,024) 
Education 44,988,566 2,107,151 14,993,097 - (27,888,318) - (27,888,318) 
Pablicworks 5,244,424 14,930 ¬ 15,431 1,969,430 (3,153,653) (3,153,653) 
Health and human services 646.098 62.229 185,843 - (398,027) - (398.027) 
Culture and recreation 3,215,979 588,397 85,577 376,762 (2,165,243) - (2,165,243) 
Deat service 565,702 - (565,742) - (565,702) 

Total 06vemnacnwl Activities 68,497,235 4,91 S_% 15,955,756 2,346,192 (45,876991) - (45,876,991) 

$usines- ACiivif es: 
Water 3,356, ;55 2,489,921 - !$66,2341 (866,234) 
Sewer 2,727,459 1,602,906 - 321,551 (803,012 ; (803,002) 
Transfer Station 966,933 L093,206 - 126273, 126,273 
Golf 1,085,893 1,229,438 143;545 143,545 
Watenvays 911,562 1,007.672 ¬ 32,208 2-19,491 477,809 477,8(19 

Total Primary Government S 75,045,237 $ i2-241A39 S 16,087,964 $ 2,917?34 (45,,576,991) (921,609) (46,798,600) 

G-Mmj~uzs: 
Real and personal property razes 42,750,176 - 42,750,176 
Penalties and uvesest on taxes 367,174 - 367,17-1 
Motor vehicle and other excise 2,)45,931 - 2145,931 
Intergovernfnental 1,738,954 - 1,738,954 
Inves[mentincome 188,874 21,578 210,452 
Loss an disposai of assets, net (216,853) - (216,8531 

Transfers net): (249,436) 249,436 - 

Total general revenues and transfers 46,-,P24,820 271,014 46,995,834 

Change in Net Assets 847,929 (650,595) 197,234 

Net Assets : 
Scgianingofyenr 62,653,917 40,733,835 103,387,752 

Prior period restatement (see footnote VII) 156,524 181,478 338,0112 

End of year S 63,658,270 S 40,264,718 5 103,922,988 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral par: of this statement . 
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TOWN OF SCMAM MASSACRUSETPS 

COVCRNMENTAL FUNDS 
RAL,ANCE SHErT 

.fl:Nta 30, 201(1 

Nanmajor Total 

The notes to the Ananciai statornents are mn intsprel port of this eiatamrnt. 

ASSETS 

Ciencta7 5ud,iliz~ui ssn ;4ioit ",stinn 
Community 
Preservation 

Affordable 
Flousin - 

GovcKnmctaa¬ 
Fundx 

Csave:nmentxl 
Funds 

Cash and short-term mvestmetlts S 5.042,938 S 3,203,033 S 936,953 $ 5 .433 -81 5i 951,449 S 3,757,587 S 17,344,240 
Pecvivables, sec of allmvance for unceiie :-~Dles: 

Real estate and personal property taxes 665,030 - 55,625 - - 720,655 
91Lscr 2,409035 _ _ _ ? 009,035 
puefromCommonwealth-Grants ,Si3,(1[iEl _ _ _ ;83,077 1,763,071 

Due from other funds - - - - - - - 
Cash-restricted 443,398 402,398 

Total Assets S 8,697,00, S 2:303,0;2 S 9x6,953 S 5,+188,906 5 S±7,449 S 3,933,063 5 22 (39:10."" 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIASTLMES : 
Warraatsandaccounispayable T- 1,043,84$ 5 S - 5 76,183 $ S 414,56 ¬ S 1,534 .594 
Aocntad payroll and withholdings 1,158.899 1,158,899 
Deferred revenues 3,674,065 - 52 .002 - 2,726,067 
Unearned rwennes 103,622 - 8394 - - 112-016 
Outer 39.530 . _ _ 39 .150 
Bond anticipation ants payable - - - 1 .945 .44-1 1,946,444 

TotalLiabilities 5,019,964 136.591 2361,005 ?_517-550 

FUND BALANCES (OFRCIT) : 
Reserved for. 
Jinnnbrauces 1 .076 .784 1,076,184 
Eapenditnrrs 885 .100 - - - 885.300 
Sinsilizmiaa 2202,032 
N413TA - - 956.953 - - - 956,953 
Community preservation _ - _ 5 .352.335 - - 5.352,335 
Affordable housing - - - - 851 .449 - 851 .449 

Unreserved- 
Undcsigoated, reported in : 
CCDCMIfund 1,715,555 - - - - 1,715" 555 
Special revenue funds - - - - 3 .841-657 2841,657 
capital projects funds deficit - - - - - {5 .661,998) (1 .661,998) 
Permanent funds - - -°,02398 402,398 

Total Fund Balances 3 ..677,039 2,202,032 956,95 ; 535?,325 85 ; .449 1,582 .057 14.621,855 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S 8,697,093 S 3,302,033 S 956,953 S 5,488,906 S 851,449 S 3,943,063 S ~,139,405 
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TOWN Of SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30, 2010 

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 14,621,855 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. 67,913,621 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures 
and are therefore deferred on funds. 2,726,067 

Long-terra liabilities are not clue and payable in the current period and, therefore, 
are not reported in the government funds : 

Bonds and notes payable (13,096,710) 

Other post employment benefits (6,863,294) 

Compensated absences (1,643,270) 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 63,658,269 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternerlt . 
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TOINN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSLTTS 

GOV FRN,MENTAL FUNDS 
STATZINENT OF REVENUTS, EXPENDITIR2FS, 

ANDCHANCES IN FUAD BALANCES 
VF MR ENf1FP JUNE 30. 2010 

The notes to the financial statements are z' intceral part Of this statement . 

General Stabilization Miti .eation 
Community 
Preservation 

AFroAablc 
Housing 

NonmTor 
Csaventmental 

Funds 

Total 
Qoecnrlncntal 

Funds 

REVENUES , 
Rcal estate and pmmtai pml=tytaxes, nrx 5 43,007,719 S _ S - $ 99,1 .875 S - S - 5 43,002,594 
Motor vehicleaadalherexdscs 2,125,130 2,525,130 
Penalties and interest on taxes 367.174 367.174 
1zfetgovemmentul 14365,629 - - 376,762 - 4,532.744 l9A75,135 
Dapanmentatandaihcr 1,887,562 - - - - 3,762,803 9 .6511,365 
Coatrihutionsenddoamions 434=65 434,265 
lavatatent income 122-50b 15.813 11 .502 31,688 5,163 2,203 955,57. 
Miscellaneous 13150' 13150? 

Total Revames 61,0?5 .7-0 1 :313 : J :02 L40 225 5.163 7+ .96.:.516 70 .375.039 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Tnmslersin 2.4410,7114 °1,415 - - 700,000 5.5GtF 5,115,5_.3 

Total OtherFnmcing Se=es 2AM.709 9 .4113 - - 700.00 5.50 3,115,624 

ToWR~,erwesandOrIterFinaccingSourcc 63.476,439 35,328 11,502 1,403,325 705,163 7,869,016 73,490,663 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 4,067,542 _ - 657,851 4,725,393 
Public safety 7.154,1 19 - - 115,173 7,269,292 
Fdacafion 27, :16~10 - - 4,449,038 33 .965,248 
Public worts 2,980,636 - - 3,506,985 5,487,621 
Culture and reaeaion 1 .126,507 - 353,731 546,441 2,226,679 
fiealth and human sacviccs 382,153 - - IIG,D72 492.225 
State a rd county tax as55mmatts 547,726 - - - 547,726 
Pension nod other fringes 14,687,400 - - - 14,687,400 
Community preservation J �.S6,J30 - - 12.56,130 
Debtservice 2,161-7"13 2,184,743 

TOW Expeaditum 60,644,06 :.386,130 553.7;1 S.3S5,660 74,969,457 

(3THERFiNANCINC USES 
Transfers out '6.147 1 .975,ilM 7170,001(k 27573 3365.07D 

Total ExpenditurasandOtherFinandngUscs 61,405, :33 1,875,000 2.w,13o 533,731 8,413,433 74,334,5'17 

;DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUES AVd 
O=FLNA.NCLNTc SOURCES OVax 
EXPF1DITFJEESANDOTHER FtWANC"NO1 2.070.196 25,228 (I,S63,49S) (682.505) 75]A31 (544A17) L843,S64) 

FCWDHA"NCES-Beginning ofy= 1 .6% .843 2,176,804 2,920,451 6,035,1 ;0 700,017 2,126.474 15,465,719 

FUND RALANCES-Endofyear $ 3,677,039 $ 2,262,032 $ 956,9 S 5,352,315 $ 87,449 $ 1,82,057 $ 14,621,855 
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FIENDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 311, 2010 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Fund Balances $ (843,864) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of 
Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 
Capital outlays amounted to $6,680,329 and depreciation expense totaled $2,974,898 . 
the net amount is reflected here as a reconciling item, 3,705,431 

The Town disposed capital assets with historical costs of $609,065 and accumulated depreciation 
of $392,212 . (216,853) 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, 
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the financial resources of 
governmental funds. Neither has any efteet on net assets. Also governmental funds report 
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, 
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities . During the 
year there were repayments of $1,488,858 ; there were no new debt issuanes. 1,488,858 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are 
fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances. 
Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable differ 
between tbo two statements . The amount presented represents the difference based on 
the two methodologies . (63,686) 

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt, whereas in 
governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This represents the difference between 
the accruals between this year and the prior year. 127,183 

Some expenses reported in the Statement. of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds ; 

Compensated absences 137,078 
Other post employment benefits (3,486,318) 

Change In Net Assets of Governmental Activities 847,829 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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The notes to the fninncial statements are an integral part or this matemeta . 

TOWN OF SCff1) vi-E, MASSACHUSETTS 

I'RAPRIrTARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 

JUNE 311, 2010 

ASSET'S 
Water Sewer Transfer Station 

Widow's Walk 
Ciolfcourse Waterways 

Combined 
Total 

CURRENT ASSETS : 
Cash and short-term investments S 2,050,543 S 2A62,505 63,505 $ 01,890 S 298,654 ,S 1,25f,986 "~ 5,951,573 
Receivables, net o r allowance Nor ancollactibles: 
User fcos 893,4'25 428,7 L8 - - - 1,322,143 
Intcrgovemmenlel - 219,466 - - - 219,466 

Inventory - - 55,200 55 .200 
TolatCurrent Assets 2.933,968 2.8 10,6ag 197,890 353,854 1,?51,986 7,544,387 

NONCURRENT ASSET'S : 
Intergovermnental - 1,845,003 - - 1,845,003 
Unappartioned assessments - 9,237,431 - - 9,287,431 
Land - - 3,675,000 3,675,000 
Construction in process 19;198-1 588,602 - 437,500 1,225,086 
Capital assets, netofaccumulateddCprcciation 10,402,980 32 .438,029 1,630.381. 2,677,475 3,123,893 50,322,758 

Total Assets 13,535,932 47,019,754 1,828,271 3,031,339 8,488,379 73 .903,665 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES : 
Warrants and aiaxunts payable 199,538 1091 120 96,453 20,938 37,009 463,357 
Bond indcbtutinm [33,000 2,480,350 37,000 300,000 275,000 2,225,350 
Notes payable 2,222,000 1,452,679 150,000 - 929,000 3,753,679 
Other liaHlities 32,730 10,081 - 104,108 146,919 
Capital lease obligations - - - 56,956 - 56,956 
Landfill liabilLty - 75,000 75,000 
Compensated absences 13,951 22,395 8,780 l'd,695 57,821 

Total Corrout Liabilities [.501,219 3,07,I t925 367,232 482,002 1,253,704 6,779,082 

NONCURRENT : 
Bonds and notes payable 933,000 18,326,578 507,000 2,040,000 3,250,000 25,056,578 
Capital lease obligations - - - 77,349 - 77,349 
Landfill liability - - 1,350,000 - - 1,350,000 
Other post employment benefits 130,371 69,146 37,403 32,134 49,063 318,117 
Compensated absences 13 .951 22,395 8,780 - 12,695 57,821 

Total NomtltrontUabilltias 1,077,322 18,418,119 1X3,[83 2,149,48 3 3,311,758 
_ 

26,859,865 

Total Liabilities 2,678,541 21,493,044 2;?70,415 2,63 1,05 4,565,462 33,618 .947 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 

Retained earnings (deficiency)-unrestricted 2,543,437 2,357,786 (1,378,525) 62,369 1,140,524 4,725,581 
Investment in capital assets, net ofdebt 8,313,964 23,168,924 436,351 - 337,475 - 2,792 393 35,539,137 

Total Net Assets (Deficit) S 10,857,391 S 25 .r26,710 S (442,144) S 399,844 S 3,922,917 S 40,264.718 
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
S'IATF:4IENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NETASSUFS (DEFICIT) 

YEAR ENDED ,TUNE 30, 2(110 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Water Sewer Traivsferglation 
Widow's Walk 
GoIPCcurse Waterways 

Combined 
Total 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charge& for setvices S 2,489,921 :6 1 .602,9116 S 1.093,206 S 1,093,873 $ 86-1,507 $ 7,144;113 
Other 135,565 143,155 278,720 

Total Operating Revenues .489,921 1.602,906 1,093,206 1,229,438 1,007,662 7,423,133 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operatingcosm 3,877,674 1,147,076 878,377 793,141 473,484 6,169,752 
Depreciation 438,431 864,606 73,328 229,092 328.044 1,933,501 - 

TutalOparatin&Expenses 3,316,105 2,011,682 951,705 1,022.233 801,528 8,103,253 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (826,184) 008,776) 14 ¬,501 207.305 206,134 (680,120) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ; 
lattergovenwtental - 321,551 - - 249,491 571,042 
Donatiorv, - - - 132,208 132,208 
interest income 8,974 6.805 332 1 ;195 3,972 21,578 
Interest expense (40,050) (715,777) (15,228) (63,660) (110,034) (914,749) 
"transfers in (out), net (18?..136) 515,840 31 .917 (40,146) (76.029) 249,446 

Total NonoperafngRevettaes(Expenses),net (213,213) 128,419 17,021 (102,311) 199,608 29,525 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (1,039,396) (280,357) 158,522 104,894 _ 405,742 650_595) 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - Beginning of year 11,639,543 35,774,478 (582 262) 310,761 3,541,3 f5 40,733,835 

Prior period restatetnent(seefootnote VI) 207,244 3?,589 (18,404) (15,311) (24,140) 181 ;178 

NGT ASSETS (DEFICIT)- End of year 5 10,857,391 S 25 .526.710 5 (442.144) 5 399,8-14 S 3,9"..2 .917 S 40.26.1.718 
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Tim notes to tlrc 5carcial statcnmnts are an intogml pact of this matenta :u . 

TOWN OF SCITUNIT 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 .2010 

Water Sewer 
Transkr 
Station Golf Waienva5z 

Combined 
Tolat 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts frrnn usuz S 2,285,288 $ 1,533,764 $ 1,093.206 S 1,093,873 S 864,507 S 6,390,638 
Orherreccipls - - - 131,640 143,155 :74,795 
Payments to vtMorsandcrtp1c)= ('1,819,91 8) 11,073,533) ( 9?7,156) (758,953) (411,333) {6,005,378) 

NetCmhProvidcdby(Usedin)OperatingActivities (534,560) 475,211 166,(!50 466,555 586,279 1,159.555 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPfI"A1. FINANCING ACTIVITIM 
Tmnsfem-net. ~_I 83.136) 515,440 31,911 - {411,146) 176,1P9) 249,446 

NetCash(Used o:) Provided by Nuncapaial Related Financing Activities { 182,1)6) 515.840 31 .917 { " 10,1+G) (76.029) _4'),346 

CASH FLOWS MOM CAPITAL AND 
R8LATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES : 
Proceeds from ate Issuance orbonds and notes - 150,000 600,000 750,000 
Actlulsldonandcons"edanofcapioJasseta (207,511) (537,305) (146,500) - (669,331) (I,5&1, .138) 
Amesssnaois received - 789,357 - - 739,357 
Goyerninentgnurts - 544,093 - _49,191 793,584 
)3nnaricrla - - 02 .203 133,205 
Principal paymenlsof)nutes - (12,321) - - - (1=,321) 
Principal paymmisanbonds: (132,000) (1,446,281) (37,000) (?95,090) (175,000) (1,135,2811 
Ptincipalpaymansoncapital lcass - - - (51,141) 
Interest expense (54,870) (837, .548) (22,843) (93,313) 1 ~-~ ( 3,79? (1,161,366) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used irN Capital and Related Financing Atdvides (394,381) { 1,500,505) (56,34 (439,454) (I 16,415} (2,507,098) 

CASH FLOWS FR0141 INVESTING ACTIVITIE5: 
fnvsttnentincome 5,97-1 6 .81)5 332 1493 3,9 .'2 ,"" 1575 

Net Cash Pnovi(IM by Nveafing Activities 3,974 6 .8 :)5 331 -_ 1 .491 3.972 __ 1 .578 

NFfCHANGE INCASH ANDEQUIVALENTS (1,10:,1103) 1502,629) 141,956 {11,$501 397,807 (1,0711,51,)) 

CASH AND 9QUIVALENTS : 
Beglanlngnfyeor 3,1 " 11,646 _ 2.fife±,ll-I 5 5,9~sJ 110104 _ :{54,179 7 .028,097 

Ellaofyear S Ln4%543 
~ 

5 E.162,505 $ 197,9M 5193.654 . 3 1,251,986 S 5,931,3773 , 

RECONCILIATION Or OPERATING MOMETO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY (1I5M) IN) OPERATING ACTIVIT1ESt 

Opentfnyincume0nss) F (826,194) S (408,776) S 141,501 S 207,105 S 206,l34 S (680,120) 

nepreciat1611 eapcn4a 43$"131 864,606 73,328 229,092 12S,044 1,933,501 
Cllantps in ossoli acid liabilities : 
Rueoivnblcs ('204,633) (48,793) - (153,125) 
lavetttory - - - 7,760 - 7,760 
Uneas%ted revenoo - (3,935) 1.7,9_5) 
Accounts payable and accreted arepeoses .57.8:6,. 68.193 (48 .770} 26,423 52.10l 15 .5,76-1 

Not Ca-ill Prmlcied By ([lied For) Operating Activities S f5.149601 s S 473.231 S l ~ ti10~0 5 466 .55; - $.56.279 5 1 .157,5.15 _ 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL. AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Dormvingunder capital Wses 5 - $ - $ - S 19,915 S S 
Purchaaeofeyuipincatonaccount 19,915 - 
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30, 2010 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement . 

ASSETS 

Trust 

Private 
Purpose 

Funds Agency 

CURRENT: 
Cash and cash equivalents ! . 360,272 $ 594,278 
Receivables - 29,142 

Total Assets 360,272 623,420 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT: 
Planning board deposits _ 564,278 
Student activity accounts 30,000 
Accounts payable and accred expenses 29,142 

Total Liabilities - 623,420 

NET ASSETS 

Held in trust for other purposes 360,272 - 

Net Assets $ 360,272 S 
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE, 30, 2010 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement . 

Trust 

Private 
Purpose 

Funds 

ADDITIONS: 
Investment income and donations 1,542 

Total Additions 1,542 

EXPENDITURES : 

Scholarships and assistance 15,750 

Total Deductions 15,750 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (14,208) 

NET ASSETS - Beginning of year 374,480 

NET ASSETS - End of year $ 360,272 
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3f1, 2010 

nificant Accounting Policies 

The basic financial statements of the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (the "Town") have been 
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") as applied to state 
and local governments . GAAP is prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
("GASB"), which is the primary standard-setting body for state and local governmental entities . The 
following is a summary of the more significant policies and practices used by the Town : 

A. Reporting Entity - The Town is located in Plymouth County and was incorporated as a town in 
1636 . An elected five-member Board of Selectmen governs the Town and a Town Administrator 
performs and oversees the daily executive and administrative duties . The Town provides 
governmental services for the territory within its boundaries, including police and fire protection, 
public education in grades K-12, water and sewer services, street maintenance, parks and 
recreational facilities . Water and sewer services, which are funded almost entirely with user 
charges, are provided via connections installed and maintained by the Town directly . 

B. Individual Component Unit Disclosures - Component units, while separate entities, are in 
substance part of the governmental operations of the Town due to the significance of their 
operations and financial relationship with the Town . Pursuant to this criteria there are no entities 
classified as component units in this report . 

C. Government-Wide and Y'and Financial Statements - The Government-Wide financial 
statements (i .e ., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) report information 
on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government . For the most part, the effect of 
interfund activity has been removed from these statements . Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported on these 
statements. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of 
a given function or segment are offset by program revenues . Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. 
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues . 

Separate financial statements are provided for Governmental Funds . Major individual 
Governmental Funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements, 

Il . Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - The 
Government-Wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary funds and fiduciary fund financial 
statements . Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
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incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

	

Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied . Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental Fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting . Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available . Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period . For this purpose, the government considers property tax revenues to be available 
if they are collected within sixty (60) days of the end of the current fiscal period . Expenditures 
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting . However 
expenditures related to debt service, compensated absences, claims and judgments, and risk 
financing, are recorded only when payment is due. Interest income associated with the current 
fiscal period is considered being susceptible to accrual and so has been recognized as revenues of 
the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available 
only when the government receives cash. 

The government reports the following major Governmental Funds: 

General Fund - is the government's primary operating fund . 

	

It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund . 

Stabilization Fund - is used to account for certain unencumbered accumulated financial 
resources that are subject to appropriation as directed by the Town's Legislative branch . 
These funds are typically used for nonrecurring expenditures, usually capital in nature or 
unexpected items that may arise during the year. 

litiaativn Fund -- is used to account for funds received from the Massachusetts Bay 
Transportation Authority ("MBTA') in relation to a mitigation agreement between the Town 
and the MBTA, in which the MBTA has been allowed to operate a railway transportation 
service through the Town. 

Affordable I-Iousine Fund - is used to account for funds associated with the Town's 
affordable housing program, which assists qualifying homeowners with down payment 
programs. This is a new major fund in fiscal year 2010 . 

Commun_ity Preservation Fund - is used to account for specific activities related to the 
purchase of land parcels within the Town for conuriunity preservation purposes . 

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds consist of special revenue, capital projects and permanent 
fluids that are aggregated and presented in the Nonmajor Governmental Funds column on the 
Governmental Funds financial statements . The following describes the general use of these fund 
types: 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
(other than permanent funds or capital projects funds) that are restricted by law or 
administrative action to expenditures for specified purposes . 
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The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities . 

The Permanent Funds are used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to 
the extent that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the 
governmental programs . 

The government reports the following major Proprietary Funds: 

Entertrrise Rinds - uses the "economic resources" measurement focus to account for the 
following specific operations in a manner similar to private business enterprises : 

Water - accounts for user charges collected to finance costs associated with maintaining 
the related infrastructure within the Town boundaries by which the water activities are 
processed. 

Sewer - accounts for user charges collected to finance costs associated with maintaining 
the related infrastructure within the Town boundaries by which the sewer activities arc 
processed. 

Widow's Walk Gaff Course - accounts for the operations of the Town's golf course 
facility, which is maintained through the collection of user fees . 

waterways - accounts for user fees and costs associated with the protection, tracking, 
oversight, and usage of waterways surrounding or within the Town's borders. Fees are 
primarily derived. front public marina slips and moorings maintained by the Town . 

Transfer Station - accounts for user fees and costs associated with the Town's pay-as-
you throw facility for tiousehold refuse. 

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types : 

Private-Purpose Trust Fund - is used to account for resources legally held in trust for use in 
funding scholarships and energy support for qualified citizens. There is a requirement that a 
portion of these resources be preserved as capital . 

A e_ ncv-Fund - is used to account for funds in which the 'town legally acts as an agent; these 
include Student Activities, Police and Fire detail, and Planning Board deposits, 

Private-sector standards of accounting and fmancial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in both the Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund financial statements 
to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB . 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their 
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subj ect to the same limitation . The Town has 
elected to follow private-sector guidance . 

As a general rule the effect of interfand activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exeeptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and other 
charges between the Town's water and sewer function and various other functions of the 
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government, Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues 
reported for the various functions concerned . 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments, Internally dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather than as program revenues . Likewise, general revenues include all taxes . 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items . 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations . The 
principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and 
services . Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets . All revenues not meeting this 
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses, When both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed . 

Deposits and investments -- The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on 
hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or 
less from the date of acquisition. 

State statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, 
commercial paper, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements and the State Treasurer's Investment 
Pool . Investments for the Town are reported at fair value. The State Treasurer's Investment 
fool operates in accordance with state laws and regulations . The reported value of the pool is 
the same as the fair value of the pool shares . 

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity 

Interfund Balances - Activity between funds that are representative of lending; arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either dare to/from other funds or 
advances to/from other funds. All other outstanding; balances between funds are reported as due 
tolfrow other funds. 

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type 
activities are reported in the Government-Wide financial statements as internal balances . 

Receivables - All property tax, trade, and intergovernmental receivables are shown net of an 
allowance for doubtful collections. Real estate and personal property taxes are assessed on 
January I every year. Bills are sent quarterly and are due on August 1, November 1, February 1, 
and May 1, or thirty (3b) days subsequent to the mailing date . Interest accrues on delinquent 
taxes tip to the statutory percentage rate per annum. The Town is allowed to take delinquent tax 
accounts into tax title fourteen (14) days subsequent to the mailing of demand of delinquent 
taxes . 

Inventories � and Prepaid Items -- Inventories, which are not material to the basic financial 
statements, are considered to be expenditures at the time of purchase . 
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Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the Government-Wide and Government Fund financial 
statements . 

Restricted Assets -- Certain cash and investment balances are classified as restricted assets on the 
balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is limited by 
the provisions of certain trust documents. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets include property, plant, and equipment and are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements . Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost in 
excess of $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two (2) years. Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets 
are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation . 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed . 

The Town's property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 

Structures and improvements 

	

40 years 
Equipment, furniture, fixtures and vehicles 

	

5 years 

Co mpensated Absences -W It is the Town's policy to allow employees to accumulate all earned but 
unused vacation time and to allow sick pay benefits in accordance with union contracts and 
personnel bylaws which limit the amount of payback upon an employee's tern:fnation. The 
estimated obligation as of June 30, 2010 is recorded as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets . 
A liability for these amounts is reported. in Goveruunental Funds only if they have matured. 

Low-term Obligations - In the Government-Wide financial statements, and proprietary fund 
types in the Governmental Fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fiend type Statement of Net Assets . Bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bond anticipation 
notes payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount . Bond issuance costs 
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the Government Fund financial statements, Governmental Fund. types recognize bond 
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period . The face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources . Premiums received on a debt 
issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts as other financing uses . 
Issuance costs are exclusively reported as debt service expenditures regardless of whether they 
are withheld from the actual proceeds . 

Risk- Financing - The Town participates in a premium based self-insurance group or premium 
based coverage through conventional carriers to insure for health benefits, and general and 
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personal liability . The Town is self-insured for Workman's compensation and unemployment 
claims . Uninsured losses are recorded as expenditures when incurred. 

Encumbrances - The Town employs encumbrance accounting as a significant aspect of 
budgetary control in the Governmental Fund types. Encumbrance accounting reserves that 
portion of an applicable appropriation that the Town is contractually bound through purchase 
orders, contracts and/or other commitments for expenditure of funds. Encumbrances outstanding 
at year-end are reported as reservations of fiend balance as they do not constitute expenditures or 
liabilities. 

Fund Egzaity - In the Governmental Fund financial statements, Governmental Funds report 
reservations of fiend balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally 
restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance 
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 

nee and Accountability 

A. Budgetary Information -- An annual budget is legally adopted for the General Fund and the 
Enterprise Fund. Financial orders are initiated by department heads, reconunended by the 
Finance Committee and approved by Town Meeting annually in March. Expenditures may not 
legally exceed appropriations at the department level . Department heads may not transfer, 
without Town Meeting approval, appropriation balances from one expenditure account to 
another within their department or budget . The Town Meeting; and the department head must 
also approve any transfer of unencumbered appropriation balances between departments or 
agencies . At the close of each fiscal year, unencumbered appropriation balances lapse or revert 
to unreserved fund balance. The Town made several supplemental budgetary appropriations 
throughout the year. J.'hesc adjustments did not impact the overall budget significantly. A 
comparison of budget and actual balance may be reviewed on page 41 of these financial 
statements . 

B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations - During the fiscal year ended, the Town's line 
item expenditures did not exceed any line item appropriations . 

C. Deficit Fund Equity - The Town incurred a legal deficit in its Capital Projects Fund in the 
amount of $1,661,99$ . The deficit relates to general construction costs the Town incurred that 
have been financed with boxed anticipation notes to date. The Town anticipates permanently 
financing these bond anticipation notes at a future date . 

111. Detailed Notes to All Funds 

A. Deposits and Investments 

Deposits - Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Investments - Certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than three months are 
classified as investments . 
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The Town maintains a separate cash account for all funds. In addition, certificates of deposit are 
held separately by the Permanent Funds. 

GAAP requires disclosure for any investment securities that are uninsured, are not registered in 
the name of the government, and are held by either (a) the counterparty or (b) the countorparty's 
trust department or agent but not in the government's name . The Town does not maintain any 
investments subject to these classifications . In addition, GAAP requires disclosures relative to 
certain risks associated with deposits and investments . 

Interest rate risk. Although the Town does not maintain a formal investment policy, the 
Town manages its exposure to declines in fair market value by limiting the average 
maturity of its deposits to less than fifteen months . 

Credit risk, The Town follows State statutes . These statutes require the Treasurer to 
invest Town funds in bonds or notes which are legal investments for savings banks, 
including U.S : obligations, certificates of deposit, money market accounts, bank deposits, 
repurchase agreements and the State Treasurer's investment pool . In addition, the 
statutes impose various limitations on the amount and length of investments and 
deposits . Repurchase agreements cannot be for a period of over ninety (90) days, and the 
underlying security must be a U.S . obligation. During the fiscal year, the Town limited 
its investments to certificates of deposit, money market accounts, bank deposits and the 
State Treasurer's investment pool . 

Concentration of credit risk. The Town does not maintain balances in any single 
investment that would represent more than 5% of the Town's total cash, cash equivalents 
and investments. 

Custodial credit risk - deposits. 

	

In the case of deposits, this is tlae risk that in the event 
of a bank failure, the Town's deposits may not be returned to it. 

	

The Town does not 
have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk . At June 30, 2010, $4,168,096 of Town 
deposits in bank accounts, money markets and certificates of deposit was covered by 
either federal depository insurance or by the depositors' insurance programs . The 
remainder $18,677,561 was uninsured and uncollateralized . 

Custodial. credit risk- investments . The Town does not maintain any investments subject 
to this credit risk . 

At June 30, 2010, the Town classified $2,010,780 in investments in the State Treasurer's 
Investment Pool, $2,088,542 in certificates of deposit with maturities of less than three months 
and $10,466,997 in money markets as cash equivalents . 
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. Receivables 

Receivables as of year-end for the individual major governmental and non major funds are as 
follows : 

Receivables as of year-end for the enterprise fiends are as follows : 

MGVPAT Loan Subsidies - The Town has entered into a number of loan agreements with the 
Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust ("MWPAT"). It is expected that the Town will 
be subsidized by MWPAT on a periodic basis for principal in the amount of $2,064,469 and 
interest costs of $2,230,811 until maturity of these agreements, GAAP requires the recognition 
of gross debt relative to these agreements, therefore the principal amount of $2,064,469 has been 
reflected as receivables in the Sewer Enterprise fund . 

Betterments -- "The Town reflects receivables of $9,287,431 in its Enterprise Fund that represents 
amounts anticipated to be billed in the future for sewer betterments that the Town has fttnded 
through bond issuances . 

Massachusetts School Business _ Authority - The Town applied for and was awarded $980,000 in 
reimbursements for school construction it had incurred during 2005 . The Town had previously 
funded such construction through bond issuances . The lump-surn amount awarded was received 
subsequent to year-end in December-, 2010 and thus has been reported as a receivable in the 
General Fund. 

Property taxes $ 730,983 
Tax liens and foreclosures 1,145,882 
Excise 492,196 
Ambulance 679,359 
Due from the Commonwealth of . Massachusetts 1,763,077 
Agency 29,142 
Other 272,714 

Gross receivables 5,113,353 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 586 _ (620 

Net receivables $A C 

Water use charges S 893,425 
Sewer use charges 428,718 
Due from the MWPAT 2,064,469 
Unapportioned assessments 9,287431 

Gross receivables 12,674,043 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 

Net receivables $__j_2 614 Q43 
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C. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity far the year ended .tune 30, 2010 was as follows : 

Depreciation expense was charged to lunetienslprogratns as follows: 

_ 

	

_ 
S 2,974,599 

	

_S 1.933,500 

ti(3i'l:fir`ti:4/L:ry'Tr1 YPr" ACTY1TlES" 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 16,942,53'2 $ 941,375 S - $ 17 .883,907 
Construction in process 1,697,783 928,578 (1,351,528) 1,274,838 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 18,640,320 1,869,953 (1,351,528)_ 19,158,743 

Capital assets being depreciated ; 
Land improvements 4,630,185 164,027 - 4,794,212 
Buildings and improvements 37,084,409 2,442,513 - 39,526,922 
Inf`rastructnu+e ¬ 6,973,063 2,235,143 - 19,258,206 
Machinery and equipment 5,182,413 1,030,570 10,212,983 
Vubicles 2,979,480 239,649 - 3,219,129 

Total capital assets being depreciated 70,849,550 6,161,902 - 77,01 t,452 

Less accumulated depreciation for; 
Land improvements (311,584) (157,073) - (468,657) 
Buildings and improvements (8,015,299) 11,100,779) - (9,116,078) 
Infrastructure (7,908,439) (761,959) - (8,670,448) 
Machinery and equipment (7,075,181) (645,523) - (7,720,704) 
Vehicles (1,971,126) (309,564) (2,280,690) 

Total accumulated depreciation (25,281,679) (2,974,898) - (28,256,577) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 45,567,871 3,187,004 - 48,754,875 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 64,208,191 $ 5,056,957 S (1,351,523) S 67,913,620 

i3(lSft4'(;'SS-T1 J'T". rtC.T1V1T1f:.S. 
Capital assets not being depreciated; 

Land $ 3,675,000 $ - S - '.S 3,675,000 
Construction in process - 1,225,086 - 1-125,086 

Total capital assets not being depreciated - - 3,675,000, 1,225,086- _,, _. 4,900,086 

Capital assets being depreciated : 
Land improvements 3,617,506 299,360 - 3,916,866 
Buildings and improvements 3,465,844 247,972 - 3,713,816 
Infrastructure 62,374,991 - - 62,374,99 t 
Machinery and egttipmetu 7,031,974 647,651 - 7,679,625 
Vehicles 365,595 47,991 - 4_13,58_6 

Total capital assets being depreciated 76,855,910 1,242,974 - 78,098,884 

Less accumulated depreciation for : 
Land improvements (313,936) (43,556) (357,492) 
Buildings and improvements (1,366,890) (178,658) (2,015,548) 
Intrastivcture (18,690,366) (1,247,500) (19,937,866) 
Machinery and equipment (4,655,033) (436 .516) (5,091,549) 
Vehicles (316,461) (27,270) (343,731) 

Total accumulated depreciation (25,842,686) (1,933,500) (27,776,186) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 51,013,224 (690,526) 50,322,698 

Business activities capital assets, net $ 54,688,224 S 5344,560 S S 55,222,784 

Gavernnrenlal-lype Activities : Brisiness-(vpe Activities. 
General government S 67,237 Water S 438,431 
Publicsafety 251,346 Sewer 864,606 
Education 1,436,159 Translerstation 73,327 
Public works 959,715 Golt 229,092 
Health and buarn services 11,725 Waterways 328,044 
Cultiue and ret :reat1Cnn 242,716 
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30 . 2010, for the Town's Bilsineas-typa Activities was as Mom: 

Gndfng 
Decreases _ 

	

Balance 

t 

	

1BeL-Lf ~ 1'vit M:'f)lf 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Construction in process 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assetsbdng depreciated : 
20,200 

42,178,576 
352,000 
703,100 

4?,753,876 

(2,525) 
(W,015,$32) 

(63,360) 
(184 .109) 

(10,265,86) 
3?,488,050 

198,984 
1'98'98-1 

9,500 
20,[96,415 

~3?,339 
192,901 

20,631,155 

(2,019) 
(9,9:,034) 
(161,696) 
11=12,4,15) 

(10,228,194) 
10,402,961 

388,602 
588,603 

1,90 .971 
685,641 

_ 17,585 
2,696,197 

(512,857) 
(535,778) 

Vehicles _(16_,905) (272) 1(7,177) 
Total accumulated depreciation (99'-'.435) 0 3,327) (1,065,812) 

Total Ttansf4 Station capital assets being depreciated, net 1,557,211 13,173 1,630,385 

7Faea)nps.S- fiYadelllWes:tf)e_Ipec?rt,'q(>i 'p(r['SrOt.Yd 
Capital assets being depreciated : 

Laud fnprtivements 3,160,144 - 3 .160,144 
Buildings and improvements 932,856 - 932,856 
Machinery and equipment 1,780.619 74,566 _ 1,803,185 

TOW capital assots being depreciated 5,873 .619 24,566 5,898,185 
Less accumulated depreciation for; 

Land improvements (293,308) (33,321) (316,679) 
Buildings and irnproaermenrs (I .~I1,038) (105,338) (1 �316 .376) 
Machincny and cgaipntent (1,487%75 ) (100,433) (1 .587,708) 

Total accumulated depreciation (=,991,621 (729,09') 
_ 

(3,720,713) 
Total Widow's Wak GolfCaurse capitelttssets being depreciated, net 2,881 .998 _7 _ ~31I4,526L w 2,677 .473 

Ausiness-fVe7c~Hriries; Dp)rfpne,~�vt 
Ctepual assets not being depreciated: 

Land 3,r,75,aon 3,675,000 
Construction initracess --~t37,500 437,500 

TOO capital FaRets cot wing depreciated 3,673,OOR 437,100 
_ 

4,1 t2,500 
Capital assets toeing depreciated : 

Land improvements +157 .362 299,360 - 756,732 
Buildings and Improvements 510,317 247,972 - 758,289 
Machinery and equipment 4,127,875 476,585 4.604.460 

Total capital assets being depreciated 5,095,5511 1 .033 .917 6, (19,4 19,471 
Less arcumulate(F depreciation for 

Land improvements (20,628) (30.235) - (40,863) 
Builduigs and improvements (189,54) (3?,2" 18) (311,771) 
Machinery, and equipment (2,457 .416) (=35,561) _ (3 .743,007) 

Total accumulated doprecintimi ( 2~667,597) (32.8,044) (2,995,6,11) 
Total Waternvays capital assets being depredated, pct 2,427,957 695,873 3,123,830 

Tulol Bnsiness-type activities - caldtal assets, net S ShfiamZ"1 i S3.L56ii 5 5 55,222,73-11 

Buildings and improvements 20,200 - - 
Infrastructure 43,178,576 - - 
Machurury and equipment 352,000 - - 
Vehicles 184,255 18,945 

Total capital assets being depreciated 42,735,031 18,8"{5 
Less accuraulateddepoccintion for : 

Buildings and improvements (1,515) (1,010) - 
(n&miructure (9,172,260) (843,572) - 
Machinery and equipment (49.780) (14,080) 
vehicles 1!78,165) (5,9'14) 

TotaI acattatulated (lepreciuUon 
,_ 

f9,-101 .220) (SG4,606) 
Total Sewer capital assets being depreciated, act 33,333 .811 (845,761) . - 

bus_Lie,-r-nfvActivlrics: nn_rA1f ;,~2uflf7Ld 
C.zpitd assets being depreciated : 

Buildings and improvemrnts 1,991,01 
Machinery and equipment 539,141 146,.icc - 
V4dcles 17,585_ 

'total capital assets being depreciated 2,549,697 146,500 -~ 
Lean accumulated depreciation far. 

Buildings and improvements (1163,033) (+19,824) 
Machinery and equipment (512,547) (23,231) 

1Y mst erg. -p,7re drrirvti- FlInr~ 
Captal asset-, not being depreciated : 

Begineasg 
ISalance Incrfascs 

Caratructiutt in process 198,984 
'total capital assets not being depreciated 195,984 

Capital assets being depreciwed : 
Btu1dingsandimproventents 9,300 - 
I4frastnrcture M,IM013 
Machinery and equipment ','.3,339 - 
Vehieles 163,755 29,146 

Totaleapitalessetsbeingdepieciated 20,607,n09 29,146 
Less accumulated depreciation tar: 

8uild)ngsnnd improvements (1,781) (»38) 
in8 astructitre ;9,5is . 106) (403,98) 
Mrwldnety and equipment (149,485) (13 ; ill 
Vehicles _(1?_1,391) (21,054) 

Total accumulated depreciation (9,789,763) (438,431) 
Total Water capital nssets being depreciated, net 10,812,746 (409,285) 
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. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers --- Interfund transfers (net) during the year were 
as follows: 

Transfers were made to supplement appropriation line items, indirect costs and subsidies from the 
General Fund . 

. Temporary Debt 

The Town is authorized to borrow on a temporary basis to fund the following: 

Ctprent Operating Costs -- Prior to the collection of revenues, expenditures may he financed 
through the issuance of tax anticipation notes ("TAN") . 

Capital Projects and Other Avaroved Costs -- Projects may be temporarily Raided through the 
issuance of a bond anticipation note ("BAN"), state aid anticipation note ("SAAN") or grant 
anticipation note ("GAN"). In certain cases, prior to the issrian.ce of these temporary notes, the 
governing body must take the necessary legal steps to authorize the issuance of the general 
obligation bonds. Temporary notes way not exceed the aggregate amount of bonds authorized or 
the grant award amount . 

Temporary notes are general obligations of the Town and cant' maturity dates not in excess of 
one year and are interest bearing and will be paid through future issuance of general obligation 
bonds or grant reimbursement . Temporary notes outstanding at June 30, 2010, recorded in the 
Governmental and Proprietary Funds are payable as follows: 

Proceeds from these temporary notes are obligated for use on projects relating to general 
construction and roadways . 

Interest 
Rate 

Maturity 
Date 

July 1, 
2009 Additions Retirements 

June 30, 
2010 

BAN 1 .00% Matured $4,182,000 $ -- $ (4,182,000) $ __ 
BAN 2.49% Matured 329,000 W- (329,000) - 
BAN 2.00% Mattered 570,000 - (570,000) - 
BAN 1 .25% 3118/11. -- 5,700,323 -- -, 5.700,123 

$ 5 QU M $ 5-.70Q.W-- $=01011M U2.7-01W 

Transfers 
In 

Transfers 
Out 

General $2,400,709 $762,197 
Nonmajor Govermxiental 5,500 27,873 
Stabilization 9,415 - 
Community Preservation - 700,000 
Affordable Housing 700,000 - 
Mitigation -- 1,875,000 
Business-Type 249,446 -- 

Totals $ j 3 ., $ &_ 5 Q.ZO 
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The following is a strttunaryOf 0utsirtndirtg long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 30, 2010 : 

Ceding 
Balance 

$ 13,035,000 
61,710 

S 13 .096.710 

1,066,000 
I,D6t'r,000 

: ;915,000 
16,83l,926 
i9,80(,926 

54-1 .000 
544,000 

During the year ended June 30,'!0 (0, the following reflects the activity in the long-term liability accounts : 

'6 1a :381,h26 

S -10 .378,636 

-- 

	

cmc year 
Due within 

$ 1,463,858 
311,635 

",; 2:35,493 

$ 133,00(1 
13,951 

146.951 _ 

1,480,350 
22,395 

1,502,745 

37,000 
8,780 

75,000 

120,780 

300,000 
56,956 

356 .956 

375,000 
11,695 

?87,695 

$ 2 .415327 

S - 4,700,6'[0 

Beginning 
Balance 

(!prgl~m ' el teal A�e ivfm 

Additions potations 
Ending 
Balance 

Hoed and note debt $ 14,585,568 $ - $ 11,48$,858] $ 13,096,710 
Compensated absences 1,780,347 733,097 (890,174) 1,643 270 
father post employment benefits, net 3,376,975 5,082,348 (1,596,029) 6,863,294 

TotuIGovernmental Activities $ }9,741 .390 S 5,835,4 4 5 S OX5,061) S 21 .603 =7 .i 

Awhsiness_i)7leftctwifes- IF-tfer, 
Hondandttoledebt S 1,198,000 $ - S (132,000) $ 1066,000 
Compensated absences 50,172 2,816 (25,086) 37,902 
Other post employment benefits, not 64.14:' 96,54 (30.3171 - 130,371 

Total Business-type Activities : Water 1,312.) 11) - 99,357 (18?.41)31 I .^_24 .?73 

l3ll?tnFFS-N1lsfirfjvjries- S^"£f 
Bond and note debt 21,253,207 " (1!146,381) 19,806,9,6 
Compensated absencos 42,946 23,317 (11,473) 44,790 
Other post employment benefits, net 34,022 51,203 (16,080) 69,145 

Total Bu6ness-IypoActivities : Sewer :1,330,175 74,530 (1,483,834) 19,920,861 

Aasiness-dtloe :IcNviti~ ns -r,~S~~�n 
Bond and notedebt 581,000 - (37,000) 544,000 
Compensated abscnces 33,462 5,839 (11,731) 17,560 
Landfill 1,500,000 (75,000) 1,415,000 
Outer post employment benefits, not 18,40:1 27-697 (81981 P .403 

Total Business-type Activities: Transfer Station 3,121,866 33,526 1133,439) 1,033,963 - 

13rtsiness-~etlctivirier-tPlfmva lyr3/kGoIfC'oaure 
Bond and note debt :,635,001 - (395,000) 2,340,000 
Capilaltaste 166,190 19,915 (51,800) 134,305 
Other post employment benefits, uet 15,811 23,796 (7,473) __ 31,134 

Total Business-type Activities: Widow's Walk Gal£Course 3,817,001 - 43,711 (354,2731 1506,439 

B7rsines's-tynsACtivffgj y pg 
Bond and note debt 3,800,000 (375,000) 3,535,000 
Compensated absences 23,845 13,467 111,923) 25,390 
Other post enrployatent benefits, net 24,140 36,331 (1 1,409) 49,062 _ 

Total Business-type Activities : Wateways 3,817,986 49,798 (298,33 � ) 3,599,4$? 

'total (3asiness-typeAefivitie® : All S 31,430.34 7 S 300,91'' S (2 .456.2711 SS 29 7-1 .988-1.988 

Tot-al Long-term Obligations $ 51,113,137 5 , 6,136.357 $ 16,-131,3335 S 50 .878?6? 

Dosed dpt_io_n ol'Tssue 
CJpverneletrrrti,Avnv -tJW" , 

Interest 
Rate 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Maturities 

General obligation bonds 3 .0 - 5.0'55 E 14,517,000 $ S (1,482,000) 
Massachusetts Water Resources Authority notes 2.0 - 5.0% 68,568 (6,858) 

Total.GoverumenlalAclivitles S 14,585,568 S $ (1,48 .8581 

itess-ryle . iv_irlea-Wale r 
General obligation bonds 3 .0-5.0% 1,198,000 (133,000) 

Total Water 1 .19$,000 (132,000) 

BtrsiaeessytW .4ctluitfes-S wen 
General ubligntionbonds, 3 .p-5.04'1, 3,179,000 - !?04,000) 
Massachusetts Water Resources Authority note 2.0-5 .0% 18 .074 ; 07 -,{1,742,28 l I 

Total Sewer 2[,253,207 (1,446_8 l) 

Aasiness-tvne .4etlvfrfes " Ti'ausfe�.,! Slntian - 
General obligation bond 3,0-5 .0% 581,000 137,090) 

Total TrnnsferStation 531,000 (37,000) 

RII ;less-Jun e~(ctivilig i dpWj WalkGor1Coarse 
Cleneral obligation band 3.0-4,040 - 2,635,000 (295,100) 

Total Widow's Walk Golf Coarse 1,635 .000 (395,000) 

AI/SIIILSS-2VPN)1RJfVltj~,~-t~a I"IIaV - 

0enerat obligation bonds 3.0-5,0% 3,800 .001) (175,000) 
Total Waterways 3.800,001) (275,000) 

Tolal Business" typeActtvitios S x9,46'1,'_07 S S ("? .185 .181) 

Total Bond and Note Debt 
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Capital lease ob&atfons (13ra.si+rnss-l;vpe .4elivides - Mdow's Walk GoLC_'aurse) 

Lcathorized and LrussyedOfbt- tl t .bane 3_Q J010 . the Town bar awhorfzed and imi rted debt as /Morn ww 

Faatut e Debt Fay - Payments on long-term debt obligation due in future 

l3onded Debt (Goma'amtcrelal rfelivities) 

years consist of the following : 

Year Ending 
June 30, 
201t 

Balance 
$ 1,463,858 

Principal 
Subsidy Net 

1,463,858 
_ Balance 
511,498 

_ 
Interest 
Subsidy 

$ (2,618) 
Net 

$ 508,880 
Total 

$ 1,972,738 
2012 1,003,858 1,003,858 462,228 (2,267) 459,961 1,463,819 
2013 1,003,857 1,003,857 429,463 (8,160) 421,303 1,425,160 
20 [41 995,857 995,857 382,469 (1,915) 380,554 1,376,411 
2015 826,856 826,856 338,781 (1,564) 337,217 1,164,073 

2016-2020 3,917,¬24 3,917,424 1,189,585 (2,760) 1,186,825 5,104,249 
2021-2025 3,725,000 3,725,000 431,560 - 431,560 4,156,560 

2026 160,000 160,000 6,560 - 6,560 166,560 
Total 13,096,710 - $ 13,096,710 3,752,144 $ (19,284) 5 3,732,860 $ 16,829,570 

Bonded Debt Murhres~-Type Activities) 
Year Ending Principal Interest 

_June 30 Balance Subsidy 
_ bet 

Balance. Subsidy Net Total 
2011 $ 2,225,350 $ (219,466) $ 2,005,884 $ 1,039,513 $ (313,136) $ 726,377 $ 2,732,261 
2012 2,266,474 (242,768) 2,023,706 921,233 (251,t05) 670,128 2,693,834 
2013 1,978,985 (41,777) 1,937,208 1,192,245 (450,416) 74t,829 2,679,037 
2014 2,338,050 (228,452) 2,109,598 782,577 (238,599) 543,978 2,653,576 
2015 2,360,001 (224,464) 2,135,537 694,483 (225,716) 468,767 2,604,304 

2016 - 2020 10,315,895 (1,010,003) 9,305,892 1,999,471 (640,622) 1,358,849 10,664,741 
2021-2025 5,500,735 (97,519) 5,403,216 479,t06 (91,933) 387,173 5,790,389 

2026 296,436 - 296,436 2,964 - 2,964 299,400 
Total $ 27,281,926 $ (2,064,449) $ 25,217,477 7,111,592 $ (2,211,527) $4,900,065 $ 30,117,542 

Year Ending 
_June 30 Principal Interest 

Minimum Lease 
Obligation 

2010 56,956 ;6 5,779 $ 62,735 
2011 44,031 2,842 46,873 
2012 19,535 1,165 20,700 
2013 10,117 314 10,431 
20(4 3,666 46 3,712 
Total $ 134,305 $ 10,1 .46 $ 144451 

Project Arnount 
-~~ 

-~__--- 
General $

T 
335,000 

Transfer Station 25,000 
Water 1,193,000 
Sewer 7,096,341 
Waterways 280,000 

Total aminorized and unissued $ 8,929,341 
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klrtnlre pabrf yQjj'-Payments uu general lung-turn debt obligation bonds and notes of Business-type Activities due in future years 
Causistofthe Following: 

Business-tvpeRctlij{ie~ I 

	

Walk Gqj'Cterse 

Year Ending 

	

Principal 
_Balance 

77,750 $ 
68,975 
59,125 
49,563 
36,300 
29,700 

Interest 
No 

$ 77,750 
68,975 
59,125 
43,563 
36,300 
29,700 

TOIFSI 
_» 

S 377,750 
378,975 
379 .125 
378,563 
381,300 
764,700 

3 2,660.113 

Total 
414,397 
406,147 
386,522 
374,062 
353,685 

1,588,463 
1,041,755 

4,565,03 l 

Total $ 1,066,000 $ $ 1,066,000 S 257,503$ $ 257,503 S 1,323,503 

pusir :ess-tune AcrIEltteg. Semcr 

Year Ending 
June 30, Balance 

principal 
Subsidy Net - Balance 

Fnteresl 
Subsidy Net Total 

2011 5 1,480.350 S (219,466) $ 1,260,884 $ 758,1188 S (313,136) 5 445,752 $ 1,706,636 
2012 1,511,474 (242,763) 1,268,706 662,731 (251,105) 411,626 1,680,332 
2013 1,223,985 (41,777) 1,182,208 958,624 (450,416) 508,208 1,690,416 
2014 1,575,050 (228,452) 1,346,598 580,394 (238,599) 341,795 1,688,393 
2015 1,618,001 (224,464) 1,393,537 521,631 (225,716) 295,915 1,689,452 

2016-?.020 7,935,895 (1,010,003) 6,925,892 1,498,120 (640,622) 857,498 7,783,390 
2021-2025 4,165,735 (97,519) 4,068,216 332,913 (91,933) 240,980 4,309,196 

2026 296,436 - 296,436 2,964 2,964 299,400 
Total $ 19,806,926 S (2 .064,449) $ 17,742,477 $ 5,316,265 $ (2,211,527)$ 3,104,738 

_ 
$ 20.847 .2 15 

alrsdness-i~eAettvities: TrnnsT_er Sturion 

Year Pnding Principal Interest 
June 30, Balance tiubsidy Net Balance Subsidy Not Total 
2011 

_ 
$ 37,000 $ S 37,000 5 21,733 5; - S 21,733 $ 58,733 

2012 37,000 37,000 20,624 - 20,624 57,624 
2013 37,000 37,000 19,468 - 19,468 56,468 
2014 37,000 37.000 17,616 - 17,616 54,616 
2015 36,000 36,000 16,[38 - 16,138 52,138 

20 L6-2020 130,000 130,000 59,085 - 59,035 239,085 
2021-2025 180,000 - 130,000 22,716 - 22,716 202,716 

2026 
Total S 544,000 S $ 544,000 S 177,380 $ $ 177,380 

.
.$ 721,380 

2026 
Total S 2,340,000 S 2,3"10,000 S 320,413 3 - S 320.413 

Business-t~edcrivltiey; bVurer~lra 

Year Ending Principal Interest 

Jane 30. Balance Net . _Balance Strbstdy Net 
2011 275,000 275,000 139,397 - 39397 
2012 275,000 275,000 131,147 - 131,147 
2013 265,000 2!,5,000 121,522 " 121,522 

2014 265,000 - 265,000 109,062 - 109,062 
2015 255,000 255,000 98,685 - 98,685 

2016-2020 1,245,000 1,245,060 343,463 - 343,463 
2021-2025 945,000 - 945,000 96,755 " 911.735 

2026 - - - 
Total 3525000 - 3525000 1040031 1,040,031 

Business-tv,e 'vijgf: _~ linter 

Year Ending principal Interest 
Julie 30 . Y Balance Subsidy Net ~Salanea Subsidy Net Total 
2011 $ 1.53,000 S - $ 113,000 S 41,745 $ - S 41,745 174,745 
2012 23,000 - 133,000 37,756 37,756 170,756 
2013 133,000 - 133,000 33,506 - 33,506 166,506 
2014 131,000 _ 13 I 'm 26,942 26,942 157,942 
2015 106,000 - 106,OOD 21,729 - 21,729 127,729 

2016 -2020 220,000 - 220,000 69,103 69,103 289,103 
2021-2025 210,000 210,000 26,722 - 26,722 236,722 

June 30,_ Balance Subs~~ Net 
2011 S 300,000 S 

~ 
- S 300.000 S 

2012 310,000 - 310,000 
2013 320,000 320,000 
2014 330,000 330,000 
2015 345,000 345,000 

2016-2020 735,000 - 735,000 
2021-2025 - 
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IV. Other Information 

A. Retirement System 

System DescrLtion - The Town contributes to the Plymouth County Retirement Association 
("PCRA" or the "System"), a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established under 
Chapter 32 of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts General Laws ("MGL") and is administered 
by Plymouth County Retirement Association (the "Board") . 

Substantially all employees of the Town, except teachers and certain administrative personnel 
employed by the School Department, participate in the System . The System provides retirement, 
disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Cost-of-living adjustments 
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the 
Commonwealth's state . law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited 
into the pension fund directly. Cast-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved 
by the Board and are borne by the Systeni . The System issues a publicly available unaudited 
financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts' Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission ("PERAC") that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. 

	

The report may be 
obtained by writing to the Board at Plymouth County Retirement Association, 10 Cordage Park 
Circle, Suite 231, Plymouth, Massachusetts 02360 . 

Funding Policy -- Plan members are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 
5% to 11 % of annual covered compensation . The 'town is required to pay into the System for its 
share of the system-wide actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the 
employers based on active current payroll . The contributions of plan members and the Town are 
governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL, The Town's contributions to the System for the fiscal 
years ended rune 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $2,758,350, $2,668,512, and $2,464,168 . These 
contributions were equal to the required contribution for each year as set by the Board. 
Schedules of fitnding progress and contribution funding are included as required supplementary 
information . 

B. Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System 

Teachers and certain administrative employees of the School Department participate in a 
contributory retirement system administered by the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement Board. 
Contributions to that system totaled. $6,553,328 for the fiscal year and were made entirely by the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, on behalf of the Town, which does not contribute directly to 
this system . 

C. Risk Financing 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to toils; theft, damage, and destruction of 
assets ; errors and. omissions; natural disasters; and various employee benefits including health, 
worker's compensation, and unemployment compensation . The Town participates in a health 
insurance risk pool trust administered by Plymouth County, a municipal corporation that obtains 
health insurance for member governments at costs eligible to larger groups . Plymouth County 
offers a variety of premium based plans to its members with each participating goverrnnental unit 
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being charged a premium for coverage based on rates established by Plymouth County . The 
Town is obligated to pay Plymouth County its required premiums and, in the event Plymouth 
County is terminated, its pro-rata share of a deficit, should one exist . The Town is self-insured 
for Workman's compensation and unemployment benefits . 

D. Other Post Employment Benefits ("OPEB") 

Plan Description - In addition to the pension benefits previously described, the Town provides 
health and life insurance benefits to current and future retirees, their dependents and 
beneficiaries (hereinafter referred to as the "Plan") in accordance with Massachusetts General 
Law Chapter 32B. Specific benefit provisions and contribution rates are established by 
collective bargaining agreements, state law, and Town ordinance. All benefits are provided 
through the Town's insurance program. The flan does not issue a stand-alone financial report as 
there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purposeof paying benefits under the Plan. The 
number of participants in the Plan consists of 836 active employees and 328 retired employees 
with 99 spouses for a total of 1,263 participants . 

Rending Policy - The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established 
and may be amended by the Town . Retirees contribute their flan contributions through pension 
benefit deductions . The remainder of the cost is funded by the Town. Retirees also contribute 
50% towards life insurance premiums (face value is $2,000). The Town pays the remainder . 
The Town currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-
as-yogi-go basis. The costs of adrrdnistering the Plan are paid by the Town. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obli potion - 

	

The Town's annual OPEB cost is calculated 
based on the annual required contribution ("ARC") of the employer, an actuarially determined 
amount that is calculated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefit. Plans Other Than Pension Plans . The 
ARC represents a level of itulding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal 
cost each year and amortize any unfunded liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty (30) years . 

The following table reflects the activity regarding the Town's OPEB obligation : 

Trend information regarding arurual pension cost, the percentage of the annual pension cost 
contributed and the net pension obligation is as follows : 

Annual 

	

Percentage of 
Fiscal Year 

	

OPEB Cost 

	

AOPEBC 

	

Net OPEB 
Ending (A)PEBC)'Y Contributed ObliLtion 

June 30, 2009 

	

$5,050,918 

	

30% 

	

$3,533,499 
June 30, 2010 

	

$5,317,917 

	

31°% 

	

$7,181,499 

OPEB obligation at beginning of year $ 3,533,499 
Annual required contribution ("ARC") 5,317,917 
Contributions made (1,670,005) 

OPEB obligation at end of year $ x.131 _411 
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The A©PEBC was charged to the following functional programs : General Government 
$160,067 ; Public Safety $905,864 ; Education $3,650,831 ; Public Works $202.230 ; Health and 
Human Services $43,836; and Culture and Recreation $119,519 . In the Business-Type Funds, 
the following activities were charged Water $96,541, Sewer $51,203, Transfer Station $27,697, 
Golf $23,796 and Waterways $36,331 . 

Fundin, Status and Fundin ProgLe~ess - The funded status of the Plan at July 1, 2008 for the 
most recent actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2008, was as follows: 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events into the future . Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the flan and the ARC of the employer are subject to continual 
revision as estimates are compared to actual results and past expectations. 

Methods and Assum2tion .r - projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on 
the substantive Plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and 
the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the Plan members to 
that point . The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with. the long-term perspective of the calculations . The significant methods and 
assumptions as of the latest valuation dated July 1, 2008 are as follows : 

E. Contingencies 

The Town is party to certain legal claims, which ue subject to mimy uncertainties, and the 
outcome of individual litigation matters is not always predictable with assurance . Although the 
amount o£ liability, if any, at June 30, 2010, cannot be determined, management believes that any 
resulting liability, if any, should not materially affect the basic financial statements of the Town 
at June 30, 2010 . 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal and state governments. Any disallowed claims, 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability UAAL as a 

Actuarial (AAL) Entry Unfunded Percentage 
Value of Age Normal AAL Funded Covered of Covered 
Assets Cost (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
__LA)__ (F') ,T. . .�__.L.,: ) _ -.-L) _ ((B-A)/C) 

$ _ $49,580,009 $49,530,009 0.0% $35,820,651 138.4% 

Funding interest rate : 4.0% 
2008 inedicaUdrug trend rate 10% 111% 
Ultimate medical/drug trend rate: 5%/5% 
Year ultimate medical/drug trend rate reached : 2013/2014 
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 
Remaining amortization period : 28 years as of :tune 30, 2010 
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including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds . 

	

The 
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor caimot be determined at 
this time, although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be izrunaterial . 

	

In addition, the 
Town is subject to certain Federal arbitrage laws in accordance with long-terra borrowing 
agreements . 

	

Failure to comply with the rules could result in the payment of penalties, 

	

The 
amount of penalties, if any, cannot be determined at this time, although the 'Town expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial . 

The Town is subject to certain Federal arbitrage laws in accordance with long-term borrowing 
agreements . Failure to comply with the rules could result in the payment of penalties, The 
amount of penalties, if any, cannot be detennned at this time, although the Town expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

F. Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs 

The Town's landfill is closed and a final cover has been installed in accordance with Federal and 
State laws and regulations . Those laws and regulations also require the Town to perform certain 
maintenance and monitoring functions ("post-closure care") at the site for thirty (30) years after 
the landfill cover is installed . The Town presently appropriates $75,000 per year for post-closure 
care costs and has recorded a liability of $1,475,000 in the governmental activities fiend as result 
of this activity. 

learentation of New GASB Pronouncements 

In June 2007, the GASB issued GASB No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Intangible Assets, which was effective for the Town beginning on July 1, 2009 . The objective of 
GASB 51 was to establish accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets 
such as easements, water rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks and computer software, and. 
reduce inconsistencies in current reporting practices, thereby enhancing the comparability of the 
accounting and reporting of such assets among state and local governments. The adoption of 
GASB 51 did not have a material impact on the Town's financial position or its results from 
operations . 

In June 2008, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Derivative Instruments, which was effective for the Town beginning on July 1, 2009. GASB 
53 was intended to improve how state and local governments report information about derivative 
instruments (financial arrangements used by governments to manage specific risks or make 
investments) in their financial statements . GASB 53 specifically requires governments to 
measure most derivative instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the acctual basis of accounting. The 
guidance in this Statement also addresses hedge accounting requirements . The adoption of GASB 
53 did not have a material impact on the Town's financial position or its results from operations, 

hr. March 2009, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting sand 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions . The objective of GASB 54 is to alter the focus to bring 
greater clarity and consistency to fund balance reporting and terminology used to report fund 
balance in governmental funds. GASB 54 is effective for periods beginning after Jzme 15, 2010 . 
The Town will adopt CYASB 54 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 . The Town is currently 
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evaluating whether the adoption of GASB 54 will have a material impact on its financial 
statements . 

In June 2010, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 59, Financial .Instruments Omnibus. The 
objective of GASB 59 is to update and improve existing standards regarding financial reporting 
and disclosure requirements of certain financial instruments and external investment pools for 
which significant issues have been identified in practice . The provisions of GASB 59 are 
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after dune 15, 2010 . The Town does not 
expect that the adoption of GASB 59 will have a material effect on its financial statements, 

Vt. Restatement of Prior Year Balances 

The following restatements were made to the prior year ending balances in order to conform to 
the current year presentation: 

Water Sewer 
Transfor 
Station 

Widow's 
Walls Golf Waterways 

As previously recorded $ 11,689,543 $ 25,774,478 $ (582,262) $ 310,761 $ 3,541,315 
Record other post employment benefits (64,147) (34,022) (18,404) (15,8 t 1) (24,140) 
Record uDbilled teceivabIcs 271,391 66,611 - - - 

As restated $ 11,896,787 $ 25,807,067 $ (600,066) $ 294,950 $ 3,517,175 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business 
Activities _ 

As previously recorded 62,653,917 40,733,835 
Reclassify other post employmetu benefits 156,524 (156,524) 
Record unbilled receivables - 338,002 

As restated $ 62,810,441 $ 40,915,313 
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TOWN OF SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INI+ORMA'rlON 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20 .10 

See accompanying independent auditors report . 

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

SCHEDULES OF CONTRIBUTION FUNDING 

Pension System 

UAAL as a 
Actuarial Actuarial ilnlunded Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of covered 
Vahralion Assets Liability (AAL) (I)AAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) ic) (b-a/c) 
1/1/2010 $673,709,456 $ 1,132,847,379 $459,[37,923 40.5% $ 227,507,647 201 .8% 
1/112009 $579,877,224 $ 1,159,210,636 $579,333,4 t2 50.0% $ 264,541,078 219 .0°!0_ 
111/2008 $ 683,819,938 $ 1,056,020,215 $ 372,200,277 35.2% $ 252,682,832 147 .3% 

Other Post Cnrployment Benefits 

UAALasa 
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage 

Actuarial Valtre of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered 
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAI,) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

bate (a) (b) (lea) (alb) (c) Rra/c) 
~7I1/2008v $$ - $ 49,580,009 S 49,580,009 0,0% S 35,820,651 138.4% 

Plymouth Regional Retirement 

Pension $VSten 

Assaetation Town 
(BIA) 

Annual (A) (ti) Town's Percentage 
Year Ended Required Actual Percentage Actual of System Wide 

December 31, Contributlons Contributions Contributed Contribution Actual Contributions 
2009 $ 42,708,372 S 42,708,372 100,0% 2,758,350 6.5% 
2008 $ 41,286,383 $ 41,286,383 100 .0% 2,668,612 6.5% 
2007 $ 38,854,868 $ 38,854,868 t00.0% 2,464,168 63% 

Other Post Employment Benefits 

Annual (A) 
Year Ended Required Actual Percentage 
June 30, Contribution Contributions Contributed _ 
2010 3 5,317,917 S 1,670,005 3t .4% 
2009 S 5,050,918 $ 1,517,419 30.0% 
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TOWN OF SCrrUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, L:XPENDrrURES AND CI{ArNGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011) 

See accompanying independent auditofs report . 

Dud Scled Amounts Actual Variances 
Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

Budgetary 
r\matuits Encsnnhrancew 

Adjusted 
Actual 

favorable 
(unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
Real estate and persona ¬ property taxes, net S 41,818,318 $ 41,818,318 $ 42,007,7(=) S 3 42,007,719 $ 189,101 
Intergovernmental 7,061,708 7,061,708 8,012,301 8,012,301 950,593 
Motor vehicle and odrer excises 2,947,697 2,047,697 2,125,130 2,125,130 77,433 
Departmental and otber revenue 1,924,187 1,924,187 1,887,562 1,887,562 (36,625) 
Penalties and Interest 413,014 413,014 367,174 367,174 (45,840) 
Investment income 189,754 189,754 122,506 122,506 (57 248) 

Total Revenues 53 ,454,678 53,454,678 54,522,392 54,522,392 1,067,714 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 4,352,050 "1,352,056 4,067,542 205,843 4,273,385 78,665 
Public safety 7,509,269 7,509,269 7,154,119 143,61 1. 7,297,730 211,539 
Education 28,348,914 28,348,914 27,516,210 814,209 28,330,419 18,495 
Public works 3,116,635 3,116,635 2,980,636 7,247 2,987,883 128,752 
Culture and mereation 1,199,711 1,199,711 1,126,507 8,460 1,134,967 64,744 
Health and human services 476,100 476,100 382,153 27,440 409,593 66,507 
State and county tax assessments 523,756 523,756 547,726 - 547,726 123,970) 
Pensions and fringe bcnclits 8,270,952 8,370,=952 8,134,072 [2,802 8,146,874 121,078 
Debt service 2,190,282 2,190;?82 2,181,743 - 2,181.743 8.539 

Total Expenditures 55,987,669 55,987,669 54,090,708 1,219,612 55,310,320 677,349 _ 

OTHER FWANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (net) 1,613,092 1,613,092 1,638,512 1,638,512 25 .420 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,61.3,092 1,613,092 1,638,512 1,638,512 25 .420 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURESIUSE 1919,8991 t9l9s99) 2.070 .196 S (1 .219.6121 S 950.58+ S 1,770.453 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, July 1, 2009 1,606,843 1,606,8-(3 1,606.843 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2010 5 68fi,944 S 686.94-( $ 3,677,1139 

Budgetary defiet funded from: 
Defielts 133,887) (33,887) 
Prior year encumbrances 897,988 897,988 
Debt reserve 10,591 L0,59L 
miscellaaouus 45,207 45,207 

S 919,899 $ 919.899 
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TOWN Or SCITUATE, MASSACHUSETTS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEWNTARY INI+OItMATION 
YEAR ENDED TUNE 30, 2010 

I. Budgetary Basis. of Accounting 

An annual budget is legally adopted for the General Fund and the Enterprise Fund . Financial orders 
are initiated by department heads, reconunended by the Finance Committee and approved by Town 
Meeting annually in March. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department 
level. Department heads tray not transfer, without Town Meeting approval, appropriation balances 
from one expenditure account to another within their department or budget . The Town Meeting and 
the department head must also approve any transfer of unencumbered appropriation balances between 
departments or agencies . At the close of each fiscal year, unencumbered appropriation balances lapse 
or revert to unreserved fund balance. The Town made several supplemental budgetary appropriations 
throughout the year . These adjustments did not impact the overall budget significantly. 

The Town's general fund is prepared on a basis other than GAAI'. 

	

The "actual" results COlum1a of the 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Equity - Budgetary Basis is presented on a 
budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison with the budget. Primary differences include the 
recognition grossing up of revenues and expenditures to reflect On Behalf Teacher's Retireiaxeat paid 
by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Reconciliation is provided below. 

Revenues on a GAAAP basis 

	

$ 61,075,720 
On Behalf Teacher's receipts 

	

(6,5 53 3,28, 
Revenues on a Budgetary basis 

Expenditures on a GAA' basis 

	

$ 60,641,036 
On Behalf Teacher's expenditures 

	

_L6.5 53 3,223 
Expenditures on a Budgetary basis 

	

$51: 
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(Date of Delivery) 
 

 
Jane C. Lepardo, Treasurer 

Town of Scituate 
Scituate, Massachusetts  

 
 

$9,756,000 
Town of Scituate, Massachusetts 

General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds 
Dated as of Their Delivery Date 

 

We have acted as bond counsel to the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (the “Town”) in 

connection with the issuance by the Town of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds”).  In such 
capacity, we have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we have 

deemed necessary to render this opinion. 

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and 

covenants of the Town contained in the certified proceedings and other certifications of public 
officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. 

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows: 

 1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the Town and, except to 

the extent they are paid from other sources, the principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable 
from taxes which may be levied upon all taxable property in the Town, without limitation as to 

rate or amount, except as provided under Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws, with 
respect to that portion of the principal and interest payments that the Town has voted to exempt 

from the limit imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws, and subject to the limit 
imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws with respect to that portion of the 

principal and interest payments that the Town has not voted to exempt from that limit. 
 

 2. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the 
Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  In addition, interest on the Bonds is not a specific 

preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes.  
However, such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate 

alternative minimum taxable income.  In rendering the opinions set forth in this paragraph, we 
have assumed compliance by the Town with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986 that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon 
be, and continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The Town 

has covenanted to comply with all such requirements.  Failure by the Town to comply with 
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certain of such requirements may cause interest on the Bonds to become included in gross 
income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  Except 

as expressed in paragraph 4 below, we express no opinion regarding any other federal tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. 

 3. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and 
the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  We express no opinion 

regarding any other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds under the laws of any state other than 

Massachusetts. 

 4. The Bonds are qualified tax-exempt obligations within the meaning of Section 

265(b)(3) of the Code. 

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any 

obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any action taken or 
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the interpretation thereof, that may 

hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason. 

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be subject to 

bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ 
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, and their 

enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 

 

 

Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP 
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APPENDIX C 

PROPOSED FORM OF 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

 This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”) is executed and 

delivered by the Town of Scituate, Massachusetts (the “Town”) in connection with the issuance 
of its $9,756,000 General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds dated as of their 

delivery date (the “Bonds”).  The Town covenants and agrees as follows:  

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being 
executed and delivered by the Town for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds and in order to 
assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with the Rule.  

SECTION 2. Definitions.  For purposes of this Disclosure Certificate the following 
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:  

 “Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Town pursuant to, and 
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  

 “Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 
Certificate. 

 “MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board as established pursuant 
to Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or any successor thereto or to the 

functions of the MSRB contemplated by this Disclosure Certificate.  Filing information relating 
to the MSRB is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 “Owners of the Bonds” shall mean the registered owners, including beneficial owners, of 
the Bonds. 

 “Participating Underwriter” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

 “Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.  

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.  

(a) The Town shall, not later than 270 days after the end of each fiscal year, provide 

to the MSRB an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this 
Disclosure Certificate.  The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate 

documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in 
Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the 

Town may be submitted when available separately from the balance of the Annual Report.  
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(b) If the Town is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date 
required in subsection (a), the Town shall send a notice to the MSRB, in substantially the form 

attached as Exhibit B.  

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports.  The Town's Annual Report shall contain or 
incorporate by reference the following:  

(a) quantitative information for the preceding fiscal year of the type presented in the 

Town's Official Statement dated ____________, 2011 relating to the Bonds regarding (i) the 
revenues and expenditures of the Town relating to its operating budget, (ii) capital expenditures, 

(iii) fund balances, (iv) property tax information, (v) outstanding indebtedness and overlapping 
debt of the Town, (vi) pension obligations of the Town, and (vii) other post-employment benefits 

liability of the Town, and 

(b) the most recently available audited financial statements of the Town, prepared in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  If audited financial statements for the 
preceding fiscal year are not available when the Annual Report is submitted, the Annual Report 

will include unaudited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year and audited financial 
statements for such fiscal year shall be submitted when available. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents, 
including official statements of debt issues of the Town or related public entities, which (i) are 

available to the public on the MSRB internet website or (ii) have been filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission.  The Town shall clearly identify each such other document so 

incorporated by reference.  

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.  

(a) The Town shall give notice, in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5, of 
the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds: 

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies. 

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material. 

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties. 

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties. 

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform. 

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed 

or final determination of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other 
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material 

events affecting the tax status of the Bonds. 

7. Modifications to rights of the Owners of the Bonds, if material. 
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8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers. 

9. Defeasances.  

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if 
material. 

11. Rating changes. 

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Town.
*
 

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Town 
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Town, other than in the ordinary course of 

business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a 
definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material. 

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a 
trustee, if material. 

(b) Whenever the Town obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
described in Subsections (a)(2), (6), (7), (8) (with respect to bond calls), (10), (13) or (14), the 

Town shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable 
federal securities laws. 

(c) Upon the occurrence of a Listed Event described in subsections (a)(1), (3), (4), 
(5), (6), (8) (with respect to tender offers), (9), (11) or (12), and in the event the Town 

determines that the occurrence of a Listed Event described in subsections (a)(2), (6), (7), (8) 
(with respect to bond calls), (10), (13) or (14) is material under applicable federal securities laws, 

the Town shall, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of 
the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB. 

SECTION 6. Transmission of Information and Notices.  Unless otherwise required by 
law, all notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be provided in 

electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB and shall be accompanied by identifying 
information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

SECTION 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Town's obligations under this 
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance in accordance with the terms of 

the Bonds, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds.  If such termination occurs 

                                                
*

 As noted in the Rule, this event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: (i) the appointment of a 

receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Town in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any 

proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over 
substantially all of the assets or business of the Town, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the 

existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or 

governmental authority, or (ii) the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation 

by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 

business of the Town. 
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prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Town shall give notice of such termination in the 
same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate, the Town may amend this Disclosure Certificate and any provision of this 

Disclosure Certificate may be waived if such amendment or waiver is permitted by the Rule, as 
evidenced by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities law (which may include bond 

counsel to the Town), to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not cause the 
Disclosure Certificate to violate the Rule.  The first Annual Report filed after enactment of any 

amendment to or waiver of this Disclosure Certificate shall explain, in narrative form, the 
reasons for the amendment or waiver and the impact of the change in the type of information 

being provided in the Annual Report. 

 If the amendment provides for a change in the accounting principles to be followed in 

preparing financial statements, the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made shall 
present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of 

the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 
principles.  The comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the 

accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the 
presentation of the financial information in order to provide information to investors to enable 

them to evaluate the ability of the Town to meet its obligations.  To the extent reasonably 
feasible, the comparison shall also be quantitative.  A notice of the change in the accounting 

principles shall be sent to the MSRB. 

SECTION 9. Default.  In the event of a failure of the Town to comply with any 
provision of this Disclosure Certificate any Owner of the Bonds may seek a court order for 
specific performance by the Town of its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default 

under this Disclosure Certificate shall not constitute a default with respect to the Bonds, and the 
sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Town to comply 

with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action for specific performance of the Town's 
obligations hereunder and not for money damages in any amount. 



 

 C-5 

SECTION 10. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit 
of the Owners of the Bonds from time to time, and shall create no rights in any other person or 

entity.  

Date:  ______________, 2011 TOWN OF SCITUATE, 

MASSACHUSETTS 
 

 
 

 By______________________________ 
 Treasurer 

 ______________________________ 
  

 ______________________________ 
  

 ______________________________ 
 

 ______________________________ 
 

 ______________________________ 
 Selectmen 

 

[EXHIBIT A:  Filing Information for the MSRB] 

[EXHIBIT B:  Form of Notice of Failure to File Annual Report] 
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